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1. Member Practices’ Introduction  
 

1.1 Knowsley is a metropolitan borough of Merseyside, England. It comprises the 
towns and districts of Kirkby, Prescot, Huyton, Whiston, Halewood, Cronton and 
Stockbridge Village.  

 
1.2   Knowsley currently has a relatively young population, with a proportionately 

higher number of people under 25 years of age than the national average. 
Population forecasts predict further increases in the population aged 50 and 
over, including a 69% increase in men aged 85 plus in Knowsley (ONS Projected 
Change in the Population 2012-2021).  At the same time, it is anticipated that 
there will be a decrease in younger age groups, notably those aged 35 to 44.   

 
1.3    Life expectancy for females in Knowsley in 2010-12 was 80.7 years, compared 

to a national average of 83.0 years. Life expectancy for males in Knowsley in 
2010-12 was 76.6 years, compared to a national average of 79.2 years. There 
are also differences in life expectancy within the borough. Male life expectancy 
ranges from 71.7 years in the Northwood electoral ward to 81.8 years in the 
Halewood North electoral ward, a difference of over 10 years.  Female life 
expectancy ranges from 75.9 years in the Longview electoral ward to  85.3 years 
in the Swanside electoral  ward, a difference of more than 9 years. 

 
1.4 Knowsley has a higher than average proportion of lone parent households and a 

higher percentage of carers than the average for England.  
 
1.5   Comparisons from the 2011 census also reveal that Knowsley residents are less 

likely to own their own home, have a car or have qualifications, and are more 
likely to be unemployed or have a life limiting long-term illness. 

 
1.6  NHS Knowsley Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) comprises the 33 GP 

practices within the borough of Knowsley and is coterminous with the Local 
Authority (LA). The CCG’s annual budget is in the region of £248 million and it 
has a registered patient population of just over 161,000.  

 
1.7   The CCG is the third most deprived in England and faces significant challenges 

in respect of the wider determinants of health. The CCG’s provider landscape is 
complex as the geography of the borough means that the CCG’s patients flow 
into three acute providers, two mental health providers (one of which also 
provides the CCG’s community services), numerous specialist trusts for 
traditional district general hospital (DGH) provision and a vibrant voluntary sector 
provision.  Whilst this complex provider landscape can be a challenge it also 
affords the CCG the opportunity to innovate without having a major impact on 
any one provider. 

 
1.8 Healthcare Landscape 

1.8.1 The CCG operates in a complex provider landscape commissioning the 
majority of its healthcare services from several major providers, including: 

a) Acute Hospital Trusts 
St Helens & Knowsley Teaching Hospitals NHS Trust 
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Aintree University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust 
The Royal Liverpool and Broadgreen University Hospitals NHS Trust 

 
b) Specialist Trusts providing DGH services 
Liverpool Women’s Hospital NHS Foundation Trust 
Alder Hey Children’s Hospital NHS Foundation Trust 
Liverpool Heart & Chest Hospital NHS FT 

 
c) Mental Health Trusts 

Five Boroughs Partnership NHS Foundation Trust 
Merseycare NHS Trust 

 
d) Community Health Services 

Five Boroughs Partnership NHS Foundation Trust 
 
e) Specialist Community Services (Consultant-Led) 

Liverpool Heart and Chest Hospital NHS Foundation Trust - CVD and COPD 
Aintree University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust - Diabetes 

 
f) Hospices 

Willowbrook Hospice  
Woodland Hospice  
Marie Curie  

 
g) GP Out of Hours services 

Urgent Care 24 (UC24) – covering 29 practices 
St Helens Rota. - covering 4 practices 

 
1.8.2 The CCG also has responsibility for managing GP prescribing budgets and 

for the assessment of eligibility and commissioning of continuing healthcare 
(CHC) within Knowsley.  

1.8.3 However, not all healthcare is commissioned by the CCG.  

1.8.4 NHS England (NHSE) has responsibility for commissioning primary care 
services, provided through a range of partnerships and independent 
contractors, including the CCG’s 33 GP practices, 19 dental practices, 33 
pharmacies, and 10 opticians in Knowsley. In addition, NHS England directly 
commissions some hospital services, which are nationally defined as 
specialist. 

1.8.5 The Local Authority has responsibility for commissioning public health 
services, including; substance misuse, sexual health and health checks. 

1.8.6 Public Health England has responsibility for commissioning national 
screening and vaccination programmes. 

1.8.7 The CCG has strong clinical leadership through the Clinical Membership 
Group (CMG) and the high clinical representation on the Governing Body. 
This leadership, in partnership with the LA, Healthwatch, the Health & 
Wellbeing Board, NHS England and partner CCGs has enabled the CCG to 
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make good progress in improving health outcomes for the local population in 
2013-14. 

1.8.8 In its first year, the CCG has made significant progress in strengthening 
internal and external relationships; levels of clinical and community 
engagement and involvement have been central to the development of the 
organisation’s strategic and operational business plans.  

1.8.9  The CCG has had several achievements of note in its first year including: 

a) The design, procurement and implementation of its new consultant 
physician-led Community Diabetes Service providing faster, accurate 
diagnosis treatment and management through a focus on personalised 
care delivered closer to home.  
 

b) The development and implementation of a new ‘Walk-in Centre Plus’ 
model within a new NHS building in Kirkby. This new model has seen the 
expansion of conditions which can be diagnosed, treated and managed 
within the community facility such as some fractures. This development 
has also seen the introduction of enhanced diagnostics including X-ray 
which can be easily accessed for urgent care/minor injuries and also direct 
GP referrals.   
 

c) The CCG won a prestigious Health Service Journal award in the 
integrated care category of the Care Integration Awards 2013 for its 
innovative Community Chronic Obstructive Pulmonary Disease (COPD) 
service.  
 

d) The CCG invested in a new service to increase capacity within primary 
and community care as part of its winter plans. This saw additional GP 
appointments, a GP acute visiting service, community intravenous therapy 
and increased step up and step down intermediate care. Early indications 
are that this has had a positive impact on the CCG’s emergency activity 
meaning that more people were able to access timely primary and 
community care rather than accessing A&E facilities. 
 

e) During the year the CCG also reviewed its award winning Community 
Cardiovascular Disease Service in conjunction with patients and clinicians.  
A new service model based on feedback from patients and their carers 
was developed to further improve the outcomes for local people. The new 
model has been procured during the year and will see increased direct 
access to diagnostics and further development of patient and clinician 
education. The new service will be fully implemented by May 2014. 
 

f) During its first year of operation the CCG has also developed its 
relationships with the NHS England local area team and has striven to 
develop an open and transparent relationship which has been particularly 
beneficial in respect of the formal quarterly assurance process with the 
CCG receiving positive feedback from the area team in respect of its 
development. 
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1.8.10 The CCG will be undertaking its first annual evaluation of the Clinical 
Membership Group on 3rd June 2014 and of the Governing Body on 29th May 
2014, to determine their overall performance against the targets and 
business plan during 2013-14. The recommendations following the 
evaluation will be fed into the organisational development plans for the 
second year of operation.  

1.8.11  In respect of future direction, during 2013/14, through a series of bi-monthly 
meetings, the full membership of the CCG has worked to look at new models 
of care. The borough’s transformational change model will underpin the 
organisation’s strategic and operational business plans for the next 5 years 
as the CCG works with the council, patients and key stakeholders to achieve 
improved outcomes and value for money that will deliver the six 
characteristics of a sustainable health and care economy. Through this 
model, people will be placed at the heart of everything we do, with care 
delivered closer to home through integrated health and social care provision 
with increasing levels of complexity being managed in the community. It is 
through this transformational change model that the CCG will deliver its 
Better Care Fund plans. These plans are described more fully in the strategic 
report which follows this section. 

 

Prepared by Dr Andrew Pryce, Chair of the CCG on behalf of member practices  
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2. Strategic Report  
 

2.1 Vision  
 

2.1.1 The strategic vision for the CCG is:  
 
By 2018/19 people in Knowsley will live longer, healthier and happier lives. 
 
Services will be transformed to better meet the needs of our people. Our 
services will be effective, efficient and holistic; addressing social needs and 
health determinants to improve outcomes, particularly those outcomes that 
have been persistently challenging to achieve. Wherever possible and safe to 
do so, services will be delivered outside of hospital and closer to home. 
 
Our people will enjoy better health and wellbeing physically, mentally and 
emotionally. Mental and physical health will be treated with equal importance 
to achieve parity of esteem. 
 
People will have greater independence, more self- care, more responsibility 
and greater involvement in decisions about their care. 
 
From the patient’s perspective, services will be integrated and appear 
seamless. 
 
2.2 The nature, objectives and strategies of the CCG 
 

2.2.1 Knowsley Shadow CCG was established on 1st October 2011 following the 
merger of the two existing pathfinder CCGs (Kirkby and Knowsley South 
Health). It operated in shadow form, to allow for the completion of the 
authorisation process.  

 
2.2.2 The CCG was fully authorised without conditions and was formally 

established on 1st April 2013. The CCG has an annual budget of £248 million 
and a registered population of just over 161,000. 

 
2.2.3 Based in Huyton, the CCG was formed to deliver a new way of 

commissioning health services in the borough. We want local people to feel 
heard, listened to and cared for, and we believe that by using clinical 
knowledge and having close working relationships with patients and 
partners, improvements can be made to health outcomes locally. 

 
2.2.4 Patients are at the heart of all we do and we strive to involve people in all 

decisions, especially those involving the design and commissioning of 
services including procurement and awarding of contracts.  

 
2.2.5 We are committed to strengthening relationships with the local population 

through existing groups and forums, the voluntary and third sector, 
Healthwatch, Patient Participation Groups (PPGs) at GP practices and the 
Health & Wellbeing Engagement Forum. It is through these partnerships with 
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clinicians, patients, partner organisations, providers and the wider 
community, that the CCG will be able to meet the considerable challenges 
ahead, and develop a healthier future for the local population. 

 
2.2.6 The CCG also recognises the importance of the wider determinants of health 

and social care and how education, employment, the environment, public 
health, economic prosperity, housing, sport and leisure impacts on the health 
and wellbeing of the local population, therefore, it takes an active role in 
developing and maintaining a strong and effective Health & Wellbeing Board, 
and is a member of the borough’s Local Strategic Partnership.  

 
2.3 Objectives  
 

2.3.1 The objectives of the CCG as set out in the 2014/16 business plan are: 
 

a) To secure additional years of life for conditions considered amenable to 
healthcare 
 

b) To improve the health related quality of life of people with one or more 
long-term condition. 
 

c) Reduce the amount of time people spend avoidably in hospital through 
better and more integrated care in the community. 
 

d) Increase the proportion of older people living independently at home 
following discharge from hospital 
 

e) Increase the number of people having a positive experience of care 
outside of hospital, in general practice and in the community 
 

f) Increase the number of people having a positive experience of hospital 
care 
 

g) Make significant progress towards eliminating avoidable deaths in local 
hospitals caused by problems in care. 

 
2.4 How the CCG will achieve the objectives through the commissioning   

strategy 
 

2.4.1 The CCG and Local Authority have an ambitious plan to transform the 
commissioning, quality, delivery and effectiveness of health and social care 
services in the borough. This ambition builds on the borough’s strong history 
of health and social care integration and then takes it to another level. 

 
2.4.2 People will have greater independence, be able to self-manage more 

effectively and become active participants in ensuring their own and their 
family’s physical and mental health and wellbeing. They will have more 
responsibility and greater involvement in decisions about any care and 
support they receive. Services will be seamless from the perspective of the 
patient. 
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2.4.3 The CCG established a Transformation Board in partnership with the Local 
Authority in September 2013, and has developed a model based on 
extensive patient, public and provider engagement.  

 
2.4.4 Key to this will be locality-based integrated provision through the 

‘Neighbourhub’ model, with one philosophy of care based on supporting 
people to retain their place within the community.  

 
2.4.5 Joint assessment, co-ordinated by a lead practitioner or professional, 

adopting a case management approach, will allow citizens to co-produce a 
single, holistic, care plan over which they feel a real sense of ownership, and 
which will be delivered as close to home as possible. Pro-active identification 
and management of patients (starting with the most complex patients) will 
allow integrated teams to rapidly draw on specialist support when necessary. 
A ‘Community Link Worker’ role will be developed to offer low level holistic 
assessment for both health and social care needs, providing valuable 
resource in ensuring people in our communities are supported and prevented 
from experiencing social isolation. It will assist in engaging people in a wide 
range of community services from both the statutory and voluntary sectors; 
providing both health and social networks. 

 
2.4.6 This will include further building community resilience through third and 

voluntary sectors. But it will also mean empowering individuals to make 
better lifestyle choices, and supporting and encouraging the local population 
to have increased awareness of and better access to services that support 
them to maintain good health and wellbeing. 

 
2.4.7 There will be targeted investment in skills, capacity and infrastructure to 

support a more holistic, co-ordinated, integrated, efficient and person-centred 
approach to the delivery of health and social care.  

 
2.4.8 Improvements will be seen across the range of life course outcomes adopted 

by Knowsley’s Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy, namely: 
 

a) Mothers and fathers are well prepared for pregnancy and choose to have 
babies 

b) Healthy conception, pregnancy and birth 
c) Children are ready for school physically, emotionally and 

developmentally 
d) Children make a positive transition between primary and secondary 

school 
e) Young people have the skills and resources required to make positive 

transition choices into adulthood 
f) Adults have the resources and support to enable them to manage their 

own health and wellbeing and have a good quality of life 
g) People are able to maintain independence for as long as possible 
h) People are able to approach the end of life with dignity 

 
2.4.9 The CCG’s transformational change model shows how the patient and their 

family/carers are at the heart of integrated health and social care services, 
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which work as part of a system of primary care integration based in the  four 
main townships (Huyton, Kirkby, Halewood, Whiston/Prescot/Cronton) 
through the implementation of the ‘neighbourhub’ model. 

 
2.4.10 The CCG’s transformation model will deliver the six characteristics of a 

sustainable health and social care system as follows; 
 

a) Citizens at the heart of what we do: ensuring that the local population is fully 
included in all aspects of service design and change and that patients, their 
families and carers are fully empowered in the development, agreement and 
implementation of their own care plans. 

i. To continue and expand patient involvement in service design and 
procurement 

ii. Citizen self-service – supported by community link workers 
iii. Involvement of patient, families and their carers in development of 

personal outcomes 
iv. Knowledge Hub: directory of health, social care and other services that 

impact on health and wellbeing, and support accessing those services, 
access to wellbeing, prevention and health promotion information, 
advice and services without the need for professional referral 
 

b) Wider primary care, provided at scale through a modern model of 
integrated care 

i. Locality integrated health and care model – neighbourhubs – with links 
to community, voluntary and other services 

ii. Specialist community services – delivering care closer to home 
iii. New worker – mental/physical health and care assessments and 

planning 
iv. Supporting people to remain at home – Community Frailty Service 
v. Safe and supported discharge following admission, including new 

‘Welcome Home’ worker 
vi. Primary assessment of health, care and wellbeing needs 
vii. Delivery of locality based services and coordination, via named lead 

clinician, of more specialist treatment and care 
viii. Case management 

 
c) Access to highest quality urgent and emergency care 

i. Ensuring joined up and seamless services across the system - 
neighbourhubs. 

ii. Continued move towards specialist community services for key areas of 
need e.g. CVD, Respiratory disease which include effective 
management of exacerbations within the community setting 

iii. Increased and innovative intermediate care services both bed based 
and in the home 

iv. Developing the enhanced Walk in Centre model with increased 
diagnostics in the community 

v. Seven day working 
vi. Implementing Keogh recommendations 
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d) A Step-change in the productivity of elective care 
i. Working with other commissioners and NHSE to ensure elective 

provision is more productive and high quality 
ii. The neighbourhub will support patients pre-admission care and work to 

ensure discharge and rehabilitation/recovery is proactively planned and 
managed 

iii. Promote patient choice 
 

e) Specialised services concentrated in centres of excellence  
i. CCG will continue its co-commissioning relationship with NHSE to 

deliver centres of excellence. 
 
2.5 Development and performance of the CCG now and into the future  

2.5.1 The CCG has continued to develop throughout the year and has maintained 
a good level of performance as evidenced through the quarterly assurance 
process carried out by NHS England’s local Area Team. 

 
2.5.2 Knowsley is a borough with very high levels of deprivation and faces 

significant challenges, with high levels of health inequalities compared with 
the rest of England. The CCG recognises that physical and mental health 
and wellbeing can be affected by many factors, including:  

 
a) Housing conditions 
b) The environment 
c) Work 
d) Social contact 
e) Access to leisure and culture opportunities 
f) Experience or fear of crime, and 
g) Transport access to services and facilities. 

 
2.5.3 The CCG is therefore actively working with all its partners and providers to 

make a significant contribution to health and wellbeing related outcomes, 
including, through the Health and Wellbeing Board and the Local Strategic 
Partnership.  

 
2.5.4 This focus will continue to be developed and strengthened through the 

transformation work described earlier in this report. 
 
2.5.5 In its first year, the CCG has started to work towards reducing inequalities 

through the commissioning of safe, high quality services in partnership with 
the local population and its stakeholders.  

 
2.5.6 The CCG has in place robust contract management and governance 

processes to effectively monitor quality and safety standards and to put 
action plans in place where required. This work is overseen and scrutinised 
through the organisation’s governance committee structure. The senior 
management team has embedded a culture of high performance through 
effective programme management and a proactive approach to governance 
and risk management. 
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2.5.7 A key strength is the CCG’s planning and performance management 

systems which are seen as central to delivering the functions and 
responsibilities of the CCG. The Programme Management Office (PMO) 
holds the ‘master plan’ and effective planning of activity and demand coupled 
with good timetabling means that the CCG has been able to deliver all its 
duties with a lean yet efficient and highly motivated staff team.  

 
2.5.8 The CCG has also established a Transformational Programme Board which 

comprises senior health and social care leaders along with Lay Advisors, 
Healthwatch and NHS England representation. The board is supported by a 
strong PMO system and has agreed that the initial areas of focus should be: 

 
a) Unplanned care 
b) Long term conditions 
c) Mental health 
d) ‘Access Knowsley’ (enabling access to local services). 

 
2.5.9 By also increasing its focus on prevention, early intervention and patient and 

carer education, the CCG also hopes to make significant inroads into 
improving local health and wellbeing outcomes.  

 
2.6 Progress against targets/ future targets  

2.6.1 The CCG was fully authorised without conditions and was established 
on 1st April 2013. The CCG had a strong starting position due in part to 
the performance of the former Primary Care Trust (PCT) and was 
fortunate to retain a core staff group with extensive organisational 
memory.   

 
2.6.2 The CCG has been working hard to ensure that it delivers against the 

key national and local performance measures which cover all aspects of 
healthcare, including the NHS Constitution, patient safety, clinical 
effectiveness and cost effectiveness.  

 
 
2.6.3 The CCG has attained a high standard of performance to date, as 

evidenced in the latest available (at time of submission) performance 
tables (See Appendix 1). 

 
2.6.4 Quality Premium Calculator  

 
a) The quality premium is a national system which rewards CCGs for 

improvements made to the quality of services that they commission, and 
the associated improvements in health outcomes for the local population. 
The rewards given to the CCG will be based on four national measures 
and three local measures.  
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b) The four national measures are:  
i. Reducing potential years of lives lost through amenable mortality  
ii. Reducing avoidable emergency admissions  
iii. Ensuring roll-out of the Friends and Family Test and improving 

patient experience of hospital services  
iv. Preventing healthcare associated infections 

 
c) The three local measures in 2013-14 are:  

i. Reducing emergency admissions for patients with COPD  
ii. Reducing emergency admissions for patients suffering mental 

health conditions 
iii. Improving transparency and openness – increased utilisation of 

Choose & Book 
 

d) The level of achievement can be reduced if the CCG’s providers do not 
meet the NHS Constitution rights or pledges for patients, in relation to four 
key indicators:  

i. 18 week referral to treatment – incomplete pathways  
ii. A&E 4 hour standard  
iii. 62 day standard, from urgent GP referral to first definitive treatment 

for cancer 
iv. Category A Red 1 ambulance calls, resulting in an emergency 

response arriving within 8 minutes 
 

e) The CCG’s performance against these targets is highlighted in Appendix 1 
 

2.6.5  Assurance framework 

a) The CCG has made positive strides in the first year of operation to discharge its 
duties under the National Health Service Act 2006 (as amended). 
 

b) Five goals have been identified which the CCG assessed itself against on a 
monthly basis, to determine the level of assurance against each goal (limited, 
reasonable or significant). At the end of quarter four of the financial year, the 
assurance levels were self-assessed to be: 

Goal 
 

Assurance 

1: Improve health outcomes for local people Reasonable 
2: Promote patient rights under the NHS Constitution Reasonable 
3: Ensure local people get good quality care Significant 
4: Commission services within financial allocations Significant 
5: Continue to develop the CCG Significant 

 

c) As can be seen from the summary report (Appendix 1), all of the CCG’s 
constitutional and national indicators are performing at or above the 
required standards. 
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d) Whilst the CCG has performed very well in most areas of the outcomes 
framework and the national indicator set, there have been performance 
concerns in terms in Health Care Acquired Infections (HCAI). In respect of 
Clostridium Difficile cases, the CCG has reported 55 cases in total for the 
year against a threshold of 36. The majority of the excess cases were 
acquired within community settings. The CCG took steps throughout the 
year to minimise the number of infections through a robust action plan 
which the Governing Body closely scrutinised and monitored. The 
incidence of this infection in the second part of the year reduced as a 
result of the actions taken. 

 
e) The CCG will continue to take a proactive approach to performance 

management through its senior management team, so that performance is 
maintained and improved upon during 2014-15. 

 
2.7 Resources, principal risks and uncertainties, and relationships that may 

affect the CCG’s long-term performance 
 

2.7.1 The key strengths and resources that the CCG has to enable it to effectively 
deliver its objectives include: 

 
a) A strong model of clinical leadership and effective engagement and 

involvement of the 33 member practices 
b) A legacy of patient and public involvement and engagement in health services 

which the CCG has developed and built upon during the year 
c) Effective leadership supported by an experienced, skilled and committed staff 

team  
d) Highly innovative, successful, award winning community based services, which 

are commissioned to effectively meet the needs of the local population, as 
close to home as possible  

e) A sound financial base built on robust governance systems and processes, to 
maximise opportunities from the £248m received in 2013/14 to commission 
healthcare 

f) A good knowledge and evidence base regarding the health and care needs and 
challenges within the local population, through the Joint Strategic Needs 
Assessment (JSNA) undertaken with the LA. 

 
2.7.2 The key risks impacting upon the CCG’s strategies and development include: 

 
a) A number of the CCG’s commissioned providers are under scrutiny from 

regulators as a result of quality concerns relating to never events, serious 
incidents and healthcare acquired infections. This presents a risk to the CCG in 
ensuring that it continues to commission good quality care for local people, and 
has a viable and sustainable supplier base in the long-term. The Governing 
Body’s policy for managing this is through joint working and collaboration with 
other commissioners, effective governance and contract management, and a 
longer-term transformational change programme. 
 

b) The impact of public spending constraints and the potential for changes in the 
allocation of funds are likely to result in real term reductions in the CCG’s 
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funding in future years, within an environment of increasing demand arising 
from demographic factors. This presents a risk to the CCG in ensuring that it is 
able to continue to commission services within financial allocations. The 
Governing Body’s policy for managing this is through its five year financial 
strategy, quality, innovation, productivity and prevention (QIPP) programme 
and a longer-term transformation programme. 
 

c) There is a need to increase the level and breadth of engagement and 
involvement with the local population around the future shape of local services, 
and to promote greater levels of self-care, positive choices and prevention. The 
need for a culture change both for the population and providers has been 
identified as a key requirement for the transformation programme. This 
presents a risk to the CCG in ensuring that it delivers the required 
transformation and self-care options, to provide sustainable future healthcare 
services which meet the needs of the local population. The Governing Body’s 
policy for managing this is through the Transformation Programme Board and 
specifically the Communication and Engagement Strategy and working 
effectively with strategic partners, in particular the LA. 
 

d) The challenges in establishing and embedding a new organisation, which can 
work effectively in the new environment for NHS commissioning, including the 
Commissioning Support Unit similarly newly established and reflecting a 
significantly different model of delivery. The Governing Body’s policy for 
managing this is through its Organisational Development Plan and joint working 
with strategic partners, including the LA and neighbouring CCGs. 

 
2.7.3 The stakeholder relationships which influence the performance of the CCG 

include: 
 

a) Patients, public, community groups and representative organisations such as 
Healthwatch, whose engagement and involvement is key to informing effective 
commissioning, monitoring, evaluating and improvement of services.  

 
b) Commissioned healthcare providers, including acute, mental health and 

community trusts, from whom the majority of healthcare services are 
commissioned along with the third sector which offers a new way of delivering 
health and social care in the future. 

 
c) Strategic partnership arrangements with the LA, which address the wider 

determinants of health through effective membership of the Health & Wellbeing 
Board, and joint working, to deliver service transformation. 

 
2.8 Financial Performance  

 
2.8.1 The CCG’s financial accounts (available at the back of this Annual Report) 

have been prepared under a direction issued by the NHS Commissioning 
Board under the National Health Service Act 2006 (as amended). The CCG 
has produced them on the basis that it is a going concern as it has no reason 
to believe that it future is in doubt, either due to its own performance, or 
through changes in legislation.  
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2.8.2 The CCG receives its funding from NHSE in two parts. The main element is 

the Programme Allocation, which is for the commissioning of health services. 
The second allocation is the CCG’s Running Cost Allowance, which covers 
the administration and management of the CCG. The CCG cannot use its 
Programme Allocation to increase the Running Cost Allowance, although, an 
underspend on its Running Costs can be used to support its Programme 
Allocation. The CCG must ensure that health services are delivered within its 
Programme and Running Cost Allowance and cash flow controls, as set by 
NHS England. In addition, it was expected to deliver a 1% surplus in 
2013/14. The CCG was successful in meeting both its statutory financial 
duties and the 1% target in 2013/14. 

 
Statutory Duties Target  

£m 
 

Actual  
£m 

Variance 
£m 

Met? 

Expenditure not to exceed income  250.7 248.2 -2.5 √ 

Capital resource use does not exceed 
the amount specified in Directions 

0.0 0.0 0.0 √ 

Revenue resource use does not 
exceed the amount specified in 
Directions 

248.4 245.9 -2.5 √ 

Revenue administration resource use 
does not exceed the amount specified 
in Directions 

3.7 3.7 0.0 √ 

 
 
2.8.3 Although the NHS has to some extent been protected, funding allocations 

are significantly lower than in past years. In 2013-2014, the CCG received 
the national average uplift of 2.2% growth, so that it received £244.7m for its 
Programme and £3.7m for its Running Cost Allocations.  Although the level 
of growth was historically low this was managed by the CCG as set out in the 
table below to deliver the 1% target surplus agreed with NHSE. 

 
 

2.8.4 How was the money spent in 2013/14? 
 

a) The CMG, Governing Body, management team and staff of the CCG work hard 
to ensure that this money is spent wisely, and that it supports the aim of 
commissioning high quality healthcare, whilst ensuring effectiveness and value 
for money. It was spent as follows: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



17 
 

CCG Spending 2013/14 
£m 

Programme Expenditure  
Acute Services 133.4 
Mental Health Services 24.8 
Community Health Services 29.4 
Continuing Care & LA Pooled 
Budgets 13.0 
Prescribing & Primary Care Services 34.0 
Other Programme Services 7.6 
Total Programme Spend 242.2 
Running Cost (Admin) 
Expenditure 3.7 
Total Expenditure* 245.9 

 
 
*this figure is net of £2.3m income received by the CCG 
 

b) The CCG’s Running Cost spending is divided between the costs associated 
with its own staff and accommodation, and those of the commissioning support 
services, which were purchased from the Cheshire and Merseyside 
Commissioning Support Unit or other CCGs. 
  

 
*This is the ONS constrained population which equated to 149,108 in 2013/14 
 
(See Appendix 2 for more information) 
 

c) For those members of the Governing Body on the national Very Senior 
Management pay scales, a pay award uplift of 0% was made and there were no 
non-pensionable performance bonuses awarded. Other than for staff on the 
lowest pay grades, no staff received a pay award in 2013/14. The majority of 
staff were eligible for salary increments on average between 3-4% under the 
Agenda for Change national pay scheme, which is applicable to non-medical 
staff. More detail is provided in the remuneration section of the report. 

 
d) Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the NHS Pension 

Scheme, which is an unfunded, defined benefit scheme. The CCG accounts for 
the costs of the scheme in year as a charge to the Operating Cost Statement. 
Full details of the scheme and how it is applied by the CCG can be found in the 
accounting policies to the Annual Accounts 2013-2014, page 70. 

 

Running Costs (Admin) 2013/14 
£m 

2013/14 
£/head* 

CCG Direct Costs Staff 1.3 8.42 
CCG Direct Non-Pay 1.0 6.79 
Other CCG Shared Services 0.3 1.86 
Commissioning Support Unit 1.1 7.66 
Total Running Costs 3.7 24.73 
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2.8.5 Looking forward to 2014/15 and beyond 
 

a) The CCG’s allocations for 2014/15 and 2015/16 have been set by NHSE, with 
indicative allocations to 2018/19. For programme spend this indicates an 
increase of 2.14% in 2014/15 and 1.7% in 2015/16, then continuing at that level 
to 2018/19. For the Running Cost Allocation there is no increase in 2014/15 
and a 10% reduction in 2015/16, with no indication of inflationary increase in 
the next 3 years – representing a 19% real terms cut to 2018/19, a very 
challenging reduction. Although the NHS has been protected in relation to other 
public spending, these are historically very low levels of funding growth for the 
health service. 

 
b) The CCG has mapped out its operational commissioning plans for the next two 

years, and the longer term five year strategic plans are expected to be finalised 
in June 2014.The Annual Budget for 2014/15 and the financial strategy being 
developed for June are intended to support the CCG’s commissioning 
intentions. As part of this process, the CCG will work closely with the Local 
Authority, through the Health and Wellbeing Board, to maintain and improve 
performance on objectives, including:  

 
i. Ensuring that NHS Constitution waiting times targets continue to be met 
ii. Improving the health of children by increasing breast feeding and 

vaccination rates 
iii. Increasing the choice available to local people about which hospital they 

are referred to 
iv. Reducing health inequalities by working on issues like alcohol harm 

reduction, cancer screening, and free health checks 
v. Delivering the targets and challenges set out in the NHSE’s ‘Everyone 

Counts: Planning for Patients 2014/15 – 2018/19’. 
 

c) In delivering these aims, the CCG and the Local Authority are mindful of the 
reduced level of public spending. In order to cope with this, the CCG is working 
to deliver the Department of Health’s Quality Innovation Productivity and 
Prevention (QIPP) initiative, which is intended to reduce costs so that the NHS 
can continue to improve services and meet the growing need for health care. 
This will be supported through further collaboration between the CCG and the 
Local Authority on the commissioning of health and social care services. In 
2015/16 it is proposed that a significant amount of CCG money be transferred 
into a pooled budget for health and social care, which is to be called the Better 
Care Fund. The plans on how this fund is going to be used in Knowsley as part 
of the larger scale transformation programme were highlighted earlier in this 
annual report. 

 
d) The expectation of continuing reduced growth for NHS funding means that the 

CCG will continue to be faced with difficult choices on spending priorities. 
Although the CCG has been able to deliver its financial duties and targets in 
2013/14, the reduced level of funding growth emphasises the importance of the 
QIPP agenda, to ensure that funds are used to achieve maximum benefit to the 
health of the population, whilst continuing to deliver the necessary financial 
targets. Clearly, given the poor health within Knowsley, there are still very 
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significant challenges to be faced but the organisation with its partners, is 
determined to tackle them. 

 

The accounts have been prepared under a direction issued by the NHS    
Commissioning Board under the National Health Service Act 2006 (as amended). 
 

2.9 Sustainability report 

2.9.1 Sustainability has become increasingly important as the impact of peoples' 
lifestyles and business choices are changing the world we live in. This 
responsibility is acknowledged by the CCG and it has been working hard to 
try to minimise its footprint, in particular, by embedding sustainable 
development into its management and governance processes.  

 
2.9.2 One of the principle aims of the CCG’s five year strategy is to move services 

closer to people’s homes - providing high quality services in a more 
sustainable and cost effective way, and responding to patients’ preferences 
for receiving care in their local communities. The CCG has worked hard this 
year to build on previous successes, by extending the contract for its 
Community Chronic Obstructive Pulmonary Disease (COPD) service and re-
procuring its Community Cardiovascular Disease (CVD) service, enhancing 
primary care services (including, adding X-ray facilities and diagnostic testing 
at the Walk in Centre in Kirkby) and, introducing a community intravenous 
therapy service.  

 
2.9.3 The CCG’s Procurement Strategy supports sustainable development by 

ensuring that procurement decisions consider the wider impact of 
commissioning decisions on communities, particularly, the opportunity for 
additional economic, social and environmental ‘community benefits’, that 
contribute to the delivery of measurable population health benefits, and a 
reduction in health inequalities. 

 
2.9.4 NHS properties, including the CCG’s headquarters and the community estate 

from which services commissioned by the CCG are delivered, are now 
provided through NHS Property Services Limited. The CCG has participated 
in an NHS England sponsored Estates Capacity Programme for Merseyside. 
Interim results were reported to the CCG’s Governing Body in September 
which identified that there were opportunities within the current estate to 
accommodate changes in models of care, or additional service provision. 
This work will be taken further during 2014/15. It is not currently possible for 
NHS Property Services to provide property performance data for this 
2013/14 annual report, but this is being addressed with the aim of including 
such data in the 2014/15 report. 

 
2.9.5 The CCG recognises its responsibility towards promoting the benefits of 

sustainability to its staff, including, effectively planning business travel, 
meetings and events, and recycling initiatives. 
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2.9.6 During 2014-2015 the CCG will further embed sustainability through the 
production of a Sustainable Development Management Plan (SDMP). 

 
2.10 Equality and Diversity Report  
 

2.10.1 The CCG approved its Equality and Diversity Strategy in October 2012 and 
its Equality Objective plan in October 2013, in line with the duties and 
requirements of the Equality Act 2010. An Equality Delivery System self-
assessment was completed between July and October 2013, which 
supported the development of the CCG’s equality and diversity objectives. 
The CCG was self-assessed as ‘Developing’, which reflects its status as a 
new commissioning organisation.   

   
2.10.2 The equality objective plan sets out clearly how the CCG will meet its Public 

Sector Equality Duty to:  
 

a) Eliminate discrimination  
b) Advance equality of opportunity  
c) Foster good community relations  

 
2.10.3 The equality objectives will help the CCG to: 

 
a) Make fair and transparent commissioning decisions 
b) Improve access and outcomes across communities and patients who 

share protected characteristics  
c) Improve the equality performance of their key providers  
d) Support an engaged workforce  

 
2.10.4 The Equality and Diversity policy and other relevant policies have been 

approved at the joint Cheshire and Merseyside CCGs and Staff Side 
Partnership Forum in December 2013.  

 
2.10.5 The CCG undertook a diversity survey in conjunction with NHSE in July 

2013. Using the results, NHSE was able to analyse the diversity of both the 
CCG’s staff and the Governing Body, and produced a national report in line 
with their requirements under the Equality Act, to publish equality 
information. NHSE will provide future guidance to CCGs in 2014/15 on how 
to progress some of the findings of the survey. 

 
2.10.6 The gender make-up of the CCG staff is detailed in appendix 11 
 
2.10.7   The gender of staff in the CCG as a whole is: 
 

Grouping 
 

Male Female 

Clinical Membership Group 14 15 
Governing Body 12 7 
Staff 14 41 
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2.10.8 The Governing Body is not aware of any relevant audit information that has 
been withheld from the clinical commissioning group’s external auditors, and 
members of the Governing Body take all necessary steps to make 
themselves aware of relevant information and to ensure that this is passed to 
the external auditors where appropriate. 

 
 

2.11 Legislative requirements 
 

2.11.1 Duty to improve the quality of services  
 

a) The CCG has appointed eight Clinical Leads as members of the Governing 
Body alongside the Clinical Chair. Each of the leads has taken responsibility for 
specific commissioning priorities: 

 
i. Clinical Quality & Safety  Dr Paul Conway 
ii. Prescribing    Dr Aftab Hossain 
iii. Primary Care Quality  Dr David Stokoe 
iv. Mental Health   Dr Peter Ayegba 
v. Unplanned Care   Dr Faisal Maassarani 
vi. Planned Care   Dr Shweta Tewari 
vii. Women and Children  Dr Pervez Sadiq 
viii. Strategy and Planning  Dr Ronnie Thong 
 

 
b) The Clinical Leads have been involved in the provider organisation quality 

boards, the CCG’s Primary Care Quality Network, nursing home quality and 
have challenged, supported, and clinically led, the continuous improvement of 
the quality of services commissioned by the CCG.  

 
c) As the CCG commissions from several major providers it has been actively 

involved in a number of quality improvements which have resulted from two risk 
summits and a number of quality reviews resulting in increased surveillance. 
The Governing body has oversight of the action plans and discusses quality at 
each meeting. The Clinical Quality & Safety Committee provides a close level 
of scrutiny of the quality of commissioned services including inviting providers 
to the committee where a more in depth analysis and discussion is warranted.  

 
d) The CCG is an active member of the local Quality Surveillance Group. 

 
e) The CCG has established a Patient Experience Group which reports to the 

Clinical Quality & Safety Committee. The group’s remit is to ensure that patient 
experience feedback is not only received but is used to improve the quality of 
services. 

 
f) The CCG has forged a strong links with the Local Authority, Healthwatch and 

the Health & Wellbeing Engagement Forum which has been particularly 
beneficial in looking at the quality of care in nursing homes throughout the 
borough. The CCG has been working with partners to improve quality and in 
2014-2015 will invest in a quality improvement scheme to facilitate sustained 
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improvement and the development of high quality nursing and care home 
provision based on an asset model where residents are supported to live well in 
a homely environment.  

 
g) A great deal of work has been carried out to determine the quality of services 

provided to patients with a need to access mental health services as this has 
been identified by the membership and the population as a key area for 
improvement. The CCG has worked effectively with the provider to improve 
access and outcomes for patients requiring IAPT; access is now in line with the 
contract requirements of a maximum of 4 weeks from referral and recovery 
rates are above the expected level at 52%.  

 
h) The CCG has reviewed its Community COPD service in partnership with 

patients, carers and clinicians to further improve this model and whilst the 
overall feedback was extremely positive there are one or two minor 
improvements to be made. This work involved talking to patients who are at the 
end of life and this was handled sensitively with Healthwatch taking a key role. 
This was done as we believe this important part of the pathway must be best in 
class. 

 
i) The Community CVD service has been re-procured during the year and the 

opportunity was taken, again in partnership with patients and carers, to further 
improve quality both in respect of clinical outcomes and also patient 
experience. 

 
j) The CCG has a number of Communities of Practice and Clinical Reference 

Groups which provide a forum for interested parties from all sectors to improve 
the quality of services with a particular emphasis on primary care. These 
groups report into the CCG’s Primary Care Quality Network which has been 
working on reducing variance within primary care and also the education of 
clinical and administration staff. 

 
k) Following a review of its management and structure the CCG is establishing a 

Primary Care Support function to support both primary care and NHSE as part 
of its duty to support NHSE in improving the quality of Primary Care 

 
l) The CCG will continue to refine and improve its approach to improving quality 

through its transformation programme and further development of productive 
relationships with all partners. 

 
2.11.2 Duty to reduce inequalities 

 
a) There is clear evidence that people’s health, their access to health services and 

experiences of health services are affected by their age, gender, race, sex, 
sexual orientation, religion/belief, gender identity, marital/civil partnership 
status, pregnancy/maternity status and financial status and wider determinants 
of health. The CCG therefore wants all members of the local population to feel 
engaged with, listened to, and cared for, in a way that ensures inclusivity and 
that people are protected by the Equality Act 2010.  
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b) The CCG has appointed a Lay Member for Patient and Public Involvement, the 
role includes ensuring that equality and diversity is championed throughout the 
organisation, and embedded into policy development and decision making 
processes. Also, that the CCG continually strives to enhance its methods and 
levels of public, patient and carer engagement and involvement, with all 
sections of the community, particularly with those that are harder to engage 
with. 

 
c) During this initial year, the CCG’s focus has been on establishing and 

embedding a culture that promotes equality, respects diversity and ensures that 
the needs of all sections of the community are taken into account when 
commissioning services. This has included: 

 
i. Investing in training and development for the Governing Body and all 

members of the staff team 
ii. Assessing the current position and development needs of the CCG using 

the NHS Equality Delivery System (EDS) framework (with external 
validation through Healthwatch) 

iii. Developing an equality analysis process and toolkit as a key element of 
the commissioning process 

iv. Ensuring that the equality performance of providers is assessed during 
the procurement process and through contract management of the 
services  

v. Ensuring that all decisions made by the CCG are informed by an 
understanding of the equality implications. 

 
d) The EDS assessment identified examples of good practice in the CCG, 

including: 
 

i. Working closely with community groups when commissioning new mental 
health services for older people 

ii. Addressing access and outcome issues across key protected groups 
identified in the Community COPD Service review 

iii. A good understanding across the organisation of the key barriers to 
Knowsley patients and communities across protected groups. 

 
e) The CCG re-procured its Community Cardiovascular Disease (CVD) Service 

this year. This was informed by equality analysis - an extensive piece of work 
including a wide range of inclusive consultation and engagement across the 
protected groups, representing the population of Knowsley.  

 
f) Commissioners and providers then worked alongside community and voluntary 

organisations, expert patients, current patients, older people and the disabled 
community, to ensure that targeted services were promoted to address equality 
issues, identified as a result of the analysis.  

 
g) The CCG has also worked with its key providers, in collaboration with 

neighbouring CCGs, to include equality requirements in the contract quality 
schedule, including: 
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i. An agreed Equality Objective Plan (including key components) 
ii. Completion of an EDS self-assessment within agreed timescales and 

delivery against at least five outcomes 
iii. Evidence of compliance with Equality Act 2010 specific duties 
iv. Provider decisions about service redesign being subject to an equality 

analysis or EIA report 
v. Translation and interpretation service data needing to be published or 

made available and analysed against the local demographic. 
 

2.11.3 Duty to ensure public involvement and consultation 
 

a) The CCG wants local people to feel heard, listened to and cared for, and 
believes that Knowsley GPs, using their clinical knowledge and close working 
relationships with patients and partners and other healthcare professionals, are 
well placed to understand local needs and priorities, and can make a big 
difference to local health outcomes. 

 
b) The CCG’s vision, values and strategy were developed in consultation with 

stakeholders, including, patients and the public. The CCG aims to continually 
engage with and involve patients and the public in its work, so that the local 
population can shape the commissioning agenda, and in particular, the services 
that are commissioned. 

 
c) The CCG’s Communications and Engagement Strategy sets out the CCG’s 

strategy for patient and public involvement, including a commitment to: 
 

i. Involve patients and the public fully in the work of the CCG: reflected in 
its constitutional, governance and decision-making arrangements 

ii. Create a Patient Experience Group to ensure that the CCG has effective 
arrangements for listening to patients, and ensuring that the experience 
of patients informs the development and improvement of commissioned 
services 

iii. Build links with existing networks and groups to ensure that feedback is 
reflected in commissioning plans  

iv. Further develop existing mechanisms for engaging with patients who are 
not actively sharing their views on health and social care issues, and 
ensure inclusivity of marginalised or under-represented groups 

v. Support the on-going development of Patient Participation Groups and 
their role in shaping CCG priorities and developing commissioned 
services. 
 

d) During 2013-2014 the CCG has: 
 

i. Appointed a Lay Member for Patient and Public Involvement, and 
included Healthwatch and patient representation at all levels of the 
organisation’s governance arrangements. 
 

ii. Established a Patient Experience Group as a sub group of the Quality 
and Safety Committee, as part of the CCG’s drive to have effective 
arrangements for listening to patients, and ensuring that the experience 
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of patients informs the development and improvement of commissioned 
services. The group includes six patient representatives, two GP Clinical 
Leads, and a Healthwatch representative. 
 

iii. Supported the development of Patient Participation Groups through an 
agreed development plan, including, the establishment of a quarterly 
Patient Participation Forum. Attended meetings with Knowsley PPGs to 
promote the role and objectives of the CCG, offer support and facilitate 
sharing of good practice, provide support to establish/re-establish 
dormant PPGs, assist with membership recruitment, and developed and 
consulted on good practice in respect of PPGs.  
 

iv. Held an event to gather insight and experience on end of life - talking to 
patient representatives, service users and groups supporting people at 
the end of life. Attendees considered patient stories and comments, and 
debated what changes could be made to improve patient experience. 
Priorities were identified which will be used to inform the re-
commissioning of services during 2014. 
 

v. Involved patients in the re-commissioning of the Cardio-Vascular 
Disease Service through a patient engagement event, surveys and home 
visits, and patient representation on the tender evaluation panel, to 
encourage patients to share their experience and views on the service 
and participate in the further development of the service model and 
specification. 
 

vi. Held a ‘Call to Action’ event, involving patient and third sector 
representatives, to invite participation in the national initiative and 
debated healthcare priorities for the future.    
 

vii. Held meetings, road shows, coffee mornings, engagement events and 
attended locally organised events to raise the profile and awareness of 
the CCG, its role and priorities, build relationships with community and 
stakeholder groups, consult on priorities and services, and listen to views 
and feedback on services.  
 

viii. Worked with the public to make the Governing Body meetings 
accessible, understandable and to ensure they feel that they and their 
contribution are valued. The Governing Body has an open forum for 
questions at the end of each meeting and in response to feedback has 
introduced public briefing prior to the meeting where the Lay Advisor for 
Patient and Public Involvement and senior managers take the members 
of the public who are present through the agenda and associated papers 
so they can understand the business and discussions. This has been 
extremely well received. 
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2.11.4 Contribution to the delivery of the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy 
 

a) The CCG has worked in partnership with the Local Authority, (through a section 
75 agreement), as an active member of the Knowsley Health and Wellbeing 
Board, and as a member of the wider Knowsley Strategic Partnership, 
including, representation on the Partnership Board, Executive Team and Area 
Partnership Boards) to develop Joint Strategic Needs Assessments1 and Joint 
Health and Wellbeing strategies2.. 

 
b) The Health and Wellbeing Board identified four priority areas of focus for the 

first 18 months: 
 

i. Mental Health 
 

ii. Alcohol 
 

iii. Respiratory disease/smoking 
 

iv. Appropriate, effective use of services 
 

c) Executive sponsorship of the priorities is split between the CCG and the Local 
Authority. The CCG sponsors the priority areas of Appropriate, effective use of 
services and Respiratory disease/smoking. 

 
d) In the past year the following progress has been achieved on each of the 

priority areas: 
 

Mental Health  
 

i. Reduction in waiting times and improved outcomes for improving access 
to psychological therapies (IAPT) 
 

ii. Reduction in emergency admissions for people in crisis. 
 

iii. Commissioned a review of child and adolescent mental health services 
(CAMHS) provision which is due to report early 2014-2015 

 
iv. An in depth review of mental health and wellbeing in Knowsley with the 

aim of remodelling services to best meet the needs of the population with 
an emphasis on prevention and where needed timely access to services 
provided closer to home which have parity with physical care. 

 
 
 

                                                           
1 See section 116 of the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007, as amended by 

section 192 of the 2012 Act 
2 See section 116Aof the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007, as inserted by 

section 191 of the 2012 Act 
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Alcohol 
 

i. A new Alcohol Liaison Service has had a positive impact upon admission 
avoidance and early discharge with a potentially significant saving being 
identified in terms of bed days. A Regular Attender Scheme was also 
introduced in October, and clinical protocols are also being developed to 
support fast track into community detoxification. 
 

ii. Two minute health message training has been delivered to 102 frontline 
staff at Merseyside Police, Mersey Fire and Rescue, the Big Help Project 
in Kirkby, and the Knowsley Metropolitan Council’s Anti-social Behaviour 
Team. 
 

iii. A new Kirkby Recovery Hub was opened in November. A new Alcohol 
Detoxification Nurse has also been recruited to focus on assessing for 
and delivering Community Detoxification regimes, to increase the 
number of people who successfully detox in the community. 
 

iv. In response to the Government’s announced decision to withdraw plans 
for a minimum unit price (MUP) on alcohol, North West Local Authority 
Chief Executives are now lobbying central government to introduce a 
national MUP and are also looking at implementing a MUP by-law. 

 
Respiratory disease/smoking 

 
i. A new service: Stop smoking; Smoke free Knowsley started in October. 

The service is being promoted through localised marketing campaigns.  
 

ii. Midwives and Home Start volunteers have received training to correctly 
record smoking status and encourage referrals for stop smoking support. 
 

iii. Review of the Community COPD Service to further improve outcomes. 
 

iv. The CCG has reviewed attendance at local A&Es of children presenting 
with respiratory issues. 72% of all attendances result in discharge with 
advice and guidance. Work is underway to gain an understanding of why 
parents and carers attend A&E with children and what they feel could be 
in place within the community to support them.  

 
Appropriate, effective use of services 

 
i. The ‘Examine your Options’ campaign (to encourage people to choose 

the right service for their needs), has continued to be promoted.  
 

ii. A new GP Out of Hours service was commissioned and mobilised from 
1st October 2013.  
 

iii. A range of pilot initiatives was implemented over the winter to support an 
anticipated increase in demand throughout the winter, by improving 
hospital discharges and avoiding unnecessary hospital admissions. This 
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included additional GP appointments, GP home visits and community 
intravenous therapy. 
 

iv. Improvements have also been made to the management of intermediate 
care step down beds. A new single point of access (in and out of hours) 
has been established for hospital discharge and A&E referrals, to 
receive, review and prioritise referrals based on clinical need and bed 
availability. Forward planning to support 7 day working and more timely 
discharge/improved bed utilisation, as well as processes to support 
referrals in from A&E, has also been developed. The new community IV 
therapy service has also been commissioned, to enable patients to be 
discharged from hospital earlier, or to avoid their admission to hospital in 
the first place. 
 

v. The CCG will continue to support the delivery of the Joint Health & 
Wellbeing Strategy which is closely aligned to the transformation 
programme and the BCF as part of that programme. 

 
We certify that the clinical commissioning group has complied with the 
statutory duties as laid down in the National Health Service Act 2006 (as 
amended). 

 

Dianne Johnson 
Accountable Officer 
6th June 2014  

 

3. Members Report 

3.1 Membership of the Clinical Membership Group and the Governing Body  

3.1.1 The CCG’s constitution and governance arrangements reflect a strong model 
of clinical leadership driven by the Clinical Membership Group, the 
Governing Body (comprising 50% GP clinical leads), and committees and 
sub committees; which include, GPs from both the Governing Body and 
member practices.  

 
3.1.2 The Clinical Membership Group, which was established in May 2012, is 

responsible for making key decisions regarding the CCG’s constitution, 
strategy, budget and partnership arrangements. The group is made up of 
representatives from each of the 33 Member practices, who ensure that 
information is communicated and discussed within the practices, and their 
views are reflected in decision making processes. (See Appendix 3 for 
Member practice details). 

 
3.1.3 The CCG’s governance structure is shown in the diagram overleaf 
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3.1.4 The membership of the Governing Body comprises elected clinical 
representatives from the area’s general practices, senior officers from within 
the organisation, nursing and secondary care representatives, and lay 
representatives.  

 
3.1.5 Dr Andrew Pryce is the Chair of the CCG, and Dianne Johnson is the 

Accountable Officer - both of whom are currently in post and have been for 
the full financial year. (See Appendix 4 for details on the full composition of 
the Clinical Membership Group.  Appendix 5 details the composition of the 
Governing Body throughout the year. Appendix 6 details the Clinical 
Membership Group profiles and Appendix 7 details the Governing Body 
profiles. Appendix 8 details the Register of Interests for the Clinical 
Membership Group and Appendix 9 details the Register of Interests for the 
Governing Body). Appendix 10 highlights the members of the Audit 
Committee throughout the year and up to the signing of the Annual Report 
and Accounts. 

 
3.2 Employee consultation 
 

3.2.1 The total headcount of staff within the CCG (based on payroll figures) at the 
end of the financial year was 55. This includes a shared finance team that 
provides accounting services for NHS Halton CCG and NHS St Helens CCG. 
See Appendix 11 for a full list of all CCG members of staff. 

 

Clinical Membership Group 

Chair: GP Elected by Membership 

Commissioning Group Governing Body 

Chair: Clinical Leader 

 

Clinical Quality & Safety 
Committee 

Chair: Secondary Care 
Doctor 

 

Audit Committee 

Chair: Lay Member – 
Audit & Governance 

 

HR & Remuneration 
Committee 

Chair: Lay Member - 
PPI 

 

Finance & 
Performance 
Committee 

Chair: Lay Member – 
Audit & Governance 

 

Medicine Management 
Sub-Committee 

Chair: Lay Member – 
Quality & Safety  
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3.2.2 The CCG believes that a positive and inclusive approach to employment 
relations is conducive to the achievement of individual, service and business 
objectives. The CCG actively promotes an open and honest culture, 
encouraging its staff to share their feedback regarding the issues that are 
important to them.  

 
3.2.3 As such, the CCG has developed a positive approach to staff engagement 

and involvement this year. Being a small organisation, face to face updates, 
briefings and development forums, have been found to have been the most 
effective - providing staff with increased opportunity to have direct contact 
with and feedback and updates from the Accountable Officer and the senior 
management team. Such updates, briefings and discussion forums have 
provided a platform for staff to learn about the priorities, successes, 
achievements and direction of travel of the organisation. They have also 
provided regular opportunities for staff to gain a better understanding of how 
they each fit into the organisation and add value, and can participate in the 
decision making processes. 

 
3.2.4  A local staff survey was also undertaken half way through the year to enable 

the senior management team to gain anonymous/reflective feedback on all 
aspects of staff communication, engagement and involvement. The staff 
feedback has since informed an updated communications and engagement 
plan, which proposes an increase in written formats of communication - 
providing staff with a larger and more varied suite of communication and 
engagement channels to access along with staff groups to look at specific 
areas e.g. improvements to the kitchen/rest area. 

 
3.2.5 The CCG is a member of the Cheshire and Merseyside Staff Partnership 

Forum which is a group of staff side and CCG representatives who work 
together to develop and shape harmonised Human Resources policies. 

 
3.2.6 The CCG has a robust legacy Change Management Policy and Procedure in 

place, which sets out the consultation process for small changes, TUPE 
situations, and also, the statutory legal obligations around consultation in 
redundancy situations. A revised Change Management Policy is currently in 
development, which once approved, will proceed to the Staff Partnership 
Forum to be fully ratified. This will enforce the principles of consultation. 

 
3.2.7 The Staff Partnership Forum was put in place to promote excellent 

partnership arrangements with external organisations and Trade Unions, to 
ensure that CCGs openly discuss, challenge, and agree, initiatives that have 
a positive impact on both CCG staff and the organisation.  

 
3.2.8 The Partnership Forum provides a formal vehicle for the agreement of types, 

forms and content of information, and general consultative communication 
exchanges between managers and staff.  
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3.3 Disabled employees  
 

3.3.1 The CCG has duties to meet under the Equality Act 2010 in relation to 
workforce and organisational development. It has therefore taken positive 
steps to ensure that policies across the CCG deal with equality implications 
around recruitment and selection, pay and benefits, flexible working hours, 
training, development and promotion, policies around managing employees, 
and protecting employees from harassment, victimisation and discrimination.  

 
3.3.2 The CCG ensures that full and fair consideration is given to applications for 

employment made by disabled persons, having regard to their particular 
aptitudes and abilities. 

 
3.3.3 The CCG’s Equality Objective plan was approved in October 2013 in line 

with the duties and requirements under the Equality Act 2010. An Equality 
Delivery System Self-Assessment was completed between July and October 
2013, and supported the development of the objectives. The CCG was self-
assessed as ‘Developing’, reflecting its status as a new commissioning 
organisation.   

 
3.3.4 The Equality Objective plan lays out clear work streams that will support the 

CCG to meet and pay due regard to meeting the Public Sector Equality Duty 
to:  

 
a) Eliminate discrimination  
b) Advance equality of opportunity  
c) Foster good community relations  

 
3.3.5 The CCG’s Attendance Management Policy supports disabled employees 

and states that where the employee is disabled, within the meaning of the 
Equality Act 2010, or where employees become disabled and wish to remain 
in employment, every effort will be made to make reasonable adjustments, 
provide appropriate training, or find an alternative post. 

 
3.4 Equal opportunities  
 

3.4.1 The CCG is committed to equality of opportunity for all employees and is 
committed to employment practices, policies and procedures which ensure 
that no employee, or potential employee, receives less favourable treatment 
on the grounds of gender, race, colour, ethnic or national origin, sexual 
orientation, marital status, religion or belief, age, trade union membership, 
disability, offending background, domestic circumstances, social and 
employment status, HIV status, gender reassignment, political affiliation, or 
any other personal characteristic as outlined in the Equality Act (2010) and 
any other status covered by the Human Rights Act (1998).   
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3.4.2 Diversity is viewed positively and in recognising that everyone is different, 
the unique contribution that each individual’s experience, knowledge and 
skills can make is valued equally.  

 
3.4.3 It is a condition of employment that all employees respect and act in 

accordance with the Equality and Diversity Policy. Failure to do so will result 
in the disciplinary procedure being instigated, which could result in dismissal. 

 
3.4.4 The CCG has an Equality and Diversity Policy which was approved by the 

Staff Partnership Forum in December 2013. It highlights how the CCG will 
promote (through training and guidance), the impartial application of all 
employment policies and procedures, and will take action to deal with all 
inappropriate behaviour. The responsibilities regarding equality and diversity 
are also positively incorporated into employee training at all levels, from 
induction courses to statutory and mandatory training and senior 
management workshops. 

 
3.5 Sickness absence data  
 

3.5.1 The cumulative sickness absence rate for the CCG for the nine months to 
December was an average of 1.7 days of absence per full time equivalent 
member of staff. Further details are contained in note 4.3 to the financial 
statements. 

 
3.5.2 A revised and harmonised Attendance Management Policy was approved by 

the Staff Partnership Forum on 13 June 2013, which ensures that the CCG 
has a robust policy and procedure in place for supporting its staff with 
attendance issues, and managing these in a fair and equitable way. The 
CCG proactively managed both short-term and long-term sickness absence 
in line with this policy, with sickness absence being reported on a monthly 
basis in the Human Resources Management Framework Report.   

 
3.5.3 The CCG recognises the importance of a positive approach to the 

management of sickness absence to enable it to operate effectively. The 
CCG is committed to providing the necessary support to employees for them 
to attend work regularly and to ensure that all employees are treated in a 
consistent, fair, and sympathetic manner. 

 
3.5.4 The CCG’s commitment to the welfare of employees includes the following 

initiatives: counselling, redeployment where appropriate, and training for all 
new employees on health and safety issues. Employees are also 
encouraged to use the confidential services of the Occupational Health that 
can be accessed directly. 

 
3.6 Pension liabilities 
 

3.6.1 Accounting treatment for pension costs and liabilities is outlined in note 4.5 of 
the Annual Accounts. 
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3.7 Emergency preparedness, resilience and response 
 

3.7.1 The CCG is classified as a Category 2 responder under the Civil 
Contingencies Act. In compliance with the Act, the CCG has the following 
arrangements in place: 

 
3.7.2 A system to enable service providers and NHSE to be able to contact the 

CCG in an emergency is in place through a local shared CCG on-call rota. 
This has been tested throughout the year by NHS England and has been 
shown to be sufficient and compliant. 

 
3.7.3 The CCG has in place a Business Continuity and Incident Response plan 

which complies with the relevant aspects of International Standard for 
Business Continuity ISO 22301 and the NHS Core Standards. This plan has 
been tested during 2013 and was found to be compliant. 

 
3.7.4 The CCG has in place an Incident Control Room which is fit for purpose to 

enable duties to be performed to assist NHSE in the event of an Emergency. 
The control room has been tested during a power outage (business 
disruption) in 2013 and was found to be sufficient and compliant. The CCG 
has plans in place to carry out further testing during an exercise in 2014. 

 
We certify that the clinical commissioning group has incident response plans in 
place, which are fully compliant with the NHS Commissioning Board Emergency 
Preparedness Framework 2013. The clinical commissioning group regularly 
reviews and makes improvements to its major incident plan and has a 
programme for regularly testing this plan, the results of which are reported to 
the Governing Body. 
 

3.8 Disclosure of serious untoward incidents 
 

3.8.1 The CCG’s arrangements for Information Governance are described in the 
Governance Statement of this report. 

 
3.8.2 There were no incidents involving data loss or confidentiality breaches during 

the year. 
 
3.9 Principles for Remedy 
 

3.9.1 The CCG has adopted the Parliamentary and Health Service Ombudsman’s 
‘Principles for Remedy’ in respect of the steps that public bodies should take 
where they have caused injustice or hardship by maladministration, or 
service failure. These principles form part of the CCG’s Complaints Policy 
which highlights that the CCG aims to: 

 
a) Get it right – by ensuring compliance with the law, statutory powers and duties, 

and the CCG’s own policies and procedures; acting reasonably and fairly in 
making decisions, commissioning quality and effective services through 
competent, trained staff, and where things go wrong, handling and investigating 
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complaints well, and taking steps to remedy any injustice and hardship suffered 
and avoid any recurrence. 

 
b) Be customer focused – by commissioning accessible services; providing clear 

and understandable information about services and customers’ entitlements; 
doing what it says or if it can’t explain why, behaving helpfully, being sensitive 
to individual needs and flexible in response to circumstances, coordinating with 
other public authorities and providers, and promptly identifying and 
acknowledging failures or poor service and apologising. 

 
c) Be open and accountable – by handling information as openly as the law 

allows while respecting the privacy of personal and confidential information; 
providing clear, accurate, complete, relevant, and timely information and 
advice, being open and truthful about the reasons for its decisions and actions; 
maintaining reliable and useable records, and taking responsibility for the 
actions of its staff and others acting on its behalf. 

 
d) Act fairly and proportionately – by listening to its customers; treating people 

equally, impartially, fairly and consistently; managing conflicts of interest 
appropriately to avoid prejudicing decisions or actions, ensuring any penalties 
or remedies applied are fair, reasonable and proportionate, in handling 
complaints ensuring that complainants are not discriminated against in relation 
to any on-going services and that staff as well as customers are treated fairly in 
the process. 

 
e) Put things right – when mistakes happen by acknowledging them; 

apologising, explaining what went wrong, and putting things right quickly and 
effectively, where possible putting things back to the position they would have 
been in if nothing had gone wrong. 

 
f) Seek continuous improvement – by reviewing policies and procedures 

regularly; seeking and using feedback to improve delivery and performance, 
capturing and reviewing the lessons learned from complaints to develop 
services, and reporting on complaints handling performance and its outcomes. 

 
3.10 External Audit 
 

3.10.1 The CCG’s external auditor is Grant Thornton. The cost of external audit 
services in 2013-14 was £79,400 including VAT. 

 
3.11 Cost allocation and setting of charges for information 
 

3.11.1 The CCG’s Access Requests Policy sets out the circumstances in which it 
may charge for subject access requests, and the CCG’s Freedom of 
Information Policy sets out the circumstances in which it may charge for the 
provision of information.  

  
We certify that the clinical commissioning group has complied with HM 
Treasury’s guidance on cost allocation and the setting of charges for 
information. 
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Each individual who is a member of the Governing Body at the time the 
Member’s Report is approved confirms that: 

So far as the member is aware, that there is no relevant audit information of 
which the clinical commissioning group’s external auditor is unaware; and, 

That the member has taken all steps that they ought to have taken as a member 
in order to make themself aware of any relevant audit information and to 
establish that the clinical commissioning group’s auditor is aware of that 
information.   

 

 
Dianne Johnson 
Accountable Officer 
6th June 2014  
 

4. Remuneration report 
 
4.1 The CCG defines senior managers as those staff on the payroll that sit on the 

Governing Body. 
 
4.2 Remuneration Committee Report 
 

4.2.1 The Human Resources and Remuneration Committee is responsible for 
determining the CCG’s human resources policies, and the remuneration, 
fees and other allowances for Governing Body members and employees 

 
4.2.2 Approve the pay, terms & conditions, including allowances, for governing 

body members, including pensions and gratuities  
 
4.2.3 Approve the pay, terms & conditions, including allowances, pension, 

remuneration and fees, of employees  
 
4.2.4 Additional delegated functions of the Remuneration Committee include, to: 
 

a) Prepare disciplinary arrangements for employees 
b) Prepare disciplinary arrangements for the Accountable Officer 
c) Prepare disciplinary arrangements where the Accountable Officer or Chief  

Financial Officer is an employee or member of another CCG 
d) Ensure policies and procedures for employees are reviewed and developed in 

line with the requirements of the equality act, this will include reviewing and 
developing diversity in the workforce   

e) Prepare human resources policies for employees and other persons working 
on behalf of the group. 
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4.2.5 See Appendix 12 for the full list of all Remuneration Committee members 
and their level of attendance at meetings throughout the year. 

 
4.2.6 Dianne Johnson, Accountable Officer, is not a member of the Remuneration 

Committee, but has regularly (throughout the year) provided information to 
the committee to assist the committee in their consideration of matters. 

 
4.3 Remuneration Policies  
 

4.3.1 The remuneration of the CCG’s senior managers as described in the CCG’s 
Remuneration Policy, is determined by the Remuneration Committee, i.e. for 
the following senior manager positions: Accountable Officer and Chief 
Finance Officer.  

 
4.3.2 The remuneration package for the Accountable Officer and Chief Finance 

Officer has been set in line with the guidance provided by NHSE. The Chief 
Finance Officer is a shared post with NHS Halton CCG and NHS St Helens 
CCG. 

 
4.3.3 The CCG’s Remuneration Policy will be reviewed annually to ensure the 

organisation is able to recruit, motivate, reward and retain senior managers 
of the highest standard. 

 
4.3.4 The CCG follows national HR policies and procedures in line with nationally 

recognised pay scales, duration of contracts, notice periods and termination 
payments. 

 
4.3.5 Each senior manager in the CCG has an open ended contract, with a start 

date of 1st April 2013. The notice period for the Accountable Officer and Chief 
Finance Officer is 6 months. Compensation for early termination of contract 
will be in line with national policies and procedures.  

 
4.3.6 In respect of pay awards for Lay Members of the Governing Body, these are 

made in line with Department of Health guidance for non-executive directors 
of NHS trusts and are reviewed annually. Lay Advisor contracts are for two 
years and the termination period is one month. Any payments for early 
termination of contract would be made in line with Department of Health 
guidelines. 

 
4.3.7 The remuneration of the Group’s Secondary Care Advisor is in line with 

NHSE guidance and is reviewed annually. 
 
4.3.8 The CCG has a robust appraisal process in place for Governing Body 

members, but does not, at this time, operate a performance-related pay 
framework.  

 
4.3.9 The Governing Body's Clinical Leads are elected by the membership and are 

not employees of the CCG at this time. They are elected by their peers for a 
fixed term period which varies for those in place at 1st April 2013 and range 
from eighteen months to three years. Subsequent elected representatives 
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will be for a period of three years from the date of their election. 
Remuneration, based on Hays guidance produced for the North West, is for 
a set number of sessions and is paid to the practice to provide back fill for 
the release of the Clinical Lead to carry out the role. 

 
4.3.10 The remuneration (pay and conditions) of all other employees is in line with 

the national Agenda for Change policy.  
 
4.3.11 See Appendix 4 and Appendix 5 for a full list of the members of both the 

Clinical Management Group and the Governing Body. 
 

4.4 Salaries and allowances 
 

4.4.1 Table 1 overleaf highlights the salaries and allowances of each the CCG’s 
senior managers, in a table format. 

 
4.4.2 The CCG does not provide senior managers with taxable benefits, other than 

those of salary, i.e. expenses allowances and travel allowances and access 
to lease cars. 

 
4.4.3 The CCG does not pay its senior managers annual performance related 

bonuses, long-term performance related bonuses, performance bonuses 
classed as ‘additional matters’, or pension related benefits. 

 
4.4.4 No payment has been paid this year or in the previous year, to any senior 

manager for loss of office.  
 
4.4.5 The CCG has also not made any payments this year to any past senior 

manager. 
 

4.5 Pension benefits 
 

4.5.1 See Table 2 overleaf for pension benefits of the CCG’s senior managers 
. 
4.5.2 The table also highlights Cash Equivalent Transfer Values (CETV). 
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Name Title Note

Salary and 
Fees 

(bands of 
£5,000) 

Taxable 
Benefits 

(rounded to 
the nearest 

£00) 

Annual 
Performance 

Related 
Bonuses 
(bands of 

£5,000) 

Long Term 
Performance 

Related 
Bonuses 
(bands of 

£5,000) 

All Pension 
Related 

Benefits (bands 
of £2,500)

Total (bands of 
£5,000)

£000 £00 £000 £000 £000 £000

Ayegba, Dr Peter Clinical Lead for Mental 
Health 1, 2 0 0 0 0 0 0

Brickwood, Paul Chief Finance Officer 3 35 - 40 17 0 0 57.5 - 60.0 95 - 100

Conway, Dr Paul Clinical Lead for Quality 
& Safety 1 25 - 30 0 0 0 0 25 - 30

Hossain, Dr Aftab Clinical Lead for 
Prescribing 1 25 - 30 0 0 0 0 25 - 30

Johnson, Dianne Accountable Officer 120 - 125 34 0 0 325.0 - 327.5 445 - 450

Maassarani, Dr Faisal Clinical Lead for 
Unplanned Care 1 30 - 35 0 0 0 0 30 - 35

Macmillan, Dr Robin Secondary Care Doctor 1 20 - 25 0 0 0 0 20 - 25
Pryce, Dr Andrew Governing Body Chair 1 55 - 60 0 0 0 0 55 - 60

Sadiq, Dr Pervez Clinical Lead for Women 
and Children 1 25 - 30 0 0 0 0 25 - 30

Stokoe, Dr David Clinical Lead for Primary 
Care Quality 1 25 - 30 0 0 0 0 25 - 30

Tewari, Dr Shweta Clinical Lead for Planned 
Care 1 25 - 30 0 0 0 0 25 - 30

Thong, Dr Ronnie Clinical Lead for Strategy 
& Planning 1 25 - 30 0 0 0 0 25 - 30

Verma, Dr Sudershan Clinical Lead for Mental 
Health 1, 4 0 - 5 0 0 0 0 0 - 5

Worthington, Breeda Head of Quality & 
Safety/Lead Nurse 65 - 70 0 0 0 75.0 - 77.5 140 - 145

Broderick, Mark Lay Advisor/ Assistant 
Chief Officer 5 0 - 5 0 0 0 0 0 - 5

Austen-Vincent, Ruth Lay Advisor 10 - 15 0 0 0 0 10 - 15
Bramley, Susan Lay Advisor 6 0 - 5 0 0 0 0 0 - 5
Quinlan, Dilys Lay Advisor 7 0 - 5 0 0 0 0 0 - 5

2013-14  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

    

Table 1     
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Note that as the first year of existence of NHS Knowsley CCG there are no comparative figures for the prior year.  
Taxable benefits are in respect of lease vehicles and mileage and are shown in £ hundreds. 
 
 

            Notes: 
            1. Clinical leads are paid via their GP practices and the amounts shown are the amounts paid to the practice rather than to the individual. 

2.  Dr Ayegba was a member of the Governing Body from 29th July 2013 
        3. Paul Brickwood's remuneration is split across NHS Knowsley CCG, NHS Halton CCG and NHS St. Helen's CCG. The remuneration costs shown represent the  

CCG's share of the total remuneration paid by the three CCG's. The total remuneration paid was within the band £115,000 to £120,000 and the allocation of cost to the CCG 
 is based upon constrained population across the three CCG's as shown below.  

 
 

 
 

Constrained 
Population % 

          
NHS Halton CCG 124,104 26 

          
NHS Knowsley CCG 149,108 33 

          
NHS St. Helens CCG 186,743 41 

 
 
 

          
 
4. Dr Verma was a member of the Governing Body until May 2013 

        5. Mark Broderick was a Lay Advisor until 22nd September 2013. From 23rd September 2013 to 31st March 2014 he was the Assistant Chief Officer, 
Knowsley CCG 

  6. Susan Bramley was a Lay Advisor from 15th November 2013 
         7. Dilys Quinlan was a Lay Advisor from 3rd December 2013 
         

   Reporting bodies are required to disclose the relationship between the remuneration of the highest-paid director in their organisation  
and the median remuneration of the organisation’s workforce. 
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The banded remuneration of the highest paid member of the Governing Body in NHS Knowsley CCG in the financial year 2013-14 was £120,000 - 125,000.   
This was 4.1 times the median remuneration of the workforce, which was £30,079.96. 
In 2013-14, no employees received remuneration in excess of the highest-paid member of the Governing Body.  

Total remuneration includes salary, non-consolidated performance-related pay, benefits-in-kind, but not severance payments. 
 It does not include employer pension contributions and the cash equivalent transfer value of pensions. 
This calculation is based on full time equivalent employees in post at 31 March 2014 on an annualised basis, includes staff that are being paid through 
the payroll system and agency workers. As the CCG is not party to the actual amount earned by agency workers an estimate of their salary,  
based upon the charge out rate from the agency, has been included for this calculation. The median remuneration is the total remuneration of the staff member 
lying in the middle of the linear distribution of the total staff, excluding the highest paid director. A median will not be significantly affected by large or small 
salaries that may skew an average (mean) – hence it is more transparent in highlighting whether a director is being paid significantly more than the  
middle staff in the organisation. 
 
The CCG had no off-payroll engagements as of 31 March for more than £220 per day and which have lasted longer than six months. 
Elements of the Remuneration Report are subject to audit, namely; the salary and pension entitlements of Governing Body members,  
compensation paid to former Governing Body members, details of amounts payable to third parties for the services of a Governing Body member 
 (if any), the median remuneration of the CCG’s staff and the ratio between this and the mid-point of the banded remuneration of the highest paid  
member of the Governing Body. 
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Other Attendees
Include in 

Remuneration 
Report/Related 

Parties note 01/05/13 06/06/13 04/07/13 05/09/13 03/10/13 07/11/13 05/12/13

Matthew Ashton
Director of Public Health, 
Knowsley MBC No √ √ x √ √ x x

Margi O'Mara Healthwatch Representative No √ √

Dawn Boyer - Note 1
Head of Corporate Services, 
Knowsley CCG No √ √ √ √ √ √ √

Tom Fairclough
Head of Commissioning, 
Knowsley CCG No √ √ √ √ Not in post Not in post Not in post

Andrea Kelly Minutes No √ √ x √ √ √ √

Dr Simon Perritt
Deputy Clinical Lead - 
Unplanned Care No x √ √ √ √ x x

Lorraine Frodsham Minutes No x x √ x x x x
Clare Barrow Senior Finance Manager No x x x x x √ x

Philip Thomas
Programme Director - 
Transformational Change No Not in post Not in post Not in post Not in post x √ √

Note 1 Attends the Governing Body on a regular basis but is not deemed to have influence and therefore should not be included in Remuneration report. 
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Table 2 

 

 
 
 Dianne Johnson 

Accountable Officer 
6th June 2014  
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5. Statements by Accountable Officer 
 
Statement of Accountable Officer’s Responsibilities 
 
5.1 The National Health Service Act 2006 (as amended) states that each Clinical 

Commissioning Group shall have an Accountable Officer and that Officer shall be 
appointed by the NHS Commissioning Board (NHSE). NHSE has appointed the 
Accountable Officer to be the Accountable Officer of the Clinical Commissioning 
Group.  

 
5.2 The responsibilities of an Accountable Officer, including responsibilities for the 

propriety and regularity of the public finances for which the Accountable Officer is 
answerable, for keeping proper accounting records (which disclose with 
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Clinical 
Commissioning Group and enable them to ensure that the accounts comply with 
the requirements of the Accounts Direction) and for safeguarding the CCG’s 
assets (and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of 
fraud and other irregularities), are set out in the CCG Accountable Officer 
Appointment Letter.  

 
5.3 Under the National Health Service Act 2006 (as amended), NHSE has directed 

each CCG to prepare for each financial year financial statements in the form and 
on the basis set out in the Accounts Direction. The financial statements are 
prepared on an accruals basis and must give a true and fair view of the state of 
affairs of the CCG and of its net expenditure, changes in taxpayers’ equity and 
cash flows for the financial year.  

 
5.4 In preparing the financial statements, the Accountable Officer is required to 

comply with the requirements of the Manual for Accounts issued by the 
Department of Health and in particular to:  

 
a) Observe the Accounts Direction issued by NHSE, including the relevant 

accounting and disclosure requirements, and apply suitable accounting 
policies on a consistent basis;  

b) Make judgements and estimates on a reasonable basis;  
c) State whether applicable accounting standards as set out in the Manual for 

Accounts issued by the Department of Health have been followed, and 
disclose and explain any material departures in the financial statements; 
and, 

d) Prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis.  
 
5.5 To the best of my knowledge and belief, I have properly discharged the 

responsibilities set out in my Clinical Commissioning Group Accountable Officer 
Appointment Letter.  

 
 
 
Dianne Johnson 
Accountable Officer  
6th June 2014 
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6.  Governance Statement 
 
6.1 Introduction & Context 
 

6.1.1 The clinical commissioning group was licenced from 1 April 2013 under 
provisions enacted in the Health & Social Care Act 2012, which amended the 
National Health Service Act 2006. 

 
6.1.2 The clinical commissioning group operated in shadow form prior to 1 April 

2013, to allow for the completion of the licencing process and the 
establishment of function, systems and processes prior to the clinical 
commission group taking on its full powers. 

 
6.1.3 As at 1st April 2013, the clinical commissioning group was licensed without 

conditions.  
 

6.2 Scope of Responsibility 
 

6.2.1 As Accountable Officer, I have responsibility for maintaining a sound system 
of internal control that supports the achievement of the CCG’s policies, aims 
and objectives, whilst safeguarding the public funds and assets for which I 
am personally responsible, in accordance with the responsibilities assigned 
to me in Managing Public Money. I also acknowledge my responsibilities as 
set out in my Clinical Commissioning Group Accountable Officer 
Appointment Letter. 

 
6.2.2 I am responsible for ensuring that the CCG is administered prudently and 

economically and that resources are applied efficiently and effectively, 
safeguarding financial propriety and regularity. 

 
6.3 Compliance with the UK Corporate Governance Code 
 

6.3.1 We are not required to comply with the UK Corporate Governance Code. 
However, we have reported on our Corporate Governance arrangements by 
drawing upon best practice available, including those aspects of the UK 
Corporate Governance Code we consider to be relevant to the CCG and 
best practice. 

   
6.4 The CCG’s Governance Framework 
 
6.4.1 The National Health Service Act 2006 (as amended), at paragraph 14L(2)(b) 

states: 
 
The main function of the governing body is to ensure that the group has made 
appropriate arrangements for ensuring that it complies with such generally 
accepted principles of good governance as are relevant to it. 

 
6.4.2 The constitution commits the CCG to observe principles of good governance 

in the way it conducts its business, including the Nolan principles, NHS 
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constitution, Equality Act 2010, and probity in stewardship of public funds, 
business conduct and the management of the organisation. 

 
6.4.3 The constitution commits the CCG to demonstrating its accountability to its 

members, local people, stakeholders, and the NHSE by publishing 
information; appointing lay members and including GPs, other clinicians and 
patient representatives on decision making forums; involving patients, 
clinicians and community groups in commissioning; supporting PPGs; 
responding to complaints and requests for information; and encouraging and 
acting on feedback. 

 
6.4.4 The CCG’s governance structure comprises the Clinical Membership Group 

(CMG), the Governing Body and its committees, which are the Audit 
Committee, the Human Resources and Remuneration Committee, the 
Finance and Performance Committee, the Quality and Safety Committee and 
the Medicines Management Sub-Committee which is accountable to the 
Clinical Quality and Safety Committee. The governance structure chart is on 
page 27/28 of the Members Report. 

 
6.4.5 The Clinical Membership Group has reserved to itself the power to 

approve: changes to the constitution for submission to the NHSE; the 
scheme of reservation and delegation; who can execute a document; the 
arrangements for identifying practice representatives, appointing to the 
governing body and post of accountable officer; the vision, values, strategy, 
commissioning plan, annual budget and variations of more than 1%; 
arrangements to support NHSE to improve general medical services; 
arrangements for risk sharing or pooling and pooled budgets; and 
arrangements for coordinating the commissioning of services with other 
CCGs /Local Authorities. 

 
6.4.6 The CMG has carried out is reserved duties in the first year and has 

approved the commissioning plan and budget for 2014-15. A performance 
and effectiveness evaluation will be completed for the first year of operation 
on 3rd June 2014. The evaluation report will be used as appropriate to further 
develop the CMG’s performance and effectiveness in 2014-15 

 
6.4.7 The Governing Body is responsible for ensuring that the CCG has 

appropriate arrangements in place to exercise its functions effectively, 
efficiently and economically and in accordance with the CCG’s principles of 
good governance (its main function); determining remuneration, fees and 
other allowances; and approving any functions of the CCG that are specified 
in regulations. 

 
6.4.8 In addition the Clinical Membership Group has delegated to the Governing 

Body power to approve: the operational scheme of delegation; arrangements 
for making exceptional funding requests;  arrangements, including supporting 
policies, to minimise clinical risks and improve quality; proposals for action 
on litigation against or on behalf of the clinical commissioning group; 
arrangements for business continuity and emergency planning; 
arrangements for information governance; contracts for any commissioning 
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support; contracts for corporate support; arrangements for delivery of  
commissioning statutory duties;  arrangements for handling freedom of 
information requests; detailed financial policies; risk management 
arrangements; system of internal control, including budgetary control; and 
arrangements for handling complaints. 

 
6.4.9 The Governing Body has worked well throughout the first year approving a 

number of policies such as safeguarding, HR and Information Governance. 
The Governing Body takes a robust approach to overseeing the quality of 
provision to the local population and has actively promoted the values of the 
CCG as stated in the constitution. During the year the Governing Body also 
took the decision to competitively tender the Community CVD Service.  

 
6.4.10 The Governing body will evaluate its performance and effectiveness 

throughout 2013-2014 on 29th May 2014 and the feedback will inform the 
development plan for 2014-2015. 

 
6.4.11 The Audit Committee provides the governing body with an independent and 

objective view of the CCG’s financial systems, financial information and 
compliance with laws, regulations and directions governing the group in so 
far as they relate to finance. In addition the Governing Body has delegated 
power to the Audit Committee to approve the annual report and accounts, 
and counter fraud and security management arrangements. 

 
6.4.12 During the year the Audit Committee has approved and monitored the 

delivery of both the Internal Audit Plan and the Counter Fraud Plan. It has 
reviewed the CCG’s Detailed Financial Policies, Anti-Fraud, Bribery, and 
Corruption Policy, and Information Governance Strategy and Policies prior to 
Governing Body approval. It has also scrutinised the Assurance Framework 
and the arrangements for Information Governance, both of which received 
significant assurance by Internal Audit. 

 
6.4.13 The Human Resources and Remuneration Committee makes 

recommendations to the governing body on determinations about the 
remuneration, fees and other allowances for employees and for people who 
provide services to the group and on determinations about allowances under 
any pension scheme that the group may establish as an alternative to the 
NHS pension scheme. In addition the Governing Body has delegated power 
to the Human Resources and Remuneration Committee to approve: the pay, 
terms and conditions for governing body members; disciplinary 
arrangements for employees; human resources policies; and to prepare 
disciplinary arrangements where the Accountable Officer or Chief Finance 
Officer is an employee or member of another CCG.  

 
6.4.14 During the year the Human Resources and Remuneration Committee has 

established the remuneration arrangements for the Governing Body and 
senior officers and approved a range of key human resources policies.  

 
6.4.15 The Finance and Performance Committee monitors the CCG’s overall 

financial position, delivery of the QIPP Programme, the performance of 
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commissioned services, and CCG key performance indicators and will advise 
the governing body on all financial and performance matters, oversee the 
delivery of plans by CCG senior officers, and provide assurance to the Audit 
Committee in respect of the discharge of statutory functions in line with the 
Standing Financial Instructions. 

 
6.4.16 During the year the Finance and Performance Committee has provided 

oversight of the financial and performance management of the CCG. It has 
provided challenge in respect of the range and quality of performance 
reporting and contributed to the development and improvement of these 
arrangements.  

 
6.4.17 The Clinical Quality and Safety Committee oversees quality and safety 

assurance processes across all commissioned services, and provides 
assurance to the Governing Body that quality and patient safety activity is 
coordinated and transparent ensuring a coherent and systematic review of 
the system. 

 
6.4.18 During the year the Clinical Quality and Safety Committee has scrutinised 

performance at the CCG’s main providers and has worked with the 
commissioning support provider to develop reporting mechanisms an early 
warning dashboard. The committee has established a patient experience sub 
group which looks at the key areas of commissioning responsibility. During 
2013-2014 the group carried out an extensive piece of work around the 
sensitive area of End of Life care and this was supported by Healthwatch as 
members of the Patient Experience Group. In March the committee met with 
a key provider of mental health services to explore the governance 
processes and determine together how service improvements for the benefit 
of patients can be achieved, and is currently working with the LA to improve 
the quality of care home provision. 

 
6.4.19 The committee will evaluate performance and effectiveness during 2013-

2014 on 2nd May 2014 and the feedback will be used to inform the 
committee’s development plan in 2014-2015. 

 
6.4.20 The Medicines Management Sub-Committee develops and approves 

recommendations including policy statements on new drugs, local formulary 
and guidelines, shared care agreements, local action on safe use of 
medicines and NICE guidance, ensures safe effective and economic use of 
medicines, improves consistency of patient experience and provides 
assurance to the governing body that safe, effective and good governance 
procedures are adopted relating to all aspects of medicines and prescribing. 

 
6.4.21 The sub-committee has developed a work plan which is being implemented 

and this includes areas such as improving the quality of prescribing practice, 
reducing waste and developing shared care arrangements with providers. In 
addition the sub-committee has shaped the development of a Prescribing 
Quality Premium which uses a more individual approach to improving the 
quality of prescribing through the development of practice based action plans 
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to improve performance during 2014-15 as well as delivering improvement in 
three stated areas of prescribing during 2013-2014. 

 
6.4.22 The sub-committee evaluated its performance and effectiveness during 

2013-2014 at its meeting on 16th April and the feedback will be used to 
inform the sub-committee’s development in 2014-2015. 

 
6.4.23 Details of attendance at meetings of the CMG, the Governing Body and its 

committees and sub-committees are provided in appendix 12 on pages 81-
91. 

 
6.5 The CCG Risk Management Framework 
 

6.5.1 The CCG has developed and approved a Risk Management Strategy. The 
key elements of this are a statement of intent, strategic objectives for risk 
management, an accountability and organisational structure for risk 
management, systems and processes for managing risk, training and 
development, communication and monitoring the effectiveness of the 
strategy. 

 
6.5.2 Strategic and operational risks are identified from external sources, including 

external assessments and inspections, patient and provider feedback; and 
internal sources, including members, staff, governance committees, 
planning, project management, incidents and audits. 

 
6.5.3 Risk assessments are completed and mitigating actions identified as 

required, which is recorded, registered and scrutinised. Risk assessments 
and risk registers are regularly reviewed and updated. The risk management 
strategy defines criteria, reflecting the organisation’s risk appetite, for 
evaluating, treating and escalating risk. The process for identification and 
escalation of risk is illustrated below: 
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6.5.4 Risk management is embedded into the governance and decision making of 
the CCG, planning and performance management, and is a key element of 
the commissioning and project management processes. Patient and public 
engagement is central to the prioritisation, development and commissioning 
activity of the CCG. Through this, risks to the quality, effectiveness, and 
delivery of commissioned services in a way which meets the needs of all 
parts of the community are identified, evaluated and mitigated through the 
design and management of commissioned services. In addition to proactively 
managing risk, incidents and issues are used as a learning tool to develop 
and improve the control framework.  

 
6.5.5 The key control mechanisms in place are: 
 

a) Governance structures, with clearly defined terms of reference, roles and 
explicit responsibilities for scrutiny and assurance; 

b) An accountability and reporting framework, with clearly defined roles and 
responsibilities; 

c) Clear strategies and plans with associated monitoring and review 
mechanisms; 

d) Policies, procedures and guidance, supported by communication, training 
and development; 

e) Robust contracts and service level agreements and effective contract 
management processes 

f) Robust and effective performance, financial, risk, and project 
management; 

g) An internal control framework, including independent, external assurance. 
 

6.5.6 These mechanisms provide a holistic system for prevention, deterrence and 
management of risks.   

 
6.6 The CCG Internal Control Framework 
 

6.6.1 A system of internal control is the set of processes and procedures in place 
in the CCG to ensure it delivers its policies, aims and objectives. It is 
designed to identify and prioritise the risks, to evaluate the likelihood of those 
risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage 
them efficiently, effectively and economically. 

 
6.6.2 The system of internal control allows risk to be managed to a reasonable 

level rather than eliminating all risk; it can therefore only provide reasonable 
and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. 

 
6.6.3 The CCG’s internal control framework comprises: 
 

a) The Governing Body Assurance Framework, which is framed around the 
CCG’s goals and objectives. This is developed, reviewed and managed by 
the CCG’s Senior Management Team, reported quarterly to the Governing 
Body and scrutinised by the Audit Committee. 

b) An internal audit service commissioned from Merseyside Internal Audit 
Agency (MIAA) and delivering a comprehensive and balanced audit plan 
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which is approved and monitored by the Audit Committee. This provides 
an objective challenge and valuable insight into risks, control weaknesses 
and opportunities for improvement. 

c) A local counter fraud service commissioned from MIAA and delivering 
advice and support on Anti-Fraud, Bribery and Corruption Policy and a 
Counter Fraud Plan which is approved and monitored by the Audit 
Committee. 

d) The Audit Committee, which is chaired by a Lay Member, to provide 
effective and objective scrutiny and challenge to the systems of 
governance, risk management and internal control that support the CCG’s 
overall objectives. 

e) The application of agreed policies and procedures including the Prime and 
Detailed Financial Policies 

 
6.6.4 This internal control framework is informed and assured by external scrutiny 

and review including the NHSE CCG Assurance Framework and External 
Audit.  

 
6.7 Information Governance 
 

6.7.1 The CCG has a robust information governance framework, which includes: 
 

a) The roles of Senior Information Responsible Officer (SIRO), Caldicott 
Guardian, and the Information Governance Lead, who together comprise 
the Information Governance Management Group; 

b) An Information Governance Strategy and Policies and Information 
Security Policies, supported by briefings and training for all Governing 
Body and Committee members and staff; 

c) An Information Asset Register and Data Flows Map which record the 
nature and security arrangements for the data held and transmitted, 
including sensitive and confidential data, and the risks and security 
arrangements, which are regularly assessed and reviewed.  

d) Quarterly reports on compliance which are reported to the Audit 
Committee and an annual review by internal audit.  

 
6.7.2 The NHS Information Governance Framework sets the processes and 

procedures by which the NHS handles information about patients and 
employees, in particular personal identifiable information. The NHS 
Information Governance Framework is supported by an information 
governance toolkit and the annual submission process provides assurances 
to the clinical commissioning group, other organisations and to individuals 
that personal information is dealt with legally, securely, efficiently and 
effectively. 

 
6.7.3 The CCG places high importance on ensuring that there are robust 

information governance systems and processes in place to help protect 
patient and corporate information. The CCG has established an information 
governance management framework and is developing information 
governance processes and procedures in line with the information 
governance toolkit.  The CCG has ensured that all staff undertake annual 
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information governance training and have implemented staff information 
governance briefings, to ensure that staff are aware of their information 
governance roles and responsibilities. 

 
6.7.4 There are processes in place for incident reporting and investigation of 

serious incidents. The CCG is developing information risk assessment and 
management procedures, and a programme will be established to fully 
embed an information risk culture throughout the organisation. 

 
6.8 Pension Obligations 
 

6.8.1 As an employer with staff entitled to membership of the NHS Pension 
Scheme, control measures are in place to ensure all employer obligations 
contained within the scheme regulations are complied with. This includes 
ensuring that deductions from salary, employer’s contributions and payments 
into the scheme are in accordance with the scheme rules, and that member 
pension scheme records are accurately updated in accordance with the 
timescales detailed in the regulations. 

 
6.9 Equality, Diversity & Human Rights Obligations 
 

6.9.1 Control measures are in place to ensure that the CCG complies with the 
required public sector equality duty set out in the Equality Act 2010. 

 
6.10 Sustainable Development Obligations 
 

6.10.1 The CCG is required to report its progress in delivering against sustainable 
development indicators. 

6.10.2 The CCG is developing plans to assess risks, enhance its performance and 
reduce its impact, including against carbon reduction and climate change 
adaptation objectives. This includes establishing mechanisms to embed 
social and environmental sustainability across policy development, business 
planning and in commissioning. 

6.10.3 The CCG will ensure that it complies with its obligations under the Climate 
Change Act 2008, including the Adaptation Reporting power, and the Public 
Services (Social Value) Act 2012. 

6.10.4 The CCG is also setting out its commitments as a socially responsible 
employer. 

 
6.11 Risk Assessment in Relation to Governance, Risk Management & Internal 

Control 
 

6.11.1 The CCG was licensed without conditions following a robust authorisation 
process which evaluated the new organisation’s approach to governance 
and risk management. The CCG has continued to develop and improve upon 
this through the senior management team. 

 
6.11.2 The Audit Committee has overseen and scrutinised the development and 

improvement of the CCG’s governance, risk management and internal 
controls systems. This has included a comprehensive and balanced internal 
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audit plan which has included reviews of the CCG’s financial systems, 
arrangements for managing conflicts of interest, information governance, 
contract management of commissioning support, partnership arrangements, 
and an opinion on the assurance framework. 

 
6.11.3 Internal audit reviews through the year have identified opportunities to 

improve the control framework. An initial review of the arrangements for 
conflicts of interest made a number of recommendations, the majority of 
which have been implemented resulting in significant assurance in the stage 
two review. 

 
6.11.4 The constitution has been reviewed and updated during the year, including 

appointing an additional lay advisor to improve governance and independent 
scrutiny.  

 
6.11.5 The Internal Audit opinion on the Assurance Framework provided significant 

assurance and have assigned the Assurance Framework as level A - an 
Assurance Framework has been established which is designed and 
operating to meet the requirements of the Annual Governance Statement 
and provide reasonable assurance that there is an effective system of 
internal control to manage the principle risks identified by the organisation. 
Recommendations have been made for improvements which will be 
addressed during the next year. 

 
6.11.6 The internal audit review of partnership arrangements identified internal 

control weaknesses with respect to the governance and performance 
monitoring of the arrangements and as a result of delays in concluding and 
signing an agreement to extend the arrangements inherited from the Primary 
Care Trust. 

 
6.12 Review of Economy, Efficiency & Effectiveness of the Use of Resources 
 

6.12.1 The CCG has established effective leadership, commissioning, financial 
planning and management, data quality and external relationships to ensure 
that resources are used economically, efficiently and effectively. These 
include clear strategies and plans, including QIPP, which are aligned 
internally and with other key organisations in the health economy. 

 
6.12.2 The Governing Body plays a clear and effective role in the management and 

use of resources to deliver the strategic objectives of the organisation. All 
decision making takes into account information in relation to the anticipated 
impact on quality, innovation, productivity and prevention.    

 
6.12.3 An internal audit review of the CCG’s QIPP savings programme, systems 

and processes provided significant assurance. 
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6.13  Review of the Effectiveness of Governance, Risk Management & Internal 
Control 

 
6.13.1 As Accounting Officer I have responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of 

the system of internal control within the clinical commissioning group. 
 

6.14 Capacity to Handle Risk  
 

6.14.1 As Accountable Officer I have overall accountability for the management of 
risk and discharge this duty by: 

 
a) Continually promoting risk management and demonstrating leadership, 

involvement and support 
 

b) Ensuring an appropriate committee structure is in place, with regular 
reports to the Governing Body 

 
c) Ensuring that senior officers of the CCG are appointed with managerial 

responsibility for risk management. 
  

d) Ensuring the development of appropriate Policies, Procedures and 
Guidelines for the CCG in relation to risk management 

 
e) Identifying risks to the achievement of the CCG’s strategic goals  

  
f) Monitoring these via the CCG Assurance Framework and Corporate Risk 

Register 
 

6.14.2 Training and development has been provided to the Governing Body and the 
staff team to equip them to manage risk in a way appropriate to their 
authority and duties. Guidance has been provided through a workshop 
session and one to one coaching through the CCG’s commissioning support 
provider.   

 
6.15 Review of Effectiveness 
 

6.15.1 My review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control is informed by 
the work of the internal auditors and the senior managers and clinical leads 
within the CCG who have responsibility for the development and 
maintenance of the internal control framework. I have drawn on performance 
information available to me. My review is also informed by comments made 
by the external auditors in their management letter and other reports. 

 
6.15.2 The Board Assurance Framework provides me with evidence that the 

effectiveness of controls that manage risks to the clinical commissioning 
group achieving its principles objectives have been reviewed. 

 
6.15.3 I have been advised on the implications of the result of my review of the 

effectiveness of the system of internal control by the Governing Body, the 
Audit Committee and the Clinical Quality & Safety Committee and, if 
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appropriate, a plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous 
improvement of the system is in place. 

 
6.15.4 The effectiveness of the system of internal control has been maintained and 

reviewed through the senior management team with oversight and scrutiny 
by the Governing Body and Audit Committee and assurance of key elements 
through the Internal Audit Plan. The mechanisms used have included the 
Governing Body Assurance Framework, review, scrutiny and approval of 
policies and processes, reports on compliance, and managerial scrutiny 
through the Senior Management Team, Operational Performance Group, 
Information Governance Management Group, and Risk Management Group. 

 
6.15.5 External support has been commissioned to review the assurance and risk 

management framework building on the achievements during the last year.   
 
6.15.6 Following completion of the planned audit work for the financial year for the 

clinical commissioning group, the Head of Internal Audit issued an 
independent and objective opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of the 
clinical commissioning group’s system of risk management, governance and 
internal control.  

 
6.15.7 The Head of Internal Audit concluded that: 
 

a) Significant Assurance can be given that there is a generally sound system of 
internal control designed to meet the organisation’s objectives, and that 
controls are generally being applied consistently. However some weaknesses 
in the design or inconsistent application of controls put the achievement of 
particular objective at risk. 
 

b) During the year the Internal Audit issued the following audit reports with a 
conclusion of limited assurance: 

 
i. Partnership Arrangements in the context of the arrangements in operation 

with regard to financial and performance monitoring of the pooled budget 
arrangements. The most significant issue was in respect of delays in 
agreeing some aspects of the arrangements and in signing the 
agreement, which have now been addressed. The remaining issues 
include the preparation of individual schedules to include the financial and 
non-financial contributions, the performance and outcome measures and 
governance arrangements, which were in the process of being addressed 
at the date of signing the Annual Report and Accounts.  
 

c) During the year the Internal Audit issued no audit reports with a conclusion of 
no assurance.  
 

6.16 Data Quality 
 

6.16.1 The CCG has identified and specified the data requirements for both 
effective monitoring of the performance, quality and safety of commissioned 
services and to support its plans to re-design and re-commission services. 
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These form the basis of regular reporting to the Clinical Membership Group, 
Governing Body and its Committees.  

 
6.16.2 The CCG’s data quality standards and requirements from commissioned 

providers are set out in data and quality contract schedules. The service 
agreement with the CCG’s commissioning support provider includes 
requirements for data validation and quality control. A planned internal audit 
of data quality has not progressed due to limitations in section 251 provisions 
around CCG access to personal and confidential information. Alternatives 
means of securing assurance are being explored.  

 
6.17 Business Critical Models 
 

6.17.1 The data and intelligence provided through the CCG’s commissioning 
support provider to inform needs analysis and service commissioning is 
subject to robust quality assurance both internally by the provider and by the 
CCG. The CCG’s plans and forecasts are also subject to external scrutiny 
and sign off by NHSE.  

 
6.18 Data Security 
 

6.18.1 We have submitted a satisfactory level of compliance with the information 
governance toolkit assessment, achieving level two requirements in all 
areas. This has been audited by MIAA and received significant assurance. 

 
6.18.2 There have been no Serious Untoward Incidents relating to data security 

breaches.  
 

6.19 Discharge of Statutory Functions 
 

6.19.1 During establishment, the arrangements put in place by the clinical 
commissioning group and explained within the Corporate Governance 
Framework were developed with extensive expert external legal input, to 
ensure compliance with the all relevant legislation. That legal advice also 
informed the matters reserved for the CMG and Governing Body decision 
and the scheme of delegation. 

 
6.19.2 In light of the Harris Review, the CCG has reviewed all of the statutory duties 

and powers conferred on it by the National Health Service Act 2006 (as 
amended) and other associated legislative and regulations.  As a result, I can 
confirm that the CCG is clear about the legislative requirements associated 
with each of the statutory functions for which it is responsible, including any 
restrictions on delegation of those functions. 

 
6.19.3 Responsibility for each duty and power has been clearly allocated to a lead 

Senior Manager. Managers have confirmed that their structures provide the 
necessary capability and capacity to undertake all of the CCG’s statutory 
duties. 
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6.20 Conclusion 
 

6.20.1 No significant internal control issues have been identified.   
 
 
 
 
 
Dianne Johnson 
Accountable Officer 
6th June 2014 
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INCLUDING REPORT BY THE AUDITORS TO THE MEMBERS OF THE 
CCG & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF NHS KNOWSLEY 
CLINICAL COMMISSIONING GROUP 
 
We have audited the financial statements of NHS Knowsley Clinical Commissioning Group 
(CCG) for the year ended 31 March 2014 under the Audit Commission Act 1998. The financial 
statements comprise the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure, the Statement of 
Financial Position, the Statement of Changes in Taxpayers’ Equity, the Statement of Cash 
Flows and the related notes. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their 
preparation is applicable law and the accounting policies directed by the NHS Commissioning 
Board with the approval of the Secretary of State.  
 
We have also audited the information in the Remuneration Report that is subject to audit, 
being:  
 

the table of salaries and allowances of senior managers and related narrative notes on 
page 38; 

the table of pension benefits of senior managers and related narrative notes on page 42; 
and 

the table of pay multiples and related narrative notes on page 40. 

This report is made solely to the members of NHS Knowsley CCG in accordance with Part II 
of the Audit Commission Act 1998 and for no other purpose, as set out in paragraph 44 of the 
Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies published by the Audit 
Commission in  March 2014. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or 
assume responsibility to anyone other than the CCG's members and the CCG as a body, for 
our audit work, for this report, or for opinions we have formed. 
 
Respective responsibilities of the Accountable Officer and auditors 
 
As explained more fully in the Statement of Accountable Officer’s Responsibilities, the 
Accountable Officer is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being 
satisfied that they give a true and fair view. Our responsibility is to audit and express an 
opinion on the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and International 
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards also require us to comply with the 
Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors. 
 
Scope of the audit of the financial statements 
 
An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from 
material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of: 
whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the CCG’s circumstances and have been 
consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by the CCG; and the overall presentation of the financial statements. In 
addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the annual report which 
comprises the Member Practices’ Introduction; Strategic Report and Members' Report; to 
identify material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to identify any 
information that is apparently materially incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, the 
knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing the audit. If we become aware of any 
apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our 
report. 
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In addition, we are required to obtain evidence sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the 
expenditure and income reported in the financial statements have been applied to the 
purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities 
which govern them. 
 
Opinion on regularity 
 
In our opinion, in all material respects the expenditure and income have been applied to the 
purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities 
which govern them. 
 
Opinion on financial statements 
 
In our opinion the financial statements: 
 

• give a true and fair view of the financial position of NHS Knowsley CCG as at 31 
March 2014 and of its net operating costs for the year then ended; and 

• have been prepared properly in accordance with the accounting policies directed by 
the NHS Commissioning Board with the approval of the Secretary of State. 

 
Opinion on other matters 
 
In our opinion: 
 

• the part of the Remuneration Report subject to audit has been prepared properly in 
accordance with the requirements directed by the NHS Commissioning Board with the 
approval of the Secretary of State; and 

• the information given in the annual report for the financial year for which the financial 
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements. 

 
 
Matters on which we report by exception 
 
We report to you if: 

• in our opinion the governance statement does not reflect compliance with  NHS 
England’s Guidance; 

• we refer the matter to the Secretary of State under section 19 of the Audit Commission 
Act 1998 because we have reason to believe that the CCG, or an officer of the CCG, 
is about to make, or has made, a decision involving unlawful expenditure, or is about 
to take, or has taken, unlawful action likely to cause a loss or deficiency; or 

• we issue a report in the public interest under section 8 of the Audit Commission Act 
1998. 

 
We have nothing to report in these respects. 
 
 
Conclusion on the CCG’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in the use of resources 
 
We are required under Section 5 of the Audit Commission Act 1998 to satisfy ourselves that 
the CCG has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness 
in its use of resources. The Code of Audit Practice issued by the Audit Commission requires 
us to report any matters that prevent us being satisfied that the audited body has put in place 
such arrangements. 
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We have undertaken our audit in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice, having regard to 
the guidance issued by the Audit Commission in October 2013. We have considered the 
results of the following: 
 
• our review of the Governance Statement; and 

 
• the work of other relevant regulatory bodies or inspectorates, to the extent that the results 

of this work impact on our responsibilities at the CCG. 
 

As a result, we have concluded that there are no matters to report.   
 
Certificate 
 
We certify that we have completed the audit of the accounts of NHS Knowsley CCG in 
accordance with the requirements of the Audit Commission Act 1998 and the Code of Audit 
Practice issued by the Audit Commission. 
 
 
 
 
 
Michael Thomas 
Director, for and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK LLP, Appointed Auditor 
 
Royal Liver Building, Liverpool, L3 1PS 
 
6 June 2014 
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The notes on pages 65 to 94 form part of this statement. 
 

Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure for the year ended
31 March 2014

2013-14
Note £000

Administration Costs and Programme Expenditure
Gross employee benefits 4.1.1 2,251              
Other costs 5 245,979           
Other operating revenue 2 (2,339)             
Net operating costs before interest 245,891           

Other operating revenue -                     
Other (gains)/losses -                     
Finance costs -                     
Net operating costs for the financial year 245,891           

Net (gain)/loss on transfers by absorption
Net operating costs for the financial year including absorption transfers 245,891           

Of which:
Administration Costs
Gross employee benefits 4.1.1 2,036              
Other costs 5 2,204              
Other operating revenue 2 (552)                
Net administration costs before interest 3,688              

Programme Expenditure
Gross employee benefits 4.1.1 215                 
Other costs 5 243,775           
Other operating revenue 2 (1,787)             
Net programme expenditure before interest 242,203           

Other Comprehensive Net Expenditure 2013-14
£000

Impairments and reversals -                     
Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of property, plant & equipment -                     
Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of intangibles -                     
Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of financial assets -                     
Movements in other reserves -                     
Net gain/(loss) on available for sale financial assets -                     
Net gain/(loss) on assets held for sale -                     
Net actuarial gain/(loss) on pension schemes -                     
Share of (profit)/loss of associates and joint ventures -                     
Reclassification Adjustments
On disposal of available for sale financial assets -                     
Total comprehensive net expenditure for the year 245,891           
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The notes on pages 65 to 94 form part of this statement    

The financial statements on pages 61 to 64 were approved by the Audit Committee on 
2nd June 2014 and signed on its behalf by:      

 
 
Dianne Johnson    
Accountable Officer 
6th June 2014 
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Statement of Changes In Taxpayers Equity for the year ended
31 March 2014

General 
fund

Revaluation 
reserve

Other 
reserves

Total 
reserves

£000 £000 £000 £000

Changes in taxpayers’ equity for 2013-14
Balance at 1 April 2013                -                  -              -              - 
Transfer of assets and liabilities from closed NHS Bodies as a result 
of the 1 April 2013 transition

               -                  -              -              - 

Transfer between reserves in respect of assets transferred from 
closed NHS bodies

               -                  -              -              - 

CCG balance at 1 April 2013                -                  -              -              - 

Changes in CCG taxpayers’ equity for 2013-14
Net operating costs for the financial year     (245,891)                  -              -  (245,891)

Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of property, plant and equipment                -                  -              -              - 
Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of intangible assets                -                  -              -              - 
Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of financial assets                -                  -              -              - 
Total revaluations against revaluation reserve                -                  -              -              - 

Net gain (loss) on available for sale financial assets                -                  -              -              - 
Net gain (loss) on revaluation of assets held for sale                -                  -              -              - 
Impairments and reversals                -                  -              -              - 
Net actuarial gain (loss) on pensions                -                  -              -              - 
Movements in other reserves                -                  -              -              - 
Transfers between reserves                -                  -              -              - 
Release of reserves to the Statement of Comprehensive Net                -                  -              -              - 
Reclassification adjustment on disposal of available for sale financial                -                  -              -              - 
Transfers by absorption to (from) other bodies                -                  -              -              - 
Transfer between reserves in respect of assets transferred under 
absorption

               -                  -              -              - 

Reserves eliminated on dissolution                -                  -              -              - 
Net Recognised CCG Expenditure for the Financial  Year     (245,891)                  -              -  (245,891)

Net funding      242,168                  -              -   242,168 

Balance at 31 March 2014        (3,723)                  -              -      (3,723)
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Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended
31 March 2014

2013-14
Note £000

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Net operating costs for the financial year (245,891)  
Other gains (losses) on foreign exchange -              
Interest paid -              
Release of PFI deferred credit -              
(Increase)/decrease in inventories -              
(Increase)/decrease in trade & other receivables (3,310)      
(Increase)/decrease in other current assets -              
Increase/(decrease) in trade & other payables 7,062       
Increase/(decrease) in other current liabilities -              

Net Cash Inflow (Outflow) from Operating Activities (242,139)  

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Interest received -              
(Payments) for investments with the Department of Health -              
(Payments) for other financial assets -              
(Payments) for financial assets (LIFT) -              
Proceeds from disposal of investments with the Department of Health -              
Proceeds from disposal of other financial assets -              
Rental revenue -              
Net Cash Inflow (Outflow) from Investing Activities -              

Net Cash Inflow (Outflow) before Financing (242,139)  

Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Net funding received 242,168   
Other loans received -              
Other loans repaid -              
Capital grants and other capital receipts -              
Capital receipts surrendered -              

Net Cash Inflow (Outflow) from Financing Activities 242,168   

Net Increase in Cash & Cash Equivalents 20 29           

Cash & Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Financial Year -              
Effect of exchange rate changes on the balance of cash and cash equivalents held in 
foreign currencies -              

Cash & Cash Equivalents at the End of the Financial Year 29           
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NHS Knowsley CCG - Annual Accounts 2013-14  

Notes to the financial statements  

1. Accounting Policies  

NHS England has directed that the financial statements of clinical commissioning 
groups shall meet the accounting requirements of the Manual for Accounts issued by 
the Department of Health. Consequently, the following financial statements have been 
prepared in accordance with the Manual for Accounts 2013-14 issued by the 
Department of Health. The accounting policies contained in the Manual for Accounts 
follow International Financial Reporting Standards to the extent that they are 
meaningful and appropriate to clinical commissioning groups (CCG's), as determined 
by HM Treasury, which is advised by the Financial Reporting Advisory Board.  Where 
the Manual for Accounts permits a choice of accounting policy, the accounting policy 
which is judged to be most appropriate to the particular circumstances of the clinical 
commissioning group for the purpose of giving a true and fair view has been selected. 
The particular policies adopted by the clinical commissioning group are described 
below. They have been applied consistently in dealing with items considered material 
in relation to the accounts.  

In accordance with the Directions issued by NHS England comparative information is 
not provided in these financial statements.  

1.1 Going Concern  

These accounts have been prepared on the going concern basis.  

Public sector bodies are assumed to be going concerns where the continuation of the 
provision of a service in the future is anticipated, as evidenced by inclusion of financial 
provision for that service in published documents.  

Where a CCG ceases to exist, it considers whether or not its services will continue to 
be provided (using the same assets, by another public sector entity) in determining 
whether to use the concept of going concern for the final set of financial statements.  If 
services will continue to be provided the financial statements are prepared on the 
going concern basis.  

1.2  Accounting Convention  

These accounts have been prepared under the historical cost convention.  

1.3 Acquisitions & Discontinued Operations  

Activities are considered to be ‘acquired’ only if they are taken on from outside the 
public sector. Activities are considered to be ‘discontinued’ only if they cease entirely. 
They are not considered to be ‘discontinued’ if they transfer from one public sector 
body to another.  
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1.4 Movement of Assets within the Department of Health Group  

Transfers as part of reorganisation fall to be accounted for by use of absorption 
accounting in line with the Government Financial Reporting Manual, issued by HM 
Treasury. The Government Financial Reporting Manual does not require retrospective 
adoption, so prior year transactions (which have been accounted for under merger 
accounting) have not been restated. Absorption accounting requires that entities 
account for their transactions in the period in which they took place, with no 
restatement of performance required when functions transfer within the public sector.  
Where assets and liabilities transfer, the gain or loss resulting is recognised in the 
Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure, and is disclosed separately from 
operating costs.  

Other transfers of assets and liabilities within the Department of Health Group are 
accounted for in line with IAS 20 and similarly give rise to income and expenditure 
entries.  

For transfers of assets and liabilities from those NHS bodies that closed on 1 April 
2013, HM Treasury has agreed that a modified absorption approach should be 
applied. For these transactions only, gains and losses are recognised in reserves 
rather than the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure. 

The accounting arrangements for balances transferred from predecessor PCTs 
("legacy" balances) are determined by the Accounts Direction issued by NHS England 
on 12 February 2014. The Accounts Direction states that the only legacy balances to 
be accounted for by the CCG are in respect of property, plant and equipment (and 
related liabilities) and inventories. All other legacy balances in respect of assets or 
liabilities arising from transactions or delivery of care prior to 31 March 2013 are 
accounted for by NHS England. The impact of the legacy balances accounted for by 
the CCG is zero. The CCG's arrangements in respect of settling NHS Continuing 
Healthcare claims are disclosed in note 30 to these financial statements.  

1.5 Charitable Funds  

From 2013-14, the divergence from the Government Financial Reporting Manual that 
NHS Charitable Funds are not consolidated with bodies’ own returns is removed. 
Under the provisions of IAS 27: Consolidated & Separate Financial Statements, those 
Charitable Funds that fall under common control with NHS bodies are consolidated 
within the entities’ accounts.  

1.6 Pooled Budgets 

Where the CCG has entered into a pooled budget arrangement under Section 75 of 
the National Health Service Act 2006 the CCG accounts for its share of the assets, 
liabilities, income and expenditure arising from the activities of the pooled budget, 
identified in accordance with the pooled budget agreement. 
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If the CCG is in a “jointly controlled operation”, the CCG recognises: 

a) The assets the CCG controls; 
b) The liabilities the CCG incurs; 
c) The expenses the CCG incurs; and, 
d) The CCG's share of the income from the pooled budget activities. 

If the CCG is involved in a “jointly controlled assets” arrangement, in addition to the 
above, the CCG recognises its: 

a) Share of the jointly controlled assets (classified according to the nature of the 
assets); 

b) Share of any liabilities incurred jointly; and, 
c) Share of the expenses jointly incurred. 

1.7 Critical Accounting Judgements & Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty 

In the application of the CCG’s accounting policies, management is required to make 
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and 
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and 
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are 
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from those estimates and the 
estimates and underlying assumptions are continually reviewed. Revisions to 
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if 
the revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if 
the revision affects both current and future periods. 

1.7.1 Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies 

The following are the critical judgments, apart from those involving estimations (see 
below) that management has made in the process of applying the CCG’s accounting 
policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the 
financial statements: 

In regard to commissioning of healthcare, the CCG will account for the costs of 
completed spells only in the financial year the spell is fully completed. In doing this the 
CCG is not providing for those patient episodes of care that have commenced on or 
before 31 March 2014 but have not completed by 31 March 2014. It is deemed that 
the impact of not accounting for partially completed spells is immaterial.  

1.7.2 Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty 

The following are the key estimations that management has made in the process of 
applying the CCG’s accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the 
amounts recognised in the financial statements: 

Due to the time lag around the availability of data, the prescribing payable is estimated 
as the difference between the prescribing expenditure profile to 31 March 2014 (as 
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determined by the NHS Business Services Authority) and the actual confirmed amount 
of expenditure recorded. The key risk is that the actual data is different to the 
estimates made, resulting in the prescribing payable being either over or understated. 
As at 31 March 2014, the prescribing payable was £5.0 million. 

1.8  Revenue 

Revenue in respect of services provided is recognised when, and to the extent that, 
performance occurs, and is measured at the fair value of the consideration receivable. 

Where income is received for a specific activity that is to be delivered in the following 
year, that income is deferred. 

1.9 Employee Benefits 

1.9.1 Short-term Employee Benefits 

Salaries, wages and employment-related payments are recognised in the period in 
which the service is received from employees, including bonuses earned but not yet 
taken. 

The cost of leave earned but not taken by employees at the end of the period is 
recognised in the financial statements to the extent that employees are permitted to 
carry forward leave into the following period. 

1.9.2 Retirement Benefit Costs 

Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the NHS Pensions 
Scheme. The scheme is an unfunded, defined benefit scheme that covers NHS 
employers, General Practices and other bodies, allowed under the direction of the 
Secretary of State, in England and Wales. The scheme is not designed to be run in a 
way that would enable NHS bodies to identify their share of the underlying scheme 
assets and liabilities. Therefore, the scheme is accounted for as if it were a defined 
contribution scheme: the cost to the CCG of participating in the scheme is taken as 
equal to the contributions payable to the scheme for the accounting period. 

For early retirements other than those due to ill health the additional pension liabilities 
are not funded by the scheme. The full amount of the liability for the additional costs is 
charged to expenditure at the time the CCG commits itself to the retirement, 
regardless of the method of payment. 

1.10 Other Expenses 

Other operating expenses are recognised when, and to the extent that, the goods or 
services have been received. They are measured at the fair value of the consideration 
payable. 
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Expenses and liabilities in respect of grants are recognised when the CCG has a 
present legal or constructive obligation, which occurs when all of the conditions 
attached to the payment have been met. 

1.11 Property, Plant & Equipment 

The CCG has no property, plant and equipment as at 31 March 2014. 

1.12 Intangible Assets 

The CCG has no intangible assets as at 31 March 2014. 

1.17 Leases 

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all the risks and rewards of 
ownership are transferred to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating 
leases. 

The CCG as Lessee 

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over 
the lease term. Lease incentives are recognised initially as a liability and subsequently 
as a reduction of rentals on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 

Contingent rentals are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are 
incurred. 

Where a lease is for land and buildings, the land and building components are 
separated and individually assessed as to whether they are operating or finance 
leases. 

1.18  Private Finance Initiative (PFI) Transactions 

The CCG is not party to any PFI schemes as at 31 March 2014. 

1.19  Inventories 

The CCG has no inventories as at 31 March 2014. 

1.20 Cash & Cash Equivalents 

Cash is cash in hand and deposits with any financial institution repayable without 
penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are investments that 
mature in 3 months or less from the date of acquisition and that are readily convertible 
to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in value. 

In the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank 
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and that form an integral part of the CCG’s 
cash management. 
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1.21   Provisions 

The CCG has no provisions as at 31 March 2014. 

1.22   Clinical Negligence Costs 

The NHS Litigation Authority operates a risk pooling scheme under which the CCG 
pays an annual contribution to the NHS Litigation Authority which in return settles all 
clinical negligence claims. The contribution is charged to expenditure. Although the 
NHS Litigation Authority is administratively responsible for all clinical negligence cases 
the legal liability remains with the CCG. 

1.23   Non-clinical Risk Pooling 

The CCG participates in the Property Expenses Scheme and the Liabilities to Third 
Parties Scheme. Both are risk pooling schemes under which the CCG pays an annual 
contribution to the NHS Litigation Authority and, in return, receives assistance with the 
costs of claims arising. The annual membership contributions, and any excesses 
payable in respect of particular claims are charged to operating expenses as and 
when they become due. 

1.24  Carbon Reduction Commitment Scheme 

Carbon Reduction Commitment and similar allowances are accounted for as 
government grant funded intangible assets if they are not expected to be realised 
within twelve months, and otherwise as other current assets. They are valued at open 
market value. As the CCG makes emissions, a provision is recognised with an 
offsetting transfer from deferred income. The provision is settled on surrender of the 
allowances. The asset, provision and deferred income amounts are valued at fair 
value at the end of the reporting period.  The CCG considers this to be immaterial 
therefore no provision was recognised as at 31 March 2014. 

1.25  Contingencies 

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose 
existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more 
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the CCG, or a present 
obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that a payment will be 
required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured 
sufficiently reliably. A contingent liability is disclosed unless the possibility of a 
payment is remote. 

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose 
existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more 
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the CCG. A contingent asset is 
disclosed where an inflow of economic benefits is probable. 
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Where the time value of money is material, contingencies are disclosed at their 
present value. 

1.26 Financial Assets 

Financial assets are recognised when the CCG becomes party to the financial 
instrument contract or, in the case of trade receivables, when the goods or services 
have been delivered. Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights 
have expired or the asset has been transferred. 

Financial assets are classified into the following categories: 

a) Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss; 
b) Held to maturity investments; 
c) Available for sale financial assets; and, 
d) Loans and receivables. 

The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is 
determined at the time of initial recognition. 

1.26.1 Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit and Loss 

Embedded derivatives that have different risks and characteristics to their host 
contracts, and contracts with embedded derivatives whose separate value cannot be 
ascertained, are treated as financial assets at fair value through profit and loss. They 
are held at fair value, with any resultant gain or loss recognised in calculating the 
CCG’s surplus or deficit for the year. The net gain or loss incorporates any interest 
earned on the financial asset. 

1.26.2 Held to Maturity Assets 

Held to maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or 
determinable payments and fixed maturity, and there is a positive intention and ability 
to hold to maturity. After initial recognition, they are held at amortised cost using the 
effective interest method, less any impairment. Interest is recognised using the 
effective interest method. 

1.26.3 Available For Sale Financial Assets 

Available for sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that are 
designated as available for sale or that do not fall within any of the other three 
financial asset classifications. They are measured at fair value with changes in value 
taken to the revaluation reserve, with the exception of impairment losses. 
Accumulated gains or losses are recycled to surplus/deficit on de-recognition. 
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1.26.4 Loans & Receivables 

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable 
payments which are not quoted in an active market. After initial recognition, they are 
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment.  
Interest is recognised using the effective interest method. 

Fair value is determined by reference to quoted market prices where possible, 
otherwise by valuation techniques. 

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash 
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset, to the initial fair value of the 
financial asset. 

At the end of the reporting period, the CCG assesses whether any financial assets, 
other than those held at ‘fair value through profit and loss’ are impaired. Financial 
assets are impaired and impairment losses recognised if there is objective evidence of 
impairment as a result of one or more events which occurred after the initial 
recognition of the asset and which has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of 
the asset. 

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment loss is 
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present 
value of the revised future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective 
interest rate. The loss is recognised in expenditure and the carrying amount of the 
asset is reduced through a provision for impairment of receivables. 

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the 
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was 
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through 
expenditure to the extent that the carrying amount of the receivable at the date of the 
impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been 
had the impairment not been recognised. 

1.27  Financial Liabilities 

Financial liabilities are recognised on the statement of financial position when the 
CCG becomes party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument or, in the 
case of trade payables, when the goods or services have been received. Financial 
liabilities are de-recognised when the liability has been discharged, that is, the liability 
has been paid or has expired. 

Loans from the Department of Health are recognised at historical cost. Otherwise, 
financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value. 

1.27.1 Financial Guarantee Contract Liabilities 

Financial guarantee contract liabilities are subsequently measured at the higher of: 
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a) The premium received (or imputed) for entering into the guarantee less 
cumulative amortisation; and, 

b) The amount of the obligation under the contract, as determined in accordance 
with IAS 37: Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets. 

1.27.2 Financial Liabilities at Fair Value Through Profit and Loss 

Embedded derivatives that have different risks and characteristics to their host 
contracts, and contracts with embedded derivatives whose separate value cannot be 
ascertained, are treated as financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss. 
They are held at fair value, with any resultant gain or loss recognised in the CCG’s 
surplus/deficit. The net gain or loss incorporates any interest payable on the financial 
liability. 

1.27.3 Other Financial Liabilities 

After initial recognition, all other financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost 
using the effective interest method, except for loans from Department of Health, which 
are carried at historic cost. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts 
estimated future cash payments through the life of the asset, to the net carrying 
amount of the financial liability. Interest is recognised using the effective interest 
method. 

1.28  Value Added Tax 

Most of the activities of the CCG are outside the scope of VAT and, in general, output 
tax does not apply and input tax on purchases is not recoverable. Irrecoverable VAT is 
charged to the relevant expenditure category or included in the capitalised purchase 
cost of fixed assets. Where output tax is charged or input VAT is recoverable, the 
amounts are stated net of VAT. 

1.29 Foreign Currencies 

The CCG’s functional currency and presentational currency is sterling. Transactions 
denominated in a foreign currency are translated into sterling at the exchange rate 
ruling on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary 
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the spot exchange rate on 
31 March. Resulting exchange gains and losses for either of these are recognised in 
the CCG’s surplus/deficit in the period in which they arise. 

1.30 Third Party Assets 

Assets belonging to third parties (such as money held on behalf of patients) are not 
recognised in the accounts since the CCG has no beneficial interest in them. 

 

 



74 
 

1.31  Losses & Special Payments 

Losses and special payments are items that Parliament would not have contemplated 
when it agreed funds for the health service or passed legislation. By their nature they 
are items that ideally should not arise. They are therefore subject to special control 
procedures compared with the generality of payments. They are divided into different 
categories, which govern the way that individual cases are handled. 

Losses and special payments are charged to the relevant functional headings in 
expenditure on an accruals basis, including losses which would have been made good 
through insurance cover had the CCG not been bearing its own risks (with insurance 
premiums then being included as normal revenue expenditure). 

1.32  Subsidiaries 

The CCG has no subsidiaries as at 31 March 2014. 

1.33    Associates 

The CCG has no associates as at 31 March 2014. 

1.34   Joint Ventures 

The CCG has no joint ventures as at 31 March 2014. 

1.35  Joint Operations 

Joint operations are activities undertaken by the CCG in conjunction with one or more 
other parties but which are not performed through a separate entity. The CCG records 
its share of the income and expenditure; gains and losses; assets and liabilities; and 
cash flows. 

1.36 Research and Development 

The CCG has no research and development expenditure during the year ended 31 
March 2014. 

1.37 Accounting Standards That Have Been Issued But Have Not Yet Been 
Adopted 

The Government Financial Reporting Manual does not require the following Standards 
and Interpretations to be applied in 2013-14, all of which are subject to consultation: 

a) IAS 27: Separate Financial Statements 
b) IAS 28: Investments in Associates & Joint Ventures 
c) IAS 32: Financial Instruments – Presentation (amendment) 
d) IFRS 9: Financial Instruments 
e) IFRS 10: Consolidated Financial Statements 
f) IFRS 11: Joint Arrangements 
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g) IFRS 12: Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities 
h) IFRS 13: Fair Value Measurement 

The application of the Standards as revised would not have a material impact on the 
accounts for 2013-14, were they applied in that year. 

 

2. Other Operating Revenue 

 
 

Admin revenue is revenue received that is not directly attributable to the provision of 
healthcare or healthcare services.    

Revenue in this note does not include cash received from NHS England, which is 
drawn down directly into the bank account of the CCG and credited to the General 
Fund.           

3. Revenue           

Revenue is almost totally from the supply of services. Revenue from the sale of goods 
is immaterial.  

 

 

 

  p g 
2013-14 2013-14 2013-14
Total Admin Programme

£000 £000 £000

Recoveries in respect of employee benefits 96              96              -             
Patient transport services -             -             -             
Prescription fees and charges -             -             -             
Dental fees and charges -             -             -             
Education, training and research -             -             -             
Charitable and other contributions  to revenue expenditure: NHS -             -             -             
Charitable and other contributions  to revenue expenditure: non-NHS 19              -             19              
Receipt of donations for capital acquisitions: NHS Charity -             -             -             
Receipt of Government grants for capital acquisitions -             -             -             
Non-patient care services to other bodies 2,216         449            1,767         
Income generation -             -             -             
Rental revenue from finance leases -             -             -             
Rental revenue from operating leases -             -             -             
Other revenue 8                7                1                
Total other operating revenue 2,339         552            1,787         
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4.1.1 Employee benefits
2013-14 Total Admin Programme
Total Permanent 

Employees
Other Total Permanent 

Employees
Other Total Permanent 

Employees
Other

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Employee Benefits
Salaries and wages 1,872           1,767           105              1,693           1,603           90               179              164              15               
Social security costs 159              159              -                  147              147              -                  12               12               -                  
Employer Contributions to NHS Pension scheme 220              220              -                  196              196              -                  24               24               -                  
Other pension costs -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  
Other post-employment benefits -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  
Other employment benefits -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  
Termination benefits -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  
Gross employee benefits expenditure 2,251           2,146           105              2,036           1,946           90               215              200              15               

Less recoveries in respect of employee benefits (note 4.1.2) (96)              (96)              -                  (96)              (96)              -                  -                  -                  -                  
Total - Net admin employee benefits including capitalised costs 2,155           2,050           105              1,940           1,850           90               215              200              15               

Less: Employee costs capitalised -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  
Net employee benefits excluding capitalised costs 2,155           2,050           105              1,940           1,850           90               215              200              15               

4.1.2 Recoveries in respect of employee benefits
2013-14
Total Permanent 

Employees
Other

£000 £000 £000

Employee Benefits - Revenue
Salaries and wages (76)              (76)              -                  
Social security costs (9)                (9)                -                  
Employer contributions to the NHS Pension Scheme (11)              (11)              -                  
Other pension costs -                  -                  -                  
Other post-employment benefits -                  -                  -                  
Other employment benefits -                  -                  -                  
Termination benefits -                  -                  -                  
Total recoveries in respect of employee benefits (96)              (96)              -                  

4. Employee benefits and staff numbers     

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4.2  Average number of people employed 

 
 

 

 

     
2013-14 Permanently
Total employed Other

Number Number Number

Total 44                     43                 1                 

Of the above:
Number of whole time equivalent people engaged 
on capital projects -                        -                   -                  
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4.3  Staff sickness absence and ill health retirements 

 
Staff Sickness Absence is based upon the period 1 April to 31 December 2013.  

Ill health retirement costs are met by the NHS Pension Scheme   

Where the CCG has agreed early retirements, the additional costs are met by the 
CCG and not by the NHS Pension Scheme.      
  

4.4  Exit packages agreed in the financial year      

No exit packages were agreed by the CCG during the year ended 31 March 2014. 

4.5  Pension costs 

Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the NHS Pension 
Scheme. Details of the benefits payable under these provisions can be found on the 
NHS Pensions website at www.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/Pensions. 

The Scheme is an unfunded, defined benefit scheme that covers NHS employers, GP 
practices and other bodies, allowed under the direction of the Secretary of State, in 
England and Wales. The Scheme is not designed to be run in a way that would enable 
NHS bodies to identify their share of the underlying scheme assets and liabilities. 

Therefore, the Scheme is accounted for as if it were a defined contribution scheme: 
the cost to the CCG of participating in the Scheme is taken as equal to the 
contributions payable to the Scheme for the accounting period. 

The Scheme is subject to a full actuarial valuation every four years (until 2004, every 
five years) and an accounting valuation every year. An outline of these follows: 

4.5.1  Full actuarial (funding) valuation 

The purpose of this valuation is to assess the level of liability in respect of the benefits 
due under the Scheme (taking into account its recent demographic experience), and 
to recommend the contribution rates to be paid by employers and scheme members. 
The last such valuation, which determined current contribution rates was undertaken 

        
2013-14
Number

Total Days Lost 71                 
Total Staff Years 42                 
Average working Days Lost 1.7                

Number of persons retired early on ill health grounds -                   
Total additional Pensions liabilities accrued in the year -                   
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as at 31 March 2004 and covered the period from 1 April 1999 to that date. The 
conclusion from the 2004 valuation was that the Scheme had accumulated a notional 
deficit of £3.3 billion against the notional assets as at 31 March 2004. 

In order to defray the costs of benefits, employers pay contributions at 14% of 
Pensionable pay and most employees had up to April 2008 paid 6%, with manual staff 
paying 5%. 

Following the full actuarial review by the Government Actuary undertaken as at 31 
March 2004, and after consideration of changes to the NHS Pension Scheme taking 
effect from 1 April 2008, his Valuation report recommended that employer 
contributions could continue at the existing rate of 14% of Pensionable pay, from 1 
April 2008, following the introduction of employee contributions on a tiered scale from 
5% up to 8.5% of their Pensionable pay depending on total earnings. On advice from 
the scheme actuary, scheme contributions may be varied from time to time to reflect 
changes in the scheme’s liabilities. 

The last published actuarial valuation undertaken for the NHS Pension Scheme was 
completed for the year ending 31 March 2004. Consequently, a formal actuarial 
valuation would have been due for the year ending 31 March 2008. However, formal 
actuarial valuations for unfunded public service schemes were suspended by HM 
Treasury on value for money grounds while consideration is given to recent changes 
to public service pensions, and while future scheme terms are developed as part of 
the reforms to public service pension provision due in 2015. 

4.5.2  Accounting valuation 

A valuation of the scheme liability is carried out annually by the scheme actuary as at 
the end of the reporting period by updating the results of the full actuarial valuation. 

Between the full actuarial valuations at a two-year midpoint, a full and detailed 
member data-set is provided to the scheme actuary. At this point the assumptions 
regarding the composition of the scheme membership are updated to allow the 
scheme liability to be valued. 

The valuation of the scheme liability as at 31 March 2011 is based on detailed 
membership data as at 31 March 2008 (the latest midpoint) updated to 31 March 2011 
with summary global member and accounting data. 

The latest assessment of the liabilities of the Scheme is contained in the scheme 
actuary report, which forms part of the annual NHS Pension Scheme (England and 
Wales) Resource Account, published annually. These accounts can be viewed on the 
NHS Pensions website. Copies can also be obtained from The Stationery Office.  
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4.5.3 Scheme Provisions          

The NHS Pension Scheme provides defined benefits, which are summarised below. 
This list is an illustrative guide only, and is not intended to detail all the benefits 
provided by the Scheme or the specific conditions that must be met before these 
benefits can be obtained:          

a) The Scheme is a “final salary” scheme. Annual pensions are normally based on 
1/80th for the 1995 section and of the best of the last three years pensionable 
pay for each year of service, and 1/60th for the 2008 section of reckonable pay 
per year of membership. Members who are practitioners as defined by the 
Scheme Regulations have their annual pensions based upon total pensionable 
earnings over the relevant pensionable service;     
  

b) With effect from 1 April 2008 members can choose to give up some of their 
annual pension for an additional tax free lump sum, up to a maximum amount 
permitted under HM Revenue & Customs rules. This new provision is known as 
“pension commutation”;        
 

c) Annual increases are applied to pension payments at rates defined by the 
Pensions (Increase) Act 1971, and are based on changes in retail prices in the 
twelve months ending 30 September in the previous calendar year;  
      

d) Early payment of a pension, with enhancement, is available to members of the 
Scheme who are permanently incapable of fulfilling their duties effectively 
through illness or infirmity. A death gratuity of twice final year’s pensionable pay 
for death in service, and five times their annual pension for death after 
retirement is payable;  
       

e) For early retirements other than those due to ill health the additional pension 
liabilities are not funded by the scheme. The full amount of the liability for the 
additional costs is charged to the statement of comprehensive net expenditure 
at the time the CCG commits itself to the retirement, regardless of the method 
of payment; and,    

f)  Members can purchase additional service in the Scheme and contribute to 
money purchase AVC’s run by the Scheme’s approved providers or by other 
Free Standing Additional Voluntary Contributions (FSAVC) providers. 
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2013-14 2013-14 2013-14
Total Admin Programme
£000 £000 £000

Gross employee benefits
Employee benefits excluding governing body members 1,957           1,742        215                 
Executive governing body members 294             294           -                  
Total gross employee benefits 2,251           2,036        215                 

Other costs
Services from other CCGs and NHS England 2,463           1,194        1,269              
Services from foundation trusts 88,616         -            88,616            
Services from other NHS trusts 91,183         55             91,128            
Services from other NHS bodies -              -            -                  
Purchase of healthcare from non-NHS bodies 23,124         -            23,124            
Chair and lay membership body and governing body members 376             376           -                  
Supplies and services – clinical 1,322           -            1,322              
Supplies and services – general 330             39             291                 
Consultancy services 151             36             115                 
Establishment 320             175           145                 
Transport 6                 6              -                  
Premises 5,622           113           5,509              
Impairments and reversals of receivables -              -            -                  
Inventories written down -              -            -                  
Depreciation -              -            -                  
Amortisation -              -            -                  
Impairments and reversals of property, plant and equipment -              -            -                  
Impairments and reversals of intangible assets -              -            -                  
Impairments and reversals of financial assets -              -            -                  
·          Assets carried at amortised cost -              -            -                  
·          Assets carried at cost -              -            -                  
·          Available for sale financial assets -              -            -                  
Impairments and reversals of non-current assets held for sale -              -            -                  
Impairments and reversals of investment properties -              -            -                  
Audit fees 86               86             -                  
Other auditor’s remuneration
·          Internal audit services 44               44             -                  
·          Other services -              -            -                  
General dental services and personal dental services -              -            -                  
Prescribing costs 31,155         -            31,155            
Pharmaceutical services -              -            -                  
General opthalmic services -              -            -                  
GPMS/APMS and PCTMS 889             -            889                 
Other professional fees excl. audit 69               69             -                  
Grants to other public bodies 208             -            208                 
Clinical negligence -              -            -                  
Research and development (excluding staff costs) -              -            -                  
Education and training 11               11             -                  
Change in discount rate -              -            -                  
Other expenditure 4                 -            4                    
Total other costs 245,979       2,204        243,775           

Total operating expenses 248,230       4,240        243,990           

5. Operating Expenses 
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Admin expenditure is expenditure incurred that is not a direct payment for the 
provision of healthcare or healthcare services.      

A rebate of £7,000 was received from the Audit Commission relating to the external 
audit fee. The net external audit fee incurred was therefore £79,400. Internal audit 
services were provided by The Royal Liverpool and Broadgreen University Hospitals 
NHS Trust as hosts of Mersey Internal Audit Agency.  There were no internal audit 
services provided by the CCG’s external auditors.     

 

 

The Better Payment Practice Code requires the CCG to aim to pay all valid invoices 
by the due date or within 30 days of receipt of a valid invoice, whichever is later. 
      

6.2  The Late Payment of Commercial Debts (Interest) Act 1998  
       

The CCG did not make any payments under the provisions of The Late Payment of 
Commercial Debts (Interest) Act 1998 during the year ended 31 March 2014. 
       

7.  Income Generation Activities      
    

The CCG does not undertake any income generation activities.   
      

8.  Investment revenue        
  

The CCG had no investment revenue during the year ended 31 March 2014. 
     

6.1 Better Payment Practice Code

Measure of compliance 2013-14 2013-14
Number £000

Non-NHS Payables
Total Non-NHS Trade invoices paid in the Year 2,153         31,668       
Total Non-NHS Trade Invoices paid within target 1,858         21,319       
Percentage of Non-NHS Trade invoices paid within target 86.30% 67.32%

NHS Payables
Total NHS Trade Invoices Paid in the Year 1,557         187,474     
Total NHS Trade Invoices Paid within target 1,305         182,680     
Percentage of NHS Trade Invoices paid within target 83.82% 97.44%
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9.  Other gains and losses       
  

The CCG had no other gains and losses during the year ended 31 March 2014. 
         

10.  Finance costs          

The CCG had no finance costs during the year ended 31 March 2014.  
    

11.  Net gain/(loss) on transfer by absorption    
       

The CCG had no net gains or losses on transfer by absorption during the year ended 
31 March 2014.          
    

12.  Operating Leases        
      

12.1  As lessee          
    

The "Buildings" balance is in relation to payments made to NHS Property Services Ltd 
(NHSPS) and Community Health Partnerships Ltd (CHP).  The CCG occupies 
property owned and managed by NHSPS and CHP. For 2013-14, a transitional 
occupancy rent based on annual property cost allocations was agreed. This is 
reflected in Note 12.1.1.         

While the CCG's arrangements with NHSPS and CHP fall within the definition of 
operating leases, the rental charge for future years has not yet been agreed. 
Consequently, note 12.1.2 does not include future minimum lease payments for these 
arrangements.         

The "Other" category in tables 12.1.1 and 12.1.2 relates to leased cars which have two 
years remaining of three year leases.  
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13.  Property, plant and equipment    

The CCG had no property, plant and equipment as at 31 March 2014.  
   

14.  Intangible non-current assets    

The CCG had no intangible non-current assets as at 31 March 2014.  
     

15.  Investment Property    

The CCG had no investment property as at 31 March 2014     

16.  Inventories       

The CCG had no inventories as at 31 March 2014 

 

 

 

 

12.1.1 Payments recognised as an Expense 2013-14
Land Buildings Other Total
£000 £000 £000 £000

Payments recognised as an expense
Minimum lease payments                     -              5,575                   10              5,585 
Contingent rents                     -                     -                     -                     - 
Sub-lease payments                     -                     -                     -                     - 
Total                     -              5,575                   10              5,585 

12.1.2 Future minimum lease payments 2013-14
Land Buildings Other Total
£000 £000 £000 £000

Payable:
No later than one year                     -                     -                   10                   10 
Between one and five years                     -                     -                   10                   10 
After five years                     -                     -                     -                     - 
Total                     -                     -                   20                   20 
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17  Trade and other receivables Current Non-current
2013-14 2013-14

£000 £000

NHS receivables: Revenue 1,376              -                     
NHS receivables: Capital -                 -                     
NHS prepayments and accrued income 117                -                     
Non-NHS receivables: Revenue 1,484              -                     
Non-NHS receivables: Capital -                 -                     
Non-NHS prepayments and accrued income 51                  -                     
Provision for the impairment of receivables -                 -                     
VAT 1                    -                     
Private finance initiative and other public private partnership 
arrangement prepayments and accrued income -                 -                     
Interest receivables -                 -                     
Finance lease receivables -                 -                     
Operating lease receivables -                 -                     
Other receivables 281                -                     
Total 3,310              -                     

Total current and non current 3,310              

Included above:
Prepaid pensions contributions -                     

17. Trade and other receivables    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The great majority of trade is with NHS England. As NHS England is funded by 
Government to provide funding to CCGs to commission services, no credit scoring of 
them is considered necessary.      

The CCG believes the credit quality of all non-NHS receivables to be sufficient that 
none of the receivables shall be impaired.      

 

 

£280,073 of the amount above has subsequently been recovered post the statement 
of financial position date.      

      

17.1 Receivables past their due date but not impaired 2013-14
£000

By up to three months 753                
By three to six months 24                  
By more than six months 7                    
Total 784                
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20 Cash and cash equivalents

2013-14
£000

Balance at 1 April 2013 -                  
Net change in year 29               
Balance at 31 March 2014 29               

Made up of:
Cash with the Government Banking Service 28               
Cash with Commercial banks -                  
Cash in hand 1                 
Current investments -                  
Cash and cash equivalents as in statement of financial position 29               

Bank overdraft: Government Banking Service -                  
Bank overdraft: Commercial banks -                  
Total bank overdrafts -                  

Balance at 31 March 2014 29               

The CCG did not hold any collateral against receivables outstanding as at 31 March 
2014.        

17.2 Provision for impairment of receivables      

The CCG does not have any provision for impairment of receivables as at 31 March 
2014 as it believes the credit quality of all receivables to be sufficient that no provision 
for impairment is required.  

18.  Other financial asset 

18.1  Current 

The CCG had no other financial assets as at 31 March 2014. 

19.  Other current assets 

The CCG had no other current assets as at 31 March 2014.  

 

  

 

          

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Patients’ money held by the CCG, not included above       
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Current Non-current
2013-14 2013-14

£000 £000

Interest payable -                -                    
NHS payables: revenue 397                -                    
NHS payables: capital -                -                    
NHS accruals and deferred income 186                -                    
Non-NHS payables: revenue 288                -                    
Non-NHS payables: capital -                -                    
Non-NHS accruals and deferred income 5,827             -                    
Social security costs -                -                    
VAT -                -                    
Tax -                -                    
Payments received on account -                -                    
Other payables 364                -                    
Total 7,062             -                    

Total payables (current and non-current) 7,062             

23 Trade and other payables

21.  Non-current assets held for sale     
           

The CCG had no non-current assets held for sale as at 31 March 2014.  
             

22.  Analysis of impairments and reversals    
     

As the CCG does not hold any property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, 
investment property or inventories there is no requirement for any impairment during 
the year ended 31 March 2014.         

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Included above are liabilities of £0, for 0 people, due in future years under 
arrangements to buy out the liability for early retirement over 5 years.  
   

Other payables include £0 outstanding pension contributions as at 31 March 2014
          

24.  Other financial liabilities       
  

The CCG had no other financial liabilities as at 31 March 2014.   
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25.  Other liabilities          

The CCG had no other financial liabilities as at 31 March 2014.   
       

26.  Borrowings         

The CCG had no borrowings as at 31 March 2014.     
    

27. Private finance initiative, LIFT and other service concession 
arrangements          

The CCG had no Private finance initiative, LIFT and other service concession 
arrangements as at 31 March 2014.       
    

28.  Finance lease obligations        

The CCG had no Finance lease obligations as at 31 March 2014.   
   

29.  Finance lease receivables 

The CCG had no Finance lease receivables as at 31 March 2014. 
 

29.1 Finance leases as lessor 

The CCG had no Finance leases as lessor as at 31 March 2014. 
 

29.2 Rental revenue 

The CCG had no rental revenue during year ended 31 March 2014. 
 

30.   Provisions 

Under the Accounts Direction issued by NHS England on 12 February 2014, NHS 
England is responsible for accounting for liabilities relating to NHS Continuing 
Healthcare claims relating to periods of care before establishment of the clinical 
commissioning group. However, the legal liability remains with the CCG. The total 
value of legacy NHS Continuing Healthcare provisions accounted for by NHS England 
on behalf of the CCG as at 31 March 2014 is £1.0 million     

31.  Contingencies 

The CCG had no contingent liabilities or assets as at 31 March 2014. 
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32.  Commitments         

The CCG had no capital or other financial commitments as at 31 March 2014. 
           

33.  Financial instruments       
    

33.1 Financial risk management        

Financial reporting standard IFRS 7 requires disclosure of the role that financial 
instruments have had during the period in creating or changing the risks a body faces 
in undertaking its activities.          

Because the CCG is financed through parliamentary funding, it is not exposed to the 
degree of financial risk faced by business entities. Also, financial instruments play a 
much more limited role in creating or changing risk than would be typical of listed 
companies, to which the financial reporting standards mainly apply. The CCG has 
limited powers to borrow or invest surplus funds and financial assets and liabilities are 
generated by day-to-day operational activities rather than being held to change the 
risks facing the CCG in undertaking its activities.     

Treasury management operations are carried out by the finance department, within 
parameters defined formally within the CCG’s standing financial instructions and 
policies agreed by the Governing Body. Treasury activity is subject to review by the 
CCG’s internal auditors.         

33.1.1 Currency risk           

The CCG is principally a domestic organisation with the great majority of transactions, 
assets and liabilities being in the UK and sterling based. The CCG has no overseas 
operations and therefore has low exposure to currency rate fluctuations.  
         

33.1.2 Interest rate risk         
  

The CCG borrows from government for capital expenditure, subject to affordability as 
confirmed by NHS England. The borrowings are for 1 to 25 years, in line with the life 
of the associated assets, and interest is charged at the National Loans Fund rate, 
fixed for the life of the loan. The CCG therefore has low exposure to interest rate 
fluctuations.  
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33.3 Financial liabilities
At ‘fair 
value 

through 
profit and 

loss’

Other Total

2013-14 2013-14 2013-14
£000 £000 £000

Embedded derivatives -                 -                 -                  
Payables: -                 -                 -                  
·          NHS -                 583             583             
·          Non-NHS -                 6,115          6,115           
Private finance initiative, LIFT and finance lease obligations -                 -                 -                  
Other borrowings -                 -                 -                  
Other financial liabilities -                 -                 -                  
Total at 31 March 2014 -                 6,698          6,698           

33.1.3 Credit risk           

Because the majority of the CCG’s revenue comes parliamentary funding, the CCG 
has low exposure to credit risk. The maximum exposures as at the end of the financial 
year are in receivables from customers, as disclosed in the trade and other 
receivables note.           

33.1.4 Liquidity risk           

The CCG is required to operate within revenue and capital resource limits agreed with 
NHS England, which are financed from resources voted annually by Parliament. The 
CCG draws down cash to cover expenditure, from NHS England, as the need arises 
and is, therefore, not exposed to significant liquidity risks.    
   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

33.2 Financial assets

At ‘fair 
value 

through 
profit and 

loss’

Loans and 
Receivables

Available 
for Sale

Total

2013-14 2013-14 2013-14 2013-14
£000 £000 £000 £000

Embedded derivatives -             -             -              -             
Receivables: -             -             -              -             
·          NHS -             1,376          -              1,376          
·          Non-NHS -             1,484          -              1,484          
Cash at bank and in hand -             29              -              29              
Other financial assets -             281             -              281             
Total at 31 March 2014 -             3,170          -              3,170          
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34.  Operating segments     

The CCG considers that it only has one operating segment: commissioning of 
healthcare services.   
35.  Pooled budgets        
   

The clinical commissioning group and consolidated group had entered into a pooled 
budget with Knowsley Metropolitan Borough Council (KMBC). The pool is hosted by 
KMBC.       

Under the arrangement, funds are pooled under Section 75 of the NHS Act 2006 and 
are used for the provision of Learning Disability, Mental Health and Community 
Support Services. 

The CCG held the following balances on its SoFP as at 31 March 2014. 

 

 

The clinical commissioning group’s and consolidated group’s shares of the income 
and expenditure handled by the pooled budget in the financial year were:  
     

  

36.  NHS Lift investments 

The CCG has no NHS Lift investments as at 31 March 2014. 

 

 

 

         

 

 

Current
Pooled Budget Balances 2013-14

£000

Trade and other receivables 267
Trade and other payables (267)

Pooled Budget Income and Expenditure 2013-14
£000

Income 9,859           
Expenditure (10,185)
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37 Intra-government and other balances
Current 

Receivables
Non-current 
Receivables

Current 
Payables

Non-current 
Payables

2013-14 2013-14 2013-14 2013-14
£000 £000 £000 £000

Balances with:
·          Other Central Government bodies 1                -                 -                  -                 
·          Local Authorities 1,744          -                 522             -                 

Balances with NHS bodies:
·          NHS bodies outside the Departmental Group 574             -                 83               -                 
·          NHS Trusts and Foundation Trusts 920             -                 500             -                 
Total of balances with NHS bodies: 1,494          -                 583             -                 

·          Public corporations and trading funds -                 -                 -                  -                 
·          Bodies external to Government 71              -                 5,957           -                 

Total balances at 31 March 2014 3,310          -                 7,062           -                 
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38 Related party transactions

Related Party Details Payments to 
Related Party

Receipts from 
Related Party

Amounts owed to 
Related Party

Amounts due 
from Related 

Party
£000 £000 £000 £000

The CCG has a contract with Aston Healthcare Ltd which is a 
related party as Dr Aftab Hossain (Governing Body Member: 
Clinical Lead Prescribing) is a shareholder.

206                         -                          -                          -                     

The CCG has a contract with Tower Hill Primary Care Resource & 
Community Centre which is a related party as Dr Faisal 
Maassarani (Governing Body Member: Clinical Lead Unplanned 
Care) is a shareholder.

70                           -                          -                          -                     

The CCG has a contract with St. John's Surgery Limited which is a 
related party as Dr Faisal Maassarani (Governing Body Member: 
Clinical Lead Unplanned Care) is a shareholder.

18                           -                          -                          -                     

The CCG has a contract with Roseheath Surgery Ltd which is a 
related party as Dr Faisal Maassarani (Governing Body Member: 
Clinical Lead  Unplanned Care) is a shareholder.

8                            -                          -                          -                     

The CCG has a contract with Willowbrook Hospice which is a 
related party as Dr Robin Macmillan (Governing Body Member: 
Secondary Care Doctor) is an unpaid Trustee.

465                         -                          5                             -                     

The CCG has a contract with Dinas Lane Medical Centre which is a 
related party as Dr Andrew Pryce (Governing Body Chair) and Dr 
Paul Conway (Governing Body Member: Clinical Quality and Safety 
Lead) are partners in that practice.

235                         -                          -                          -                     

The CCG has a contract with Marie Curie Hospice which is a 
related party as Dr Andrew Pryce's (Governing Body Chair) spouse 
is an employee of the organisation.

148                         -                          -                          -                     

The CCG has several contracts and a pooled budget with Knowsley 
Metropolitan Borough Council which is a related party as Sheena 
Ramsey (Governing Body Member for part of the year) is the Chief 
Executive.

13,470                    (384)                        432                         (267)                    

The CCG has a contract with Hillside House Surgery which is a 
related party as Dr Pervez Sadiq (Governing Body Member: Clinical 
Lead for Women and Children) is a partner in that practice.

42                           -                          -                          -                     

The CCG has a contract with Royal Liverpool & Broadgreen 
University Hospitals NHS Trust which is a related party as Dr 
Pervez Sadiq's (Governing Body Member: Clinical Lead for Women 
and Children) spouse is an employee of the organisation.

19,063                    -                          -                          (288)                    

The CCG contracts services from SK Health (Knowsley) Ltd which 
is a related party as Dr Dave Stokoe (Governing Body Member: 
Clinical Lead for Primary Care Quality) is a shareholder.

313                         -                          83                           -                     

The CCG has a contract with Dr King & Partners Kirkby which is a 
related party as Dr Dave Stokoe (Governing Body Member: Clinical 
Lead for Primary Care Quality) is a partner in that practice.

54                           -                          -                          -                     

The CCG has a contract with Cornerways Medical Centre Ltd which 
is a related party as Dr Sudershan Verma (Governing Body 
Member: Clinical Lead for Mental Health) is a partner in that 
practice.

25                           -                          -                          -                     

The CCG has a contract with the MacMillan Surgery which is a 
related party as Dr Ronnie Thong (Governing Body Member: Clinical 
Lead for Strategy and Planning) is a partner in that practice.

45                           -                          -                          -                     

The CCG has a contract with Trentham Road Medical Centre which 
is a related party as Dr Shweta Tewari (Governing Body Member: 
Clinical Lead for Planned Care) is a partner in that practice.

52                           -                          -                          -                     

The CCG has a contract with Bluebell Lane Medical Practice which 
is a related party as Dr Peter Ayegba (Governing Body Member: 
Clinical Lead for Mental Health) is a partner in that practice.

30                           -                          -                          -                     

The CCG has shared service contracts with NHS St. Helens CCG 
which is a related party as Paul Brickwood (Chief Financial Officer) 
is also Chief Financial Officer of that CCG.

617                         (542)                        1                             (2)                       

The CCG has shared service contracts with NHS Halton CCG 
which is a related party as Paul Brickwood (Chief Financial Officer) 
is also Chief Financial Officer of that CCG.

79                           (208)                        -                          (74)                     

Details of related party transactions with individuals are as follows:
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All transactions have been made on an arm's length basis.     
     

The Department of Health is regarded as a related party. During the year the CCG has 
had a significant number of material transactions with entities for which the 
Department is regarded as the parent Department.These include:   
  

a) NHS England (including NHS Cheshire and Merseyside Commissioning Support 
Unit)     

b) 5 Boroughs Partnership NHS Foundation Trust     
c) Aintree University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust     
d) Alder Hey NHS Foundation Trust     
e) Clatterbridge Centre for Oncology NHS Foundation Trust    
f) Liverpool Heart & Chest Hospital NHS Foundation Trust     
g) Liverpool Women's Hospital NHS Foundation Trust     
h) Merseycare NHS Trust     
i) North West Ambulance NHS Trust     
j) Royal Liverpool & Broadgreen University Hospitals NHS Trust    
k) Southport & Ormskirk Hospitals NHS Trust     
l) St Helens & Knowsley Hospitals NHS Trust     
m) Warrington & Halton Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust     
n) Wirral University Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust    
o) Wrightington Wigan & Leigh NHS Foundation Trust     
p) NHS Litigation Authority     
q) NHS Pensions Agency     
r) NHS Halton CCG     
s) NHS St. Helens CCG     
t) NHS Liverpool CCG     
u) NHS Business Services Authority       

  
 

39.  Events after the end of the reporting period   
         

There are no post balance sheet events which will have a material effect on the 
financial statements of the CCG.        
  

40.  Losses and special payments      
      

The CCG had no losses or special payments during year ended 31 March 2014. 
      

41.  Third party assets        
   

The CCG did not hold any monies on behalf of other parties as at 31 March 2014.
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42.  Financial performance targets      
   

CCGs have a number of financial duties under the NHS Act 2006 (as amended). 
      

The CCG’s performance against those duties was as follows:   
          

 
Note: For the purposes of 223H(1); expenditure is defined as the aggregate of gross 
expenditure on revenue and capital in the financial year: income is defined as the aggregate of 
the notified maximum revenue resource, notified capital resource and all other amounts 
accounted as received in the financial year (whether under provisions of the Act or from other 
sources, and included here on a gross basis).     

43.  Impact of IFRS 

The CCG had no impact of IFRS during the year ended 31 March 2014. 

 

44.  Analysis of charitable reserves 

The CCG had no charitable reserves as at 31 March 2014. 

 

 

 

 

 

National Health 2013-14 2013-14 Duty
Service Act Maximum Performance Achieved?

Section £000 £000

223 H (1) Expenditure not to exceed income 250,693                   248,230               Yes
223 I (2) Capital resource use does not exceed the 

amount specified in Directions -                              -                          Yes
223 I (3) Revenue resource use does not exceed the 

amount specified in Directions 248,354                   245,891               Yes
223 J (1) Capital resource use on specified matter(s) 

does not exceed the amount specified in 
Directions -                              -                          Yes

223 J (2) Revenue resource use on specified matter(s) 
does not exceed the amount specified in 
Directions -                              -                          Yes

223 J (3) Revenue administration resource use does not 
exceed the amount specified in Directions 3,730                       3,688                   Yes



95 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDICES 



96 
 

 

 

 

    

Appendix 1 – Performance Report 



97 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



98 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



99 
 

 



100 
 

Appendix 2 – Financial Summary 

Summary of CCG Income & Expenditure 2013/14 
£m 

Opening Baseline Allocation - Programme 241.5 

Other Allocations – Programme 3.1 

Opening Baseline Allocation – Running Costs 3.7 

Total CCG Allocation 248.3 
 

CCG Revenue - Admin 0.6 

CCG Revenue - Programme 1.8 

Total CCG Revenue (Income) 

 

2.4 

Total CCG Resources 250.7 
 

Gross Operating Expenses - Admin 4.2 

Gross Operating Expenses - Programme 244.0 

Finance Costs - 

Total CCG Operating Expenses 248.2 
 

Surplus/(Deficit) Carried Forward 2.5 
 

*This will be returned to the CCG in 2014/15 

 
Statutory Duties Target  

£m 
 

Actual  
£m 

Variance 
£m 

Met? 

Expenditure Not To Exceed Programme 
Allocation 

244.7 242.2 -2.5 √ 

Expenditure Not Exceed Running Cost 
Allowance 

3.7 3.7 0.0 √ 

Expenditure Not To Exceed Capital Resource 
Limit 

0.0 0.0 0.0 √ 
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CCG Spending 2013/14 
£m 

Programme Expenditure  
Acute Services 133.4 
Mental Health Services 24.8 
Community Health Services 25.7 
Continuing Care & LA Pooled Budgets 13.0 
Prescribing & Primary Care Services 34.0 
Other Programme Services 7.6 
Total Programme Spend 238.5 
Running Cost (Admin) Expenditure 3.7 
Total Expenditure* 242.2 
*This figure is net of £2.3m income received by the CCG 
 

 
Running Costs (Admin) 2013/14 

£m 
2013/14 
£/head* 

CCG Direct Costs Staff 1.3 8.42 
CCG Direct Non-Pay 1.0 6.79 
Other CCG Shared Services 0.3 1.86 
Commissioning Support Unit 1.1 7.66 
Total Running Costs 3.7 24.73 
*This is the ONS constrained population which equated to 149,108 in 2013/14 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Statutory Duties Target 
£m

Actual 
£m

Varience 
£m

Met?

Expenditure Not To Exceed Programme Allocation 244.7 242.2 -2.5 √
Expenditure Not Exceed Running Cost Allowance 3.7 3.7 0.0 √
Expenditure Not To Exceed Capital Resource Limit 0.0 0.0 0.0 √
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CCG Spending 2013/14 
  £m 

Programme Expenditure   
Acute Services      133.4  
Mental Health Services        24.8  
Community Health Services        25.7  
Continuing Care & LA Pooled 
Budgets        13.0  
Prescribing & Primary Care Services        34.0  
Other Programme Services         7.6  
Total Programme Spend      238.5  
    
Running Cost (Admin) Expenditure         3.7  
    
Total Expenditure*      242.2  

 

 

*This figure is net of “2.3m income received by the CCG 

 

Running Costs (Admin) 2013/14 
  £m £/head* 

CCG Direct Costs Staff 1.3 8.42 

CCG Direct Non-Pay 1.0 6.79 

Other CCG Shared Services 0.3 1.86 

Commissioning Support Unit 1.1 7.66 

Total Running Costs 3.7 24.73 
 

 

*This is the ONS constrained population which equated to 149,108 in 2013/14  
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Appendix 3 - Member Practices 

The CCG comprises the 33 GP practices in the borough of Knowsley: 

Practice Name Address 
Aston Healthcare Ltd Manor Farm Primary Care Resource Centre, Manor 

Farm Road, Huyton, Liverpool, L36 0UB 
Bluebell Lane Medical Practice The Bluebell Centre, Bluebell Lane, Huyton, Liverpool 

L36 7XY 
Cedar Cross Medical Centre Whiston Primary Care Resource Centre, Old Colliery 

Road, Whiston, Merseyside 
L35 3SX 

Colby Medical Centre The Bluebell Centre, Bluebell Lane, Huyton, Liverpool 
L36 7XY 

Cornerways Medical Centre 
 

Woolfall Heath Avenue, Huyton, Liverpool L36 3TN 

Dinas Lane Medical Centre Dinas Lane Medical Centre, 149 Dinas Lane, Huyton, 
Liverpool L36 2NW 

Dr A K Singhal’s Practice 30 Hillside Road, Huyton, Liverpool  
L36 8BJ 

Dr M Suares’ Practice Pilch Lane Surgery, Pilch Lane, Huyton, Liverpool L14 
0JE 

Dr N J Wycherley’s Practice  The Family Health Centre, Sidney Powell Avenue, 
Westvale, Kirkby, Liverpool L32 0TL  

Dr P L Jones’ Practice Stockbridge Village Health Centre, Leachcroft, 
Waterpark Drive, Stockbridge Village, Liverpool L28 
3QA 

Dr R Messing’s Practice 485 Princess Drive, Huyton, Liverpool 
L14 8XF 

Drs Kinloch and Moran The Health Centre Surgery, Roseheath Drive, 
Halewood, Liverpool L26 9UH 

EATPMC (Halewood)  The Halewood Centre, Roseheath Drive, Halewood, 
Liverpool L26 9UH  

EATPMC (Health Centre)  St Chad’s Clinic, Kirkby, Merseyside L32 8RE 
  

EATPMC (Huyton)  North Huyton Primary Care Resource Centre, Woolfall 
Heath Avenue, Huyton, Liverpool L36 3TN  

EATPMC (Whiston)  Whiston Primary Care Resource Centre, Old Colliery 
Road, Whiston, Prescot, Merseyside, L35 3SX  

Hillside House Surgery The Bluebell Centre, Bluebell Lane, Huyton, Liverpool 
L36 7XY 

Hollies Medical Centre Hollies Medical Centre, Hollies Road, Halewood Village, 
Liverpool L26 0TH 

Longview Primary Care Centre Longview Primary Care Centre, Longview Drive, 
Huyton, Liverpool L36 6EB 

Millbrook Medical Centre  Southdene Primary Care Resource Centre, Bewley 
Drive, Kirkby L32 9PF  

MK and NN Rahman Whiston Primary Care Resource Centre, Old Colliery 
Road, Whiston, Prescot L35 3SX 

Nutgrove Villa Surgery Nutgrove Villa, Westmorland Road, Huyton, Liverpool 
L36 6GA 

Park House Medical Centre Prescot Primary Care Resource Centre, Sewell Street, 
Prescot, Merseyside  
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L34 1ND 
Prescot Primary Care Resource 
Centre 

Prescot Primary Care Resource Centre, Sewell Street, 
Prescot L34 1ND 

Roseheath Surgery Roseheath Drive, Halewood, Liverpool  
L26 9UH 

St John’s Surgery Manor Farm Resource Centre, Manor Farm Road, 
Huyton, Liverpool L36 0UB 

St Laurence’s Medical Centre  St. Laurence’s Medical Centre, 32 Leeside Avenue, 
Southdene, Kirkby, Liverpool L32 9QU  

Tarbock Medical Centre 104 Tarbock Road, Huyton, Liverpool  
L36 5TH 

The Macmillan Surgery  St Chads Centre, St Chads Drive, Kirkby, Merseyside 
L32 8RE  

The Roby Medical Centre 70-72 Pilch Lane East, Roby, Liverpool, Merseyside L36 
4NP 

Tower Hill Primary Care 
Resource & Community Centre 

Tower Hill Primary Care Resource & Community 
Centre, Ebony Way, Kirkby, Liverpool L33 1XT  
 

Trentham Medical Centre St Chads Centre, St Chads Drive, Kirkby, L32 8RE 
 

Wingate Medical Centre  79 Bigdale Drive, Northwood, Kirkby, Liverpool L33 6YJ 
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Appendix 4 - Clinical Membership Group composition 2013/14 
 
 

Practice  Clinical Representative 
 

Aston Healthcare Ltd 
 

Dr A Hossain 
 

Bluebell Lane Medical Practice 
 

Dr P Ayegba 
 

Cedar Cross Medical Centre 
 

Dr K Kyaw 

Colby Medical Centre 
 

S Kanczes-Daly 

Cornerways Medical Centre 
 

Dr S Verma 
Dr C Kenny 

Dinas Lane Medical Centre 
 

Dr B Loughran 
 

Dr P L Jones’ Practice 
 

Dr T Mullin 
Dr P Barry 

MK and NN Rahman  
 

Dr N Rahman 

Dr A K Singhal’s Practice 
 

Dr A Singhal 

Dr’s Kinloch & Moran 
 

Dr T Kinloch 

Dr N J Wycherley’s Practice  
 

Dr C Wycherley 
 

Hillside House Surgery 
 

Dr P Sadiq 

Longview Primary Care Centre 
 

Dr M Alexander 

MacMillan Surgery 
 

Dr R Thong 
 

Millbrook Medical Centre Dr M Segar 
 

Nutgrove Villa Surgery 
 

Dr S Gunaseelan 
 

Options EAtPMC    
(4 sites) 

Dr S Gallard 
Dr B Travers 

Park House Medical Centre Dr J Brindley 
 

Dr M Suares’ Practice 
 

Dr S Kuruvilla 
 

Prescot Primary Care Resource 
Centre 
 

Dr D Heath 
 

Dr R Messing’s Practice 
 

Dr R Messing 
 

Roby Medical Centre 
 

Dr G Nayak (Chair) 
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Roseheath Surgery 
 

Dr C Kenny 
 

St Johns Surgery Ltd 
 

Dr C Kenny 
 

St Laurence’s Medical Centre 
 

Dr A Fell 
 

Tarbock Medical Centre 
 

Dr R Rashid 
 

The Hollies Medical Centre 
 

Dr P Swinhoe 

Tower Hill Primary Care & 
Community Resource Centre 

Dr C Kenny 

Trentham Medical Centre 
 

Dr S Tewari 
 

Wingate Medical Centre 
 

Dr J O’Donnell 
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Appendix 5 - Governing Body composition 

 
Governing Body 
  
 Title  Name Start End Comments 
Chair A Pryce 01-Apr-13   
Accountable Officer D Johnson 01-Apr-13   
Chief Finance Officer P Brickwood 01-Apr-13   
LA Chief Executive  S Ramsey 01-Apr-13 24-Dec-13 Now in attendance 
Clinical Leads   Start End Comments 
Mental Health S Verma 01-Apr-13 31-May-13  
Mental Health P Ayegba 29-Jul-13   
Quality & Safety P Conway 01-Apr-13   
Prescribing A Hossain 01-Apr-13   
Unplanned Care F Maassarani 01-Apr-13   
Women & Children P Sadiq 01-Apr-13   
Primary Care Quality D Stokoe 01-Apr-13   
Planned Care S Tewari 01-Apr-13 31-Mar-14  
Strategy & Planning R Thong 01-Apr-13   
Lay Members   Start End Comments 
Audit and Governance M Broderick 01-Apr-13 22-Sep-13  
Audit and Governance S Bramley 15-Nov-13   
Patient and Public 
Involvement 

R Austen-
Vincent 

01-Apr-13   

Quality and Safety D Quinlan 03-Dec-13   
Clinical Advisors   Start End Comments 
Secondary Care Doctor R Macmillan 01-Apr-13   
Registered Nurse B Worthington 01-Apr-13   
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Appendix 6 - Clinical Membership Group Profiles  

The Clinical Membership Group is made up of nominated clinical representatives 
from the area’s general practices. (See below for short profiles on each of the 
members). 

Aston Healthcare Limited  Dr A Hossain  

Dr Hossain is a GP at Aston Healthcare Limited in the Manor Farm Primary Care 
Resource Centre in Huyton. He is the CCG’s Prescribing Lead and has a long 
history of involvement in clinical commissioning. 

 

Bluebell Lane Medical Practice       Dr P Ayegba  

Dr Ayegba is a Partner at the Bluebell Lane Medical Practice in the Bluebell Centre 
in Huyton. He is also a GP trainer, the Clinical Lead for Mental Health, and has been 
heavily involved in clinical commissioning for several years. 

 

Cedar Cross Medical Centre  Dr K Kyaw    

Dr Kyaw is the GP Principal at Cedar Cross Medical Centre in Whiston. Dr Kyaw 
joined the practice in September 2012, and took over the practice after the senior 
partner retired.   

 

Colby Medical Centre   Ms S Kanczes-Daly  

Ms KanczesDaly is a Nurse Consultant at the Colby Medical Centre in the Blue Bell 
Centre in Huyton. 

 

Cornerways Medical Centre   Dr S Verma    

Dr Verma was a GP at the Cornerways Medical Centre in Huyton until his retirement 
in December 2013. 

 

Dinas Lane Medical Centre   Dr B Loughran   

Dr Loughran is a GP partner at the Dinas Lane Medical Centre in Huyton, and has 
worked in Knowsley since 2006. 
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Family Health Centre    Dr C Wycherley   

Dr Wycherley is a GP at the Family Health Centre in Kirkby, and has a long history of 
involvement with clinical commissioning.  

 

Hillside House Surgery      Dr P Sadiq   

Dr Sadiq is a GP at the Hillside House Surgery in the Blue Bell Centre in Huyton. He 
is the CCG’s clinical lead for Women and Children. 

 

Dr Jones & Partners Practice     Dr T Mullin    

Dr Mullin was a GP at the Dr Jones & Partners Practice in the Stockbridge Village 
Health Centre in Stockbridge Village. Dr Barry took over as practice representative in 
October 2013. 

 

Dr Jones & Partners Practice   Dr P Barry    

Dr Barry is a GP at Dr P L Jones & Partners’ Practice in the Stockbridge Village 
Health Centre in Stockbridge Village and is the CCG’s Lead for End of Life Care. 

 

Drs Kinloch & Moran Practice      Dr T Kinloch  

Dr Kinloch is a Principal GP at the Drs Kinloch & Moran Practice in the Halewood 
Centre in Halewood. Dr Kinloch has been a GP in Halewood for 29 years and has 
been Chair of the Mid Mersey LMC for the past 5 years.  

 

Longview Medical Centre  Dr M Alexander  

Dr Alexander is a GP at the Longview Medical Centre in the Longview Primary Care 
Resource Centre in Huyton, and has a long history of working in clinical 
commissioning.  

 

MacMillan Surgery    Dr R Thong   

Dr Thong is a GP at the MacMillan Surgery in the St Chads Centre in Kirkby, and is 
the CCG’s lead for Strategy and Planning. 
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Maassarani Group of Practices   Dr C Kenny    

Dr Kenny is a GP across the Maassarani Group of Practices in the borough. These 
are St John’s Surgery, Roseheath Surgery, Tower Hill Primary Care Resource 
Centre and from February 2014, Cornerways Medical Centre. 

 

Millbrook Medical Centre   Dr M Segar   

Dr Segar is a GP at the Millbrook Medical Centre in Kirkby.  

 

Nutgrove Villa Surgery    Dr S Gunaseelan  

Dr Gunasleelam is a GP at the Nutgrove Villa Surgery in Huyton. 

 

Options (four sites)   Dr S Gallard (to March 2014)  

Dr Gallard is a GP at the Options Practice in the Tower Hill Primary Care and 
Community Resource Centre in Kirkby. 

Options (four sites)   Dr B Travers  

Dr Travers is a GP at the Options Practice in the Tower Hill Primary Care & 
Community Resource Centre in Kirkby. Dr Travers took over as practice 
representative from March 2014. 

 

Park House Medical Centre   Dr J Brindley  

Dr Brindley is a GP at the Park House Medical Centre in the Prescot Primary Care 
Resource Centre in Prescot and has been a long-standing supporter of clinical 
commissioning. 

 

Pilch Lane Surgery    Dr S Kuruvilla  

Dr Kuruvilla is a GP at the Pilch Lane Surgery in Huyton. 
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Princess Drive Medical Centre   Dr R Messing   

Dr Messing is the Principal GP at the Princes Drive Medical Centre in Huyton. He 
has been a Principal GP for 30 years, 28 years of which, have been at the Princess 
Drive Medical Centre. 

 

Prescot Medical Centre   Dr D Heath   

Dr Heath is a GP in the Prescot Medical Centre in the Prescot Primary Care 
Resource Centre in Prescot, and has a keen interest in women’s health. 

 

Dr Rahman Surgery   Dr N Rahman  

Dr Rahman is the Principal GP at the Rahman Surgery in the Whiston Primary Care 
Resource Centre in Whiston. 

 

Roby Medical Centre   Dr G Nayak (CMG Chair)  

Dr Nayak is a GP at the Roby Medical Centre in Roby. She has extensive 
experience of education, training and leading clinical practice. 

 

Dr Singhal’s Surgery    Dr A Singhal  

Dr Singhal is the Principal GP at the Dr Singhal’s Surgery in Huyton, and is a 
member of the CCG’s Audit Committee. 

 

St Laurences Medical Centre     Dr A Fell    

Dr Fell is a GP at the St Laurences Medical Centre in Kirkby. 

 

The Hollies Medical Centre  Dr P Swinhoe   

Dr Swinhoe is a GP at the Hollies Medical Centre in Halewood. 

 

Tarbock Medical Centre   Dr R Rashid  

Dr Rashid, is a GP at the Tarbock Medical Centre in Huyton. He has been a GP for 
15 years and has been a GP in Knowsley at his present practice for about 5 years. 
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Trentham Medical Centre   Dr S Tewari    

Dr Tewari is a GP at the Trentham Medical Centre in Kirkby. 

 

Wingate Medical Centre    Dr J O’Donnell  

Dr O’Donnell is a GP in the Wingate Medical centre in Kirkby, and has extensive 
experience of clinical commissioning having been the Chair of a Practice Based 
Commissioning Group and a member of the former PCT’s PEC. 
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Appendix 7 - Governing Body profiles 
The Governing Body is made up of elected clinical representatives from the area’s 
general practices, senior officers from within the organisation, a nurse and 
secondary care doctor, and lay representatives. (See below for short profiles on 
each of the members). 

From 1st April 2103 to the current date unless otherwise stated: 

 

Dr Andrew Pryce, Chair   

Andrew has been a GP in Huyton since 1991. He is a senior partner in a busy four 
partner practice, in an area of mixed demographics, incorporating some of the most 
deprived localities in the borough.  

Andrew was formally the Chair of the Practice Based Commissioning Group and has 
been the Chair of the CCG for the past 12 months.  

 

Dianne Johnson, Accountable Officer 

Dianne is a nurse with over 30 years NHS experience within both acute and primary 
care settings.  

Dianne came to work in Knowsley in 2003. She led the introduction and development 
of Practice Based Commissioning within Knowsley, prior to establishing and 
developing the CCG as its Accountable Officer. 

 
 

Ruth Austen-Vincent, Lay Member Patient and Public Involvement 

Ruth is the Lay Member for Patient and Public Involvement and is also the Chair of 
the CCG’s HR and Remuneration Committee. 

She has lived in Knowsley for the past 21 years, working in both a voluntary and paid 
capacity. 

 

Dr Peter Ayegba, Clinical Lead - Mental Health Lead (from 29th July 2013) 

Peter is a Partner at the Bluebell Practice, Huyton. 

Peter has been a proactive GP in Knowsley since 2005, and is now a GP trainer and 
the Clinical Lead for Mental Health. He was previously Chair of the South and 
Central Practice Based Commissioning Group.  
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Su Bramley, Audit and Governance (from 15th November 2013) 

Su is the Lay Member for Audit and Governance and Chairs the Audit Committee. 
Su is also sits on the HR and Remuneration Committee and, is the Chair of the 
Finance and Performance Committee. 

A recent member of the NHS (since November 2013), Su’s previous experience was 
in social housing, charity governance and financial management. She is a Chartered 
Accountant and also works as an independent governance and risk consultant. 

 

Mark Broderick, Lay Member Audit and Governance (from 1st April 2013 to 22nd 
September 2013) 

Mark was the Lay Member for Audit and Governance. He was the Chair of the 
Finance and Performance Committee, Chair of the Audit Committee and Vice Chair 
of the Governing Body.   

Mark spent has spent 30 years with Merseyside Fire and Rescue Service - his last 
two posts were Director of Community Safety and Director of Operational 
Preparedness.  

 

Paul Brickwood, Chief Finance Officer 

Paul is a qualified accountant with 30 years NHS experience, and over 20 years at 
director level.   

Before joining Knowsley CCG, Paul worked for Knowsley PCT where he had a wide 
portfolio including; acute commissioning and information technology.  

 

Dr Paul Conway, Clinical Lead - Clinical Quality and Safety  

Paul has been a GP in Knowsley for the last 17 years and is currently a partner at 
Dinas Lane Surgery. He was formally an Assistant Director within Knowsley PCT, as 
well as previously being a member of the Professional Executive, and led on Primary 
Care Quality Improvement for the PCT.  

 

Dr Aftab Hossain, Clinical Lead – Prescribing 

Aftab has been a GP since 1987, working in Knowsley since 2007.  Aftab was 
previously Chair of Aston’s Practice Based Commissioning Group and has been 
involved with developing Knowsley CCG from the very beginning. He now leads on 
Prescribing and Medicines Management in the CCG. He has also been a GP Trainer 
for two years. 
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Dr Faisal Maassarani, Clinical Lead - Unplanned Care 

Faisal has worked within Knowsley for the past 10 years and has a number of 
practices across the borough. 

He was involved in Practice Based Commissioning prior to joining the CCG and has 
now been elected to the role of Unplanned Care Clinical Lead. 

 

Dr Robin Macmillan, Secondary Care Doctor 

Robin is the Secondary Care Doctor on the Governing Body and the Chair of the 
Clinical Quality & Safety Committee. He was previously the Chair of the Medicines 
Management Sub Committee.  

Robin was the Medical Director at St Helens and Knowsley Hospitals Trust between 
1996 and 2007.  He was a Consultant in Intensive Care and Anaesthesia at St 
Helens and Knowsley Hospitals Trust and retired from the position in 2009.   

 

Dilys Quinlan, Lay Member, Clinical Quality and Safety (from 1st December 2013) 

Dilys is the Chair of the Medicines Management Committee, and sits on the Clinical 
Quality & Safety Committee and the Serious Untoward Incidents Sub-Committee. 

Educated to MSc level, Dilys spent 20 years as an NHS Senior Manager in diverse 
roles within clinical areas across primary and secondary care. She has also worked 
in private medicine, a local Community Health Council setting, and has professional 
and voluntary experience of inter-agency partnership working with the Local 
Authority and the voluntary sector. 

 

Sheena Ramsey, Local Authority Chief Executive (from 1st April 2013 to 
December 2013) 

Sheena was originally a full member of the Governing Body (from April to December 
2013). However following NHS England guidance she is now in attendance at the 
meetings. 

Sheena has a wealth of Local Authority knowledge and experience, gained from a 
number of management positions that she has held in various Local Authorities. In 
particular, knowledge and experience around large-scale transformation of services 
and people. 
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Dr Pervez Sadiq, Clinical Lead - Women and Children 

Pervez has been a GP in Knowsley since 1988, based at Hillside House Surgery. 

He is the Clinical Lead for Women and Children and has a lead role in 
commissioning maternity, gynaecology and paediatric care in hospital and 
community settings. 

 

Dr David Stokoe, Clinical Lead - Primary Care Quality 

Dave is a partner at St Laurence’s Medical Centre and has worked in Knowsley 
since 1997. 

Before joining Knowsley CCG, Dave was heavily involved with Primary Care Groups, 
Prescribing Committees and Executive Committees, as well as Practice Based 
Commissioning from its inception. He is now the Clinical Lead for Primary Care 
Quality.  

 

Dr Shweta Tewari, Clinical Lead - Planned Care 

Shweta is a GP at Trentham Surgery, Kirkby since 2009. 

She was actively involved in Practice Based Commissioning prior to joining the CCG, 
and is now the Clinical Lead for Planned Care. Shweta also teaches and trains 
medical students within her practice. 

 

Dr Ronnie Thong, Clinical Lead - Strategy and Planning 

Ronnie is a GP at MacMillan Surgery, Kirkby, and has been based in Knowsley for 
the past 24 years. 

He was the Chair of Kirkby Practice Based Commissioning Group. Ronnie is the 
Clinical Lead for Strategy and Planning.   

 

Dr Sudershan Verma, Clinical Lead – Mental Health (from 1st April 2013 to May 
2013) 

Sudershan has been a GP in Knowsley for 30 years and is based at Cornerways 
Medical Centre.  

For the past two years, Sudershan was involved in the development of clinical 
commissioning within Knowsley, contributing to the development of the Knowsley 
Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) and taking responsibility as a CCG Board 
Member and Clinical Lead for Mental Health.  
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Breeda Worthington, Head of Quality and Safety/Governing Body Nurse 

Breeda qualified as a Registered General Nurse and as a Registered Sick Children’s 
Nurse. Her career includes secondary care organisational leadership and 
management positions, as well as also holding national quality improvement 
programme roles in the NHS (England and Wales).   
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Name Date of 
Declaration

CCG Role Roles and responsibilities held within 
member practices

Directorships, including non-executive 
directorships, held in private 
companies or PLCs

Ownership of part-ownership of 
private companies, businesses or 
consultancies likely or possibly 
seeking to do business with the CCG

Shareholdings (more then 5%) of 
companies in the field of health and 
social care

Positions of authority in an 
organisation (e.g. charity or voluntary 
organisation) in the field of health and 
social care

Any connection with a voluntary or 
other organisation contracting NHS 
services

Research funding/grants that may be 
received by the individual or any 
organisation in which they have an 
interest or role.

Any other specific interests Any other role or relationship which 
the public could perceive would impair 
or otherwise influence the individual's 
judgement or actions in their role 
within the CCG.

Ashton, Matthew 07/11/2013 In attendance at the Governing Body, 
Director of Public Health, Knowsley MBC

None declared None declared None declared None declared None declared None declared None declared None declared None declared

Austen-Vincent, Ruth 13/02/2014 Governing Body Member - Lay Advisor - 
Patient & Public Involvement

None declared None declared None declared None declared Co-Chair Knowsley Ethnic Minority Support 
(KEMS)

Director of Involvement - Making Space None declared None declared Consultancy work for EW Group
Self employed - other organisations in 
Merseyside Area

Ayegba, Dr Peter 24/12/2013 Governing Body Member - Clinical Lead for 
Mental Health

GP Partner Director Bluebell Medical Consultants (MG) 
Ltd 

Bluebell Medical Consultants (MG) Ltd Bluebell Medical Consultants (MG) Ltd None declared Provider of anti-coagulation service None declared None declared None declared

Ayegba, Dr Peter 27/03/2013 Practice Representative Nilmilex Healthcare Ltd - Director - 7403892 Nimilex Healthcare Ltd - 100% ownership Nimilex Healthcare Ltd - 100% ownership Nil • GMS contract holder Nil

Nil

Bramley, Susan 19/11/2013
Governing Body Member - Lay Advisor - Audit 
& Governance None declared Director of Caro Bramley Ltd

Owner of Caro Bramley Ltd (unlikely to seek 
any CCG business) Nil Trustee at Age Concern Crosby Nil Nil

Trustee at GMCP (Connections) 
Trustee at One Brick at a Time (Education 
Uganda) Nil

Brickwood, Paul 16/07/2013 Chief Finance Officer None declared
Wife - sole Director at Gill Brickwood Ltd 
(health consultancy) Wife - Gill Brickwood Ltd Wife - Gill Brickwood Ltd 100% None declared None declared None declared None declared None declared

Broderick, Mark
06/11/2013 Lay Advisor - Audit & Governance Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Nil
Wife is a clinical skills trainer with Aintree 
NHS FT.

Conway, Dr Paul 06/12/2013
Governing Body Member, Clinical Quality & 
Safety Lead GP Partner

Director of Conway Medical Services Ltd 
08758821 Partner at Dina's Lane Medical Centre 25% at Dina's Lane Medical Centre Nil

Spouse is a volunteer and former employee 
for Merseyside Society for Deaf People
PMS Contract with NHS England
Dina's Lane Medical Centre is a provider of 
Anticoagulation & Phlebotomy Services Nil Nil Nil

Hossain, Dr Aftab 07/11/2013
Governing Body Member - Clinical Lead - 
Prescribing GP Principal Aston Healthcare

Managing Director - Aston Healthcare Ltd 
04159048 Aston Healthcare Ltd Aston Healthcare Ltd - 52% None declared

PMS Contract Holder. Aston Healthcare Ltd is 
a provider of Anticoagulation and Minor 
Surgery Services to practice population only.                 
Aston Healthcare Ltd is a provider of 
Anticoagulation and Minor Surgery Services 
(to practice population only). None declared None declared None declared

Johnson, Dianne 06/11/2013
Governing Body Member - Accountable 
Officer Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Brother is MP for Halton and has dealings 
with St Helens & Knowsley Hospitals NHS 
Trust

Maassarani, Dr Faisal 01/01/2014 Governing Body Member - Clinical Lead GP Partner

Cornerways Medical Centre Ltd - 6063350
Dr F Maassarani Ltd - 6844441
Roseheath Surgery Ltd - 7596118
St John's Surgery  Limited - 5781396

Dr F Maassarani Ltd - 6844441
Dr Maassarani & Partners Ltd - 7629051
Roseheath Surgery Ltd - 7596118
St John's Surgery Limited - 5781396
PD Medical Ltd 6933049 (1%)

Dr F Maassarani Ltd 100%
Dr Maassarani & Partners Ltd 80%
Roseheath Surgery Ltd 100%
St John's Surgery Limited 100%

Towerhill (Maassarani) Community Charity 
1132199 - Trustee                Spouse/Partner - 
Dr Kenny - Home-Start Knowsley 05197002 - 
Trustee

PMS Contract with NHS England                 
Lee Panter - Inspira Health Ltd                                             
Mark Pilling - Specta Health None declared None declared None declared

Macmillan, Dr Robin 08/11/2013
Governing Body Member, Secondary Care 
Doctor None declared None declared None declared None declared

Trustee of charity  - Willowbrook Hospice 
(unpaid)
Trustee of charity - Mersey School of 
Anaesthesia (unpaid)

Trustee of charity  - Willowbrook Hospice 
(unpaid)
Trustee of charity - Mersey School of 
Anaesthesia (unpaid) None declared None declared

Previous employee of St Helens & Knowsley 
Hospitals NHS Trust 

Pryce, Dr Andrew 07/11/2013
Governing Body Member, Governing Body 
Chair GP Partner at Dinas Lane Medical Centre

       
03546267. Daughter is Director of Utah 
Locums Ltd (08173282).
Director of Pryce Medical Services Limited - 
Company 08678093 *Spouse and children are 
shareholders

Partner at Dinas Lane Medical Centre 25% at Dinas Lane Medical Centre
Parochial Church Council Member - Holy 
Trinity Church

PMS Contract with NHS England
Dinas Lane Medical Centre is a provider of 
Anticoagulation & Phlebotomy Services
*Spouse is employed by Marie Curie Centre, 
Liverpool

None declared None declared
Director of "Pryce Medical Services Ltd" - 
Shareholders - Spouse & Both Children.

Quinlan, Dilys 12/12/2013
Governing Body Member, Lay Advisor - 
Quality and Safety Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Ramsey, Sheena 07/11/2013
In attendance at the Governing Body, LA 
Chief Executive None declared None declared None declared None declared None declared

Board of Trustees - National Wildflower 
Centre None declared None declared None declared

Sadiq, Dr Pervez 07/11/2013
Governing Body Member, Clinical Lead for 
Women and Children Senior GP at Hillside House Surgery Nil Hillside House Surgery 100%

£5000.00 worth of shares in Assura Medical 
Services

Spouse is Assistant Director of Nursing at 
Royal Liverpool & Boardgreen University 
Hospitals NHS Trust GMS Contract with NHS England Nil Nil Nil

Spreadbury, Mary 07/11/2013
In attendance at the Governing Body, 
Healthwatch Representative Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Stokoe, Dr Dave 08/01/2014
Governing Body Member - Clinical Lead for 
Primary Care Quality GP Partner at St Laurences Medical Centre None declared

50% Ownership of SK Health (Knowsley) Ltd, 
which is a provider of ENT & Minor Surgery 
Services
GP Partner at St Laurences Medical Centre

37% at St Laurences Medical Centre Nil

PMS Contract with NHS England
Provider of NHS Services (ENT & Minor 
Surgery) via SK Health (Knowsley) Ltd Nil Nil Nil

Tewari, Dr Shweta 18/12/2013
Governing Body Member - Clinical Lead for 
Planned Care Principal GP at Trentham Medical Centre Nil Nil Nil Nil PMS Contract with NHS England Nil Nil Nil

Thong, Dr R 25/04/2013 Deputy Practice Representative • Taylor Healthcare (not a limited company). • MacMillan Surgery GP Practice, Owner • Taylor Healthcare:  Dr Thong 50%, Spouse Medical Adviser (part time).  A+S Healthcare. ATOS Healthcare contract with Dept of Work Nil • Substance Misuse Lead for NHS Knowsley 

Thong, Dr Ronnie 17/12/2013
Governing Body Member - Clinical Lead for 
Strategy & Planning

GP Principal  - Lead Clinician for MacMillan 
Surgery

Director of Taylor Healthcare (Southport) Ltd 
(Mrs Thong is also a director) Company No. 
08798308

Nil
Taylor Healthcare (Southport) Ltd - self 50% 
wife 50%                                                                                                                                                   

War Pension Medicals for Veterans Agency 
(Ministry of Defence)  PMS Contract with NHS England

Appraiser for NHS England.   
Contract with Mark Pilling - Specta Health   Nil Nil

Substance Misuse Lead for Knowsley 
MBC (remunerated).       

Worthington, Breeda 18/12/2013
Governing Body Member - Head of Quality & 
Safety/Lead Nurse Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Husband is an Account Manager for a 
Pharmaceutical Company - Fresenius 
Medical Centre

Appendix 8 - Register of Interests 

Governing Body Register of Interest 
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Name Date of 
Declaration

CCG Role Roles and responsibilities held within 
member practices

Directorships, including non-executive 
directorships, held in private 
companies or PLCs

Ownership of part-ownership of 
private companies, businesses or 
consultancies likely or possibly 
seeking to do business with the CCG

Shareholdings (more then 5%) of 
companies in the field of health and 
social care

Positions of authority in an 
organisation (e.g. charity or voluntary 
organisation) in the field of health and 
social care

Any connection with a voluntary or 
other organisation contracting NHS 
services

Research funding/grants that may be 
received by the individual or any 
organisation in which they have an 
interest or role.

Any other specific interests Any other role or relationship which 
the public could perceive would impair 
or otherwise influence the individual's 
judgement or actions in their role 
within the CCG.

Alexander, Dr Manu 23/12/2013 Practice Representative Nil Director - Longview Primary Surgical Servies 
Ltd. Company No - 8454763.

Part Owner - Longview Primary Surgical 
Services.

50% shareholding in Longview Primary 
Surgical Services.

Nil Nil Nil
Nil PMS Contract with NHS England

Ashcroft, Dr Susan 31/07/2013 Deputy Practice Representative Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Nil
Ayegba, Dr Peter 24/12/2013 Governing Body Member - Clinical Lead for 

Mental Health
GP Partner Director Bluebell Medical Consultants (MG) 

Ltd 
Bluebell Medical Consultants (MG) Ltd Bluebell Medical Consultants (MG) Ltd None declared Provider of anti-coagulation service None declared None declared None declared

Barry, Dr Paul 10/12/2013 Clinical Membership Group Member Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Booth, Nigel 31/07/2013 Clinical Membership Group Member Nil Director PRN Clinical Nursing Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Brindley, Dr John 10/12/2013
Clinical Membership Group Member & 
Medicines Management Sub-Committee Senior Partner. Prescribing Lead. CQC Lead. Nil Nil Nil Nil

Medical Director of St Helena Rota (EP 
Cooperative) Nil Nil

Member of Mid Mersey Local Medical 
Committee

Fell, Dr Anita 07/01/2014 Clinical Membership Group Member
Partner at St Laurence's Medical Centre (76% 
profit share) Nil Nil Director at Fell Medical (50% Ownership). Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Gallard, Dr Stephanie 03/01/2014 CMG Rep & Audit Committee Rep Local Medical Director for the Options service. 1. Associate MD at Liverpool CH. 2. Dermatology 
GPSI for RLBUHT community dermatology 
service. 3. Bank family planning GP for Wirral 
Community NHS Trust

Accept funding to provide derma education 
across the mersey footprint.

Gunaseelan, Dr Sathyan 12/12/2013 Clinical Membership Group Member Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Heath, Dr Dawn 11/03/2014 Clinical Membership Group Member Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Heath, Dr James 19/12/2013 Clinical Membership Group Member GP Principal Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Hossain, Dr Aftab 07/11/2013
Governing Body Member - Clinical Lead - 
Prescribing GP Principal Aston Healthcare

Managing Director - Aston Healthcare Ltd 
04159048 Aston Healthcare Ltd Aston Healthcare Ltd - 52% None declared

PMS Contract Holder. Aston Healthcare Ltd is 
a provider of Anticoagulation and Minor 
Surgery Services to practice population only.                 
Aston Healthcare Ltd is a provider of 
Anticoagulation and Minor Surgery Services 
(to practice population only). None declared None declared None declared

Kanczes-Daly, Sandra 12/12/2013 Practice Representative Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Kenny, Dr Clare 01/01/2014 Clinical Membership Group Member Nil

Dr Maassarani & Partners Ltd 7629051 (Self). 
Cornerways Medical Centre Ltd 6063350 Dr F 
Maassarani 6844441 Roseheath Surgery Ltd 
75966118 St Johns Surgery Ltd 5781396 
(Partner/Family Member)

Dr Maassarani & Partners Ltd 7629051 (Self). 
Cornerways Medical Centre Ltd 6063350 Dr F 
Maassarani 6844441 Roseheath Surgery Ltd 
75966118 St Johns Surgery Ltd 5781396 
(Partner/Family Member)

Dr Maassarani & Partners Ltd 20% (self). Dr F 
Maassarani Ltd 100% Maassarani & Parnters 
Ltd 80% Roseheath Surgery Ltd 100% St Johns 
Surgery Ltd 100% (Partner/Family Member).

Trustee Home Start Knowsley (self). Trustee 
of Towerhill (Maassarani) Community Charity 
(Partner/Family Member). Nil Nil Nil Nil

Kinloch, Dr T 11/03/2014 Practice Representative GP Partner
Non paid Medical Director of Co-agulation 
Company Nil Nil Chair - Mid Mersey Local Medical Committee Nil Nil Nil Nil

Kuruvilla, Dr Susan 23/12/2013 Clinical Membership Group Member GP Principal
Husband is one of the directors of Trinity 
Liverpool Ltd. Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Kyaw, Dr Khine 12/12/2013 Clinical Membership Group Member Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Loughram, Dr Briege 10/12/2013 Practice Representative GP Partner Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Husband is a consultant community 
geriatrician employd by Royal Liverpool 
Hospital and Liverpool Community Health.

Messing, Dr Rami 23/12/2013 Clinical Membership Group Member GP Principal Nil Nil PD Medical Centre Ltd (Director) Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Moran, Dr B 31/07/2013 Practice Representative Nil Nil Nil Nil GMS contract holder Nil Nil

Narayanan, Dr Thirumal 31/01/2014 Clinical Membership Group Member Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Nayak, Dr Geeta 24/12/2013 Clinical Membership Group Member Salaried GP Roby Medical Centre Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

O'Donnell, Dr John 24/12/2013 Practice Representative Profit share partner. Administrative Partner. Nil Nil

Treasurer, St Helens Handicapped Persons 
Society.  
Wife is the Secretary, St Helens Handicapped 
Persons Society. Nil Nil Nil Nil

Rai, Dr Sandeep 31/07/2013 Practice Representative Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Rahman, Dr N K 05/09/2013 Clinical Membership Group Member Senior Partner at Cross Lane Surgery Cross Lane Surgery Dr Rahman & Rahman's Surgery Nil GMS Contract
Rashid, Dr Raza 16/12/2013 Practice Representative Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Sadiq, Dr Pervez 07/11/2013
Governing Body Member, Clinical Lead for 
Women and Children Senior GP at Hillside House Surgery Nil Hillside House Surgery 100%

£5000.00 worth of shares in Assura Medical 
Services

Spouse is Assistant Director of Nursing at 
Royal Liverpool & Boardgreen University 
Hospitals NHS Trust GMS Contract with NHS England Nil Nil Nil

Segarajasinghe. Dr 
Mohan 24/12/2013 CMG Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Shah, Dr Nisha 08/04/2014 Practice Representative GP Principal Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Singhal, Dr Arun 14/11/2013 CMG
GP Partner
Son (Manu Singhal is also a Partner) Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Swinhoe, Dr P 31/07/2013 Practice Representative Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Tewari, Dr Vinod 28/03/2013 Practice Representative Nil Nil Nil Nil PMS Plus Contract with Knowsley PCT Nil Nil Nil Nil

Thong, Dr Ronnie 17/12/2013
Governing Body Member - Clinical Lead for 
Strategy & Planning

GP Principal  - Lead Clinician for MacMillan 
Surgery

Director of Taylor Healthcare (Southport) Ltd 
(Mrs Thong is also a director) Company No. 
08798308

Nil
Taylor Healthcare (Southport) Ltd - self 50% 
wife 50%                                                                                                                                                   

War Pension Medicals for Veterans Agency 
(Ministry of Defence)  PMS Contract with NHS England

Appraiser for NHS England.   
Contract with Mark Pilling - Specta Health   Nil Nil

Substance Misuse Lead for Knowsley 
MBC (remunerated).       

Travers, Dr Ben 08/04/2014 Practice Representative Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Verma, Dr S 23/12/2013 Practice Representative 

Cornerways MC Ltd 06063350
Wife is secretary at Cornerways Medical 
Centre

• Cornerways Medical Centre GP Practice, co-
owner
Dr Sonu Sharma, Dr Rohit Verma and Dr Jaya 
Verma are all Directors in Cornerways 
Medical Centre

• Cornerways MC Ltd: Dr SK Verma: 97%/ Mrs 
Verma: 2%/ Dr J Verma: 1% Nil

• GMS contract holder
• Daughter is Consultant in Eating Disorders 
at The Priory Hospital Cheadle Royal Nil Nil Nil Nil

Wycherley, Dr Chistine 11/12/2013 CMG GP Principal Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Appendix 9:  Register of Interests 

Clinical Membership Group Register of Interest 
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Appendix 10 - Audit Committee membership 
 
The members of the Audit Committee are: 
 

Title 
 

Name Dates  

Chair & Lay Member S Bramley Dec 2013 onwards 
Chair & Lay Member M Broderick, Apr 2013 to Dec 2013 
Lay Member R Austen-Vincent Apr 2013 onwards 
Secondary Care Doctor Dr R Macmillan Apr 2013 onwards 
GP Dr A Singhal Apr 2013 onwards 
GP Dr S Gallard Apr 2013 to Dec 2013 
In attendance 
 
Grant Thornton (External 
Audit) 

L Temple-Murray  

Grant Thornton (External 
Audit) 

M Thomas  

Mersey Internal Audit 
Agency 

L Cobain  

Mersey Internal Audit 
Agency 

S Connor  

Mersey Internal Audit 
Agency – Counter Fraud 
Service 

R Causer  

Mersey Internal Audit 
Agency – Counter Fraud 
Service 

V Martin  

Chief Finance Officer P Brickwood  
 

Head of Corporate 
Services 

D Boyer  
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Appendix 11 - Staff  
 

Name Title 
 

M Ashton Finance Assistant  
 

R Austen-Vincent Lay Member 
 

N Barber Pharmacy Technician 
 

C Barrow Senior Finance Manager 
 

D Boyer Head of Corporate Services  
 

D Bradbury Practice Pharmacist 
 

S Bramley Lay Member 
 

P Brickwood Chief Finance Officer 
 

A Brookes Programme Manager Commissioning 
 

C Butchard Secretary, Commissioning Team 
 

J Caddick Corporate Services Manager 
 

S Carberry Programme Manager Commissioning 
 

M Clark Finance Officer 
 

C Collins Senior Pharmacist 
 

N Duffy Finance Manager  
 

T Fairclough Senior Programme Manager  
 

C Ferguson Administration Manager  & PA (Corporate Services) 
 

L Frodsham PA, Finance 
 

C Fursland Pharmacy Technician  
 

C Graney Finance Accountant  
 

S Harris Programme Manager, Quality & Safety  
 

D Johnson Accountable Officer 
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J Johnson Programme Manager, Corporate Services  
 

J Ireland Head of Finance  
 

A Kelly Personal Assistant, Accountable Officer & Chair 
 

D McCulloch Commissioning Support  Officer  
 

D McKinlay Quality Improvement Lead 
 

A Macfarlane Transformational Change Programme Manager  
 

Dr R Macmillan Secondary Care Consultant  
 

L Miller Pharmacy Technician  
 

E Mullen Commissioning Support Officer  
 

N Nawaz Administrator, Medicines Management Team  
 

V Parsonage-Howard Business Manager, AO & Chair  
 

F Parr Practice Pharmacist  
 

L Pickavance Assistant CCG Accountant  
 

G Pimblett Medicines Management Team Leader  
 

D Quinlan Lay Member 
 

L Roberts 
 

Principal Accountant  

L Rogers Management Accountant  
 

N Rotherham Primary Care Quality Officer  
 

C Rylance Finance Assistant  
 

A Shone Secretary, Quality & Safety  
 

C Simm Finance Assistant  
 

I Stewart Planning Manager  
 

C Sutton Pharmacy Technician  
 

J Townley Commissioning Support Officer  
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P Thomas Programme Director – Transformational Change 
  

A Van Dessel Programme Manager Commissioning  
 

A Vinyard Finance Manager  
 

C Warburton Finance Manager  
 

A Watkinson Corporate Services Assistant  
 

A Watson Programme Office Manager  
 

S Wilton Commissioning Support Officer  
 

B Worthington Head of Quality & Safety / Lead Nurse 
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Appendix 12 - Committee Membership 

*Lead Officer 

Audit Committee 

Members 
Chair – Lay Member Audit and 
Governance 

S Bramley 

Lay /Clinical Member x 2 R Austen-Vincent 
Dr R Macmillan 

Nurse Clinician Representative (vacant) 
GPs x 2 (not on GB) Dr A Singhal 

Dr S Gallard 
In Attendance 
Internal Audit Rep L Cobain/ S Connor 
External Audit Rep L Temple / M, Thomas 
Counter Fraud Rep V Martin 
*Chief Finance Officer P Brickwood 
Lead CCG Officer responsible for 
Corporate Services 

D Boyer 

 
HR and Remuneration Committee 
 
Members 
Chair – Lay /Clinical Member R Austen-Vincent 
Lay /Clinical Member x 3 S Bramley 

Dr R Macmillan 
D Quinlan 

Chair of Governing Body Dr A Pryce 
Clinical Lead Dr F Maassarani 
HR Committee (as above, +) 
*Accountable Officer D Johnson 
Lead CCG Officer responsible for 
Corporate Services 

D Boyer 

 
Finance and Performance Committee 
 
Members 
Chair – Lay /Clinical Member S Bramley 
Accountable Officer D Johnson 
CCG Clinical Lead Dr S Tewari 

Dr R Thong 
*Chief Finance Officer P Brickwood 
*Lead CCG Officer Commissioning T Fairclough 
Senior Finance Manager C Barrow 
Section 75 Commissioning Lead L Carrington / D Lawson 
Public Health Lead R Holford 
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Clinical Quality and Safety Committee 

Members 
Chair – Lay /Clinical Member Dr R Macmillan 
Lay /Clinical Member x 2 D Quinlan 

R Austen-Vincent 
Accountable Officer D Johnson 
Clinical Lead for Quality and Safety Dr P Conway 
Clinical Lead for Primary Care Quality Dr D Stokoe 
*Lead Officer for Quality and Safety B Worthington 
Nurse from Clinical Membership Group S Kanczes-Daly 
Safeguarding Service Representative H Smith / T Drew 
Public Health Representative S McNulty 
Section 75 Commissioning Quality Lead S Fryer 
In Attendance 
PPG Representative (vacant) 
Healthwatch Representative P Coogan/ J Calverley  
 

Medicines Management Sub Committee 

Members 
Chair – Lay /Clinical Member D Quinlan 
Clinical Lead – Prescribing Dr A Hossain 
GP Locality Representative (practice 
prescribing leads) x 3 

Dr C Wycherley 
Dr J Benton 
Dr J Brindley 

LMC GP Rep Dr P Jones (LMC) 
LPC Pharmacist  Rep B Bhatt 
Non-Medical Nurse prescriber rep L Prescott 
*Lead CCG Officer responsible for 
Medicines Management 

G Pimblett 

Lead CCG Officer for Quality and Safety B Worthington 
Senior Finance Manager C Barrow 
A nominated Secondary Care Prescriber Dr B Maher 
Mental Health Services Representative (vacant)  
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Clinical Membership Group 

Clinical Membership Group  Practice Lead  F/
M 

23/04/13 03/09/13 08/10/13 10/12/13 11/02/14 11/03/14 
 

Aston Healthcare Limited Dr A Hossain M   X  X  
Bluebell Lane Medical Centre Dr P Ayegba M   X    
Cedar Cross Medical Centre Dr K Kyaw F      X 
Colby Medical Centre S Kanczes-Daly F  X  S Ashcroft  X 
Cornerways Medical Centre Dr S Verma M X  Dr P 

Veeramachineni 
X Dr Clare 

Kenny 
X 

Dinas Lane Medical Centre Dr B Loughran F  X    X 
Dr AK Singhal’s Practice Dr A Singhal M    X   
Dr Maassarani & Partners Dr C Kenny F  X  Dr F 

Maassarani 
 X 

Dr Kinloch & Moran Dr T Kinloch M       
EATPMC (Options x4) Dr S Gallard F X Glyn 

Howard 
 X  Dr B Travers 

Family Health Centre Dr C Wycherley F      X 
Hillside House Surgery Dr P Sadiq M   X    
Longview Medical Centre Dr M Alexander M    X   
MacMillan Surgery Dr R Thong M Nigel 

Booth 
 

Nigel 
Booth 

Nigel Booth  Nigel 
Booth 

Nigel Booth 

Millbrook Medical Centre Dr M Segar M Dr A 
Saber 

 Dr M Merriman   X 

MK & NN Rahman Dr N Rahman F       
Nutgrove Villa Surgery Dr S 

Gunaseelan 
M     X Dr T 

Narayanan 
Park House Medical Centre Dr J Brindley M  X X  X  
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Pilch Lane Surgery Dr S Kuruvilla F  X     
Prescot Medical Centre  Dr D Heath F  Dr 

Finlayson 
Dr B Finlayson X X  

Princess Drive Medical Centre Dr R Messing M    X X X 
Roby Medical Centre Dr G Nayak F       
Roseheath Surgery Dr C Kenny F  X  Dr F 

Maassarani 
 X 

St Johns Surgery Dr C Kenny F  X  Dr F 
Maassarani 

 X 

St Laurence’s Medical Centre Dr A Fell F  X X X   
Stockbridge Village Health 
Centre 

Dr P Barry M       

Tarbock Medical Centre Dr S Singh F  Dr R 
Rashid 

  Dr R 
Rashid 

 

The Hollies Medical Centre Dr P Swinhoe M X X X X X X 
Trentham Medical Centre Dr S Tewari F   Dr V Tewari    
Wingate Medical Centre Dr J O’Donnell M Dr S 

Perritt 
    X 
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Governing Body 

Governing Body  
 

M/F 02/05/13 06/06/13 04/07/13 05/09/13 03/10/13 07/11/13 05/12/13 06/02/14 06/03/14 

Dr A Pryce 
Chair  

M          

D Johnson 
Accountable Officer 

F   X       

P Brickwood 
Chief Finance Officer 

M       X   

Dr P Conway 
Quality & Safety Clinical 
Lead 

M          

Dr A Hossain 
Prescribing Clinical Lead 

M X    X   X  

Dr F Maassarani 
Unplanned Care Clinical 
Lead 

M X    X     

Dr S Pervez 
Women & Children 
Clinical Lead 

M   X X X     

Dr D Stokoe 
Primary Care Quality 
Clinical Lead 

M     X   X X 

Dr S Tewari 
Planned Care Clinical 
Lead 

F    X      

Dr R Thong 
Strategy & Planning 
Clinical Lead 
 
 

M   X  X    X 
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Dr S Verma 
Mental Health Clinical 
Lead 

M  Not in 
post 

Not in 
post 

Not in 
post 

Not in 
post 

Not in 
post 

Not in 
post 

Not in 
post 

Not in 
post 

Dr P Ayegba 
Mental Health Clinical 
Lead 

M Not in 
Post 

Not in 
Post 

Not in 
Post 

      

R Austen-Vincent  (Lay 
Member) 
Patient & Public 
Engagement  

F          

M Broderick (Lay 
Member) 
Audit & Governance 

M     Not in 
post 

Not in 
post 

Not in 
post 

Not in 
post 

Not in 
post 

S Bramley (Lay 
Member) 
Audit & Governance 

F Not in 
Post 

Not in 
Post 

Not in 
Post 

Not in 
Post 

Not in 
Post 

    

D Quinlan (Lay Member) 
Quality & Safety 

F Not in 
Post 

Not in 
Post 

Not in 
Post 

Not in 
Post 

Not in 
Post 

    

Dr R Macmillan (Clinical 
Advisor) 
Secondary Care Doctor 

M          

B Worthington (Clinical 
Advisor) 
Registered Nurse 

F    X    X  

S Ramsey 
LA Chief Executive 

F X  X      
In 
Attendan
ce 

 
In 
Attendan
ce 
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Audit Committee 

Audit Committee M/F 19/06/13 20/09/13 09/12/13 19/03/14 
 

S Bramley 
Chair 

F Not in Post Not in Post   

M Broderick 
Lay Member 

M   Not in post Not in post 

R Austen-Vincent 
Lay Member 

F     

Dr R Macmillan 
Secondary Care Doctor 

M X X X  

Dr A Singhal 
GP 

M     

Dr S Gallard 
GP 

F   Not in post Not in post 

In attendance 
P Brickwood  
Chief Finance Officer 

M     

D Boyer  
Head of Corporate Services 

F     

L Rogers  
Accountant 

F X X X  

M Thomas  
Grant Thornton, External 
Audit 

M   X X 

L Temple Murray  
Grant Thornton, External 
Audit 

F  X   

L Cobain  
Mersey Internal Audit 
Agency 

F  Gary 
Baines 

  

S Connor   
Mersey Internal Audit 
Agency 

M  X X X 

V Martin  
Mersey Internal Audit 
Agency 

F   X  
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Finance and Performance Committee 

Finance & Performance 
Committee 
 

M/F 12/04/13 15/05/13 17/07/13 18/09/13 20/11/13 18/12/13 26/02/14 

S Bramley 
Lay Member - Chair 

F Not in 
Post 

Not in 
Post 

Not in 
Post 

Not in 
Post 

   

M Broderick 
Lay Member - Chair 

M     Not in 
Post 

Not in 
Post 

Not in 
Post 

D Johnson 
Accountable Officer 

F  Deputy Deputy  Deputy Deputy  

Dr R Thong 
GP 

M        

Dr S Tewari 
Clinical Lead 

F     X   

P Brickwood 
Chief Finance Officer 

M       X 

T Fairclough 
Lead Commissioning 
Officer 

M     Not in 
post 

Not in 
post 

Not in 
post 

C Barrow 
Senior Finance Manager 

F X   X    

L Carrington 
Section 75 
Commissioning Lead 

F      X  

R Holford 
Public Health Lead 

M X  X  Simon 
Anderson 

 X 
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HR and Remuneration Committee 

HR & Remuneration 
Committee 

M/F 01/08/13 
Rem 

03/12/13 
HR 

06/03/14 
Rem 

R Austen-Vincent 
Chair 

F    

S Bramley 
Lay Member 

F Not in 
Post 

X  

M Broderick 
Lay Member 

M  Not 
in Post 

Not 
in Post 

Dr R Macmillan 
Secondary Care Doctor 

M    

D Quinlan 
Lay Member 

F Not in 
Post 

  

Dr A Pryce 
Chair of Governing Body 

M    

Dr F Maassarani 
Clinical Lead 

M    

D Johnson 
Accountable Officer 

F N/A  N/A 

D Boyer 
Head of Corporate Services 

F N/A  N/A 
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Clinical Quality and Safety Committee 

Clinical Quality & 
Safety Committee 

M/F 05/04/13 03/05/13 07/06/13 05/07/13 02/08/13 04/10/13 08/11/13 06/12/13 10/01/14 07/03/14 

Dr R Macmillan 
Chair, Secondary Care 
Doctor 

M   X        

D Quinlan 
Lay Member 

F Not in 
Post 

Not in 
Post 

Not in 
Post 

Not in 
Post 

Not in 
Post 

Not in 
Post 

Not in 
Post 

Not in 
Post 

  

R Austen Vincent 
Lay Member 

F X          

Dr P Conway 
Clinical Lead, Quality & 
Safety 

M  X         

Dr D Stokoe 
Clinical Lead, Primary 
Care Quality 

M       X    X 

D Johnson 
Accountable Officer 

F    Deputy    Deputy  Deputy 

B Worthington 
Lead Officer for Quality 
& Safety  

F           

S Kanczes-Daly 
Nurse, Clinical 
Membership Group 

F X X X X X X X X X X 

H Smith 
Head of Safeguarding 
for Adults 

F X  X X X X     

T Drew 
Head of Safeguarding 
for Children 
 

F X  X X X    X X 
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S McNulty 
Public Health 
Representative 

F X  X  X X  X  X 

S Fryer (KMBC) 
Section 75 
Commissioning Quality 
Lead 

F X X X X X X X X  Not in 
post 

In attendance 
PPG Representative 
Vacant 

           

M O’Mara MBE 
Chair of Knowsley 
Healthwatch 
 

F    Not in 
Post 

Not in 
Post 

Not in 
Post 

Not in 
Post 

Not in 
Post 

Not in 
Post 

Not in 
Post 

P Coogan 
Healthwatch Knowsley 

M Not in 
Post 

Not in 
Post 

      X  

J Calverley 
Healthwatch Knowsley 

F Not in 
Post 

Not in 
Post 

Not in 
Post 

    X  X 

P Mavers 
Healthwatch Knowsley 

M    X X X X X X  
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Medicines Management Sub-Committee 
 

Medicines 
Management   
Sub-Committee 

F/M 03/04/13 01/05/13 05/06/13 03/07/13 04/09/13 02/10/13 06/11/13 04/12/13 19/02/14 

Dr R Macmillan 
Secondary Care 
Doctor (Chair) 

M          

D Quinlan 
Lay Member (Chair) 

F Not in 
Post 

Not in 
Post 

Not in 
Post 

Not in 
Post 

Not in 
Post 

Not in 
Post 

Not in 
Post 

  

Dr A Hossain 
Clinical Lead, 
Prescribing 

M      X    

Dr C Wycherley 
GP Locality 
Representative 

F        X  

Dr J Benton 
GP Locality 
Representative 

M   X      X 

Dr J Brindley 
GP Locality 
Representative 

M X    X    X 

Dr P Jones 
LMC GP 
Representative 

M    X   X X  

B Bhatt 
LPC Pharmacist 
Representative 

M     X  Bertha 
Brown 

Bertha 
Brown 

Bertha 
Brown 

Non-Medical Nurse 
Prescriber  
Vacant 
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B Worthington 
Head of Quality & 
Safety 

F     X     

G Pimblett 
Team Leader, 
Medicines 
Management 

M Not in 
Post 

Not in 
Post 

Not in 
Post 

Not in 
Post 

    Christine 
Collins 

C Collins 
Team Leader, 
Medicines 
Management 

F          

C Barrow 
Senior Finance 
Manager 

F X X Christine 
Warburton 

   Christine 
Warburton 

 Christine 
Warburton 

Dr B Maher 
Secondary Care 
Prescriber 

F X X  X X    X 

L Prescott 
Chief Pharmacist, 
5BP 
Mental Health 
Services 
Representative 

F X  X   X Not in 
Post 

Not in 
Post  

Not in 
Post 

N Chiton (for L, 
Prescott) 
Chief Pharmacist 5BP 

M Not in 
Post 

Not in 
Post 

Not in 
Post 

Not in 
Post 

Not in 
Post 

Not in 
Post 

Not in 
Post 

 X 

 


